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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat on Tuesday,

Novenber 18, 2025, at 710 Sout hwest Rock Creek Drive,

St evenson, Washington, at 5:33 p.m, the follow ng
public informational neeting of the Washington State

Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

W t:
<LK >>>>>>
CHAI R BECKETT: Good eveni ng,
everybody. Again, ny nane's Kurt Beckett. |'mchair

of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council here

for Washington State and want to wel cone you-all this

eveni ng, especially those of you who have taken your

time to join us here this evening. Certainly want to

t hank those who are online as well.
O her nenbers of our Council who wll be
I ntroduced here shortly are also online in addition

to nenbers of the public.

So, again, welcone. And this is the first of two

meetings tonight. W're beginning this evening with

the public informational neeting as required by state

| aw. The purpose of the first neeting is to provide
an overview of the EFSEC revi ew process and, in

particular, the overview of the project, itself, the
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Cascade Renewabl e Transm ssion Project.

W will then take public coment from our both
I n-roomand online attendees. And we'll talk a
little bit nore about that when we get there on
timng and process. It is about three m nutes per
person. Just a heads-up. And, again, we'll take
online comments as well.

Pl ease know that the purpose of tonight's neeting
is really to both, again, begin socializing the
details of the project with the public, but also as
you digest that, this evening if you have comments of
what EFSEC Council as well as staff should consider
in the review of the application, whether that's a
guestion you think that needs to be answered or a
perspective that you want to share, that's the
pur pose of tonight's public comment, is to capture
t hose things.

Pl ease know, as we start this process, ultimtely
there are many different comrent periods along the
way that we won't spend a lot of tine on tonight, but
by no neans is this kind of the only time that you'll
have a chance to understand the project and provide
your input. But it is an inportant part so that we
capture any initial thoughts you nay have as we then

go further into the official process.
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The second neeting, which will begin imediately
after our public comment concludes -- and that is
specifically about the | and-use consi stency of the
project and, in this case, how that project conpares
to | and-use code in Skamania County. And so there
wll be a brief presentation on that, and then
comrents will be taken on the | and-use issue only
during the | and-use consistency hearing.

So, with that, et ne thank you-all again for
parti ci pati ng.

And if Ms. Gantham woul d please call the roll.

M5. GRANTHAM Certainly, Chair.

Depart nent of comrerce.

M5. OSBORNE: Hi. Elizabeth
Gsbor ne, present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Ecol ogy.
NELSON: Bl ake Nel son, present.
GRANTHAM  Departnent of Fish

5 2

and Wldlife.

MR. PAMPLIN. Nate Panplin, present
virtually.

M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Nat ural Resources.

MR. RYAN. Maverick Ryan, present
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virtually.

M5. GRANTHAM  Uilities and
Transportati on Conm ssi on.

MR. RYBARI K: Brian Rybarik,
present virtually fromthe UTC/ EFSEC offices in
Lacey, Washi ngton.

M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.

Moving on to our |ocal governnment. For this
proj ect and Skamani a County, Asa Leckie.

MR, LECKIE: Yeah. Asa Leckie,
onl i ne,

M5. GRANTHAM "Asa." Thank you.

Moving on to Assistant Attorney General Jon
Thonpson.

MR. THOMPSON:. | am present online.

M5. GRANTHAM  Admi nistrative Law
Judge Russell M kow.

JUDGE M KOWN Present online.

M5. GRANTHAM  For Council staff
here, | amgoing to call those who are anticipated to
possi bly speak tonight.

Soni a Bunpus.
BUMPUS: Here.
GRANTHAM  Am  Haf keneyer.
HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

5 O o
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GRANTHAM  Mari a Bel ki na.
BELKI NA:  Present.
GRANTHAM  Lance Caput o.
CAPUTO  Present.

GRANTHAM  Kar| Hol appa.
HOLAPPA:  Present.
GRANTHAM  And Li sa MLean.
McLEAN:  Present online.
GRANTHAM  Thank you.

5 5P DD D

And is there anyone here for the counsel for the
envi ronnent ?
M5. REYNEVELD: Yes. Sarah
Reynevel d is here.
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.
Chair, there is a quorum
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you very
much.
|"mgoing to ask our applicant teamto introduce
thensel ves briefly. And as a heads-up to our counsel
menber, | was going to next call on you just to
provide a brief word of the role of the counsel of
the environnment, and then | would turn this soon to
Soni a Bunpus, our director of EFSEC, that will begin
our staff presentation for the EFSEC process.

So heads-up on that, counsel for the environnent
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and first over to our applicant for brief
I ntroducti ons.

MR, HOCKER: M nane is Chris
Hocker with Cascade Renewabl e Transm ssion. Wth ne
at the desk here is Susan Brown, a colleague. And we
have other folks in the audi ence are representing our
devel opnent partners and our consultant, HDR  So
there's probably five or six who will be happy to
answer questions, | guess, beforehand obviously and
afterwards if there are any.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you.

Counsel Reynevel d.

M5. REYNEVELD: Yes. Hell o,
everyone. M nane is Sarah Reyneveld, and |I'm here
toni ght on behalf of counsel for the environnent,
Yuriy Korol, who has been assigned to this project
but had a conflict this evening.

Pursuant to RCW 80.50. 080, when the counsel
receives site application, the attorney general, Nick
Brown, appoints an assistant attorney general to
serve as counsel for the environnent. And the
pur pose of counsel for the environnment, per the
statute, is to represent the public and its interests
in protecting the quality of the environnment

t hroughout the siting process so that the -- our
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counsel for the environnment fully participates
t hr oughout that process.

So thank you for the opportunity for a brief
i ntroduction. Again, Yuriy Korol has been assigned
to this project, and should be present tonorrow
eveni ng. Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you very nuch
for the overview.

And, with that, et nme pass this to Director
Bunpus to kick us off on the EFSEC overvi ew process.
Thank you.

M5. BUWPUS. Thank you, Chair
Becket t.

As Chair Beckett said, ny nanme is Sonia Bunpus.
| am the executive director of the Energy Facility
Site Evaluation Council, or EFSEC, as we say.

Wanted to first say thank you for being here
tonight. W really welcone your attendance and
participation. It neans a lot to us. | know
everybody's busy. And so you taking the tine to cone
out and neet us, we really appreciate that.

A couple of remarks before we get started with
t he Power Poi nt presentation that EFSEC staff wl|
provi de about our process. And Chair Beckett talked

about this a little bit already. The reason that
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we're here tonight is to hear fromyou about this
application that was filed wwth EFSEC. It's also to
hol d the | and-use consi stency hearing that's going to
follow this public informational hearing.

When EFSEC receives an application for site
certification, when soneone wants to build an energy
facility that falls under EFSEC jurisdiction, EFSEC s
required to hold a public infornmational hearing and
take comment on the application. And then we al so
have to do a | and-use consistency hearing. But
that's not all there is to the process. There's
ot her steps that follow that you'll hear about in the
Power Poi nt presentati on.

They include the environnental review under the
State Environnental Policy Act. And if the project
doesn't qualify for what we call expedited
processing, then EFSEC is required to also hold an
adj udi cative hearing. So there's a |ot of steps.

The reason I'mtelling you all this right now,
even though you're going to get a nutshell
presentation of it shortly, is because there are a
| ot of steps ahead of us in terns of engaging with
EFSEC and providing input into the process, and they
all have -- these different parts of the process all

serve a different role.
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Toni ght when you cone up and you talk with us
about this application, what it's going to dois it's
going to help informour review of the application
that was just filed. And so as the SEPA responsible
official of EFSEC, |I'm going to be | ooking at those
comments to help informwhat |'m/| ooking at when |I'm
interpreting the information in the application. And
what we hope to do is get to a point where we
consi der the application to be conpl ete enough to be
able to nove towards the next part of the process.

So with that being said, | encourage you to al so
sign up with us, if you haven't already, for
notifications about the project and EFSEC activities.
Because noving forward from here, EFSEC will be
talking wwth the Council at our nonthly Council
neetings. They're held on the third Wednesday of
each nmonth. And there'll be a project update about
this specific application at each one of those
neet i ngs.

So it's a good way to stay apprised as to what's
devel oping with the application review, public
neetings that we're planning for the future parts of
t he process.

So thank you for comng out, and I am now goi ng

to pass this over to our siting specialist so that
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they can introduce thenselves and start the
presentati on.
M5. BELKI NA: Wl cone, everybody.
And thank you, all, for comng to participate this
evening. M nane is Maria Belkina. [|'mthe |ead
site specialist for EFSEC for this project. And |
woul d li ke to introduce ny col | eague Lance Caputo.
He will be giving a short presentation on the EFSEC
process for those who are unfam liar with our agency.
MR. CAPUTQO Thank you, Mari a.

As Maria nentioned, ny nane is Lance Caputo.
| ' ve been assigned to assist Maria. She is the |ead
siting specialist on this project. And | amgoing to
go through a very hopefully brief overview of the
agency and our process.

Alittle bit about the history of the EFSEC
agency. EFSEC was created in 1970 for the siting of
thermal power plants. The intent was to create a
one-stop permtting agency for |arge energy
facilities. EFSEC is conprised of state and | ocal
gover nnent nenbers who revi ew each application before
voting to make a council recommendation to the
gover nor.

| f recommendi ng approval, the package to the

governor includes a draft site certification
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agreenent, or what we call a SCA, which defines all
preconstruction, construction, and operation pl ans.
| f approved by the governor's office, the decision
preenpts all other state or |ocal regulations.

EFSEC i s conprised of nenbers from several
different state-level agencies. The chairperson is
appoi nted by the governor, and there are standing
nmenbers fromfive other agencies appointed by those
agencies to sit on the Council.

The current Council is made up of Chairman Kurt
Beckett, Bl ake Nel son fromthe Departnent of Ecol ogy,
Nat e Panplin fromthe Departnent of Fish and
Wldlife, Elizabeth Osborne fromthe Departnent of
Commerce, Maverick Ryan fromthe Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, and Brian Rybarik fromthe
Utilities and Transportati on Comm ssi on.

There are additional agencies that may elect to
appoi nt a Council nenber during the review of a new
application. These agencies are the Departnent of
Agriculture, the Departnment of Transportation, the
Departnent of Health, and the MIlitary Departnent.

The |l ocal county shall al so appoint a Council
menber for the review of a new application. For
Skamani a County, Asa Leckie -- if | said your nane

correctly, sir -- is the county representative. If a
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proposal -- if a proposal project is |located at a
port, the port nmay al so appoi nt a nonvoting nenber.

Mul tiple energy generations -- generation
facilities fall under EFSEC s jurisdiction. Sone
projects, such as thermal power plants with [ ess than
350 negawatts and nucl ear generation for the purpose
of generating electricity, are required to be sited
t hrough EFSEC, while others -- such as w nd, solar,
green hydrogen, storage, or clean energy
manuf acturing -- can opt in our process at any size.

Transm ssion |ines greater than 115 kilovolts can
al so opt in, while lines greater than 500 kilovolts
alternating current or 300 kilovolts direct current
are required. Thresholds for pipelines and
refineries that may be sited through EFSEC are found
in the Revised Codes of Washi ngton, or RCW
80. 50. 060.

Mul tiple energy generation -- thank you. M
first mstake. Sonebody keep track for nme. |
appreci ate how nmany m stakes | nake.

Here is a map of the facilities that are
certified or have applied for certification under
EFSEC s jurisdiction. You can see marked in green,
there are seven operating facilities, including two

natural gas facilities, one nuclear facility, two
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solar facilities and two wnd facilities.

The blue marks indicate the four additional
facilities that are approved but are not yet
construct ed.

The clear circle is the one facility in the
process of being deconmm ssioned. EFSEC is currently
reviewi ng seven projects marked by yellow, including
this Cascade Renewabl e Transm ssion project.

Here is a flowhart showi ng the general process
an applicant will go through when they submt an
application to EFSEC. | know it | ooks daunting, but
pl ease bear with us.

There are yell ow boxes on the chart that indicate
specific mlestones in the process where the Council
and staff seek public input. You can see that there
are nmultiple processes that happen concurrently when
EFSEC is reviewing an application. The permtting
process, outlined across the top row, involves
I dentifying and preparing applicable environnental
permts. The | and-use and adj udi cative process runs
through the mddle. And the State Environnental
Policy Act, or what we call SEPA, process is shown
along the bottom All these processes ultimately
feed into the Council's recommendati on nmade to the

gover nor .
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Where an adjudication is required follow ng the
| and- use consi stency hearing, an order is issued to
comrence proceedings and initiate intervention.

Here, nenbers of the public wishing to participate in
the adjudication nust identify thenselves and their
Issues in witing. There are prehearing conferences
t hrough which parties are granted intervention status
and issues are identified. Exhibits and testinony
are provided, and cross-exam nation is conduct ed.

After this, the Council |ooks at all the
information in the adjudication record and
deli berates. Finally, the Council devel ops an order
establishing their findings of fact and concl usi ons
of law fromthe information provided throughout these
pr oceedi ngs.

For every proposed project, a SEPA review is
perfornmed. Wen a determ nation of significance and
a decision to prepare an environnmental i npact
statement -- or what we call an EIS -- is nade,
public comments are taken on the scope of the EIS.

After public comrent for scoping, the SEPA
responsi ble official -- here, our agency director
Soni a Bunpus -- determ nes the scope of the EIS. A
draft EISis prepared and issued with a m ni num

30-day public coment period, after which the final
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ElIS is prepared and rel eased.

I n some instances, a determ nation of
nonsi gni fi cance, or a DNS, or a mtigated
determ nati on of nonsignificance, an MDNS, is issued.
| f the SEPA responsible official determnes that a
project neets the criteria of a DNS or MDNS, an EI' S
IS not required.

This is an al phabet we have here going.

In this process, determnation is noticed to the
public, and there is a m ni num 15-day public coment
period on a mtigated determ nation of
nonsi gni fi cance while a determ nation of significance
requires no conment period.

Fol |l owi ng the concl usion of these separate
avenues of application review, the Council devel ops
its recommendation to the governor, tying together
the information brought forth throughout the entire
application review process. |If a project is issued a
mtigated determ nati on of nonsignificance and
received a determ nation of |and-use consistency, it
may qualify for an expedited review process.

To be considered for expedited processing, an
appl i cant nust make the request in witing. If the
project neets the two aforenentioned criteria for

| and-use consistency and a MDNS, the Council can
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grant expedited process review.

In this expedited process, the adjudication step
I's not required, and an environnental i npact
statenent is not prepared. Applications granted
expedi ted processing do hold an additional public
hearing prior to the Council's recommendati on to hear
any conditions that may be considered to i npose on
the project, simlar to a conditional use process
hearing. The Council prepares their recomendati on
to the governor in an expedited tine frame under this
pr ocess.

Now, EFSEC is al so the issuing agency for any
applicable state and | ocal governnental permts a
facility may require, including water quality and air
quality permits as they may apply. The permts are
identified in the final package with the Council's
recomendation to the governor.

| f an application is approved by the governor,
EFSEC t hen has oversight of the environnental
conpliance for the life of the facility through
deconm ssi oning. EFSEC has standing contracts with
applicable state agencies that assist in nonitoring
and enforcenent of conditions either in the site
certification agreenent, identified permts, or the

envi ronnent al inpact statenent or the mtigated
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determ nati on of nonsignificance. EFSEC s
enforcenent authority extends to the issuance of any
penal ties that may apply.

At the conclusion of the Council's review of an
application, a recommendation is nade to the governor
to either approve or reject the application. This
initiates a 60-day wi ndow within which the governor
wi Il then either approve the application, reject the
application, or remand the application back to the
Council for reconsideration. Any application that is
rejected by the governor is a final decision on that
appl i cation.

As previously nentioned, EFSEC oversees
facilities under its jurisdiction through
decomm ssioning. Prior to the start of construction
of approved projects, an initial site restoration
plan is required. Then at the end of the life
expectancy of the facility, prior to the start of
deconm ssioning, a detailed site restoration plan is
required.

These plans nust be reviewed and approved by the
Council. The project nust al so provide financi al
assurance for the deconm ssioning in the event that
the project is no longer able to conplete the

process. Assum ng the project deconm ssions while
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still on the full control of the devel oper, these
costs would be paid by the certificate hol der
directly.

And before I conclude the presentation, 1'd |ike
to nention that our partners in the project are
representing the State of Oregon, the senior siting

anal yst with the Oregon Departnent of Energy and the

Energy Facility Siting Council, is Christopher d ark.

He's here tonight. So if you have questi ons about
the Oregon half of the project, the gentleman over
there with the beard. He's available for you.

So thank you for joining us this evening. W
appreciate your tinme and interest in the Cascade
Renewabl e Transm ssion Project. Qur work is closely
coordinated with the Oregon Departnent of Energy and
the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers, ensuring that both
states and federal agencies have aligned in the
environnental permtting process.

This wraps up ny presentation for the evening.
But before | end, I'd like to rem nd everyone how
they may submt coments for this project.

You may send in witten coments by e-nmail to
comrent s@f sec. wa. gov; by postal mail to our office
at 621 Wodl and Square Loop, PO Box 43172, d ynpia,
Washi ngt on; or by phone at (360) 664-1345.
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When EFSEC is in an active comment peri od
associated with a specific mlestone, conmments may
al so be submtted to our online comment database at
comments. ef sec. wa. gov. All coments received,
regardl ess of timng or nethod of delivery, wll be
saved with the project record and available to the
Council and staff for review.

Thank you for bearing with ne. And I'lIl turn it
back over to Maria? Sonia Bunpus, our director.

M5. BUWPUS:. Thank you, Lance.

Real |y appreciate it.

Just a couple of things. And Lance went over
the -- howto submt comments, so | won't go back
over that, other than just to say, so using an
exanple fromthe presentation, Lance talked about, if
we were to prepare an EI'S, we woul d make a
determ nati on of significance.

And he al so nentioned that there's no conmment, no
public comment period required when | issue a
determ nation of significance. However, there's this
part of SEPA, called scoping, that we're required to
do.

So if we were going to make a determ nati on of
significance, we would need to go through a scopi ng

period. And there's a comment period that we're
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required to do. And what that comment period does is
It gives us a chance to hear fromyou as far as what
you think needs to be anal yzed or considered in that
envi ronnent al inpact statenent.

And so that is exactly what EFSEC would call a
comment period. So if you're on that mailing |ist
that | tal ked about earlier, you would get noticed,
Hey, EFSEC is going to be starting scoping. W've
I ssued a determ nation of significance, and we're
inviting you to provide comments to us about the
scope of the environnental inpact statenent.

So just to give you a real-world exanple of one
of those mlestones that Lance highlighted in his
presentation. Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you, all.

As we nove to the PowerPoint, let ne nmake a brief
word. A PowerPoint fromthe applicants. | think we
can cue that up. W wll nove to the project
overview, which is one of the nost critical parts
tonight in addition to your input.

| did want to al so highlight again Conm ssi oner
Leckie, Asa Leckie, who is serving on this project
council for the Cascade Renewabl e Transm ssi on
Project -- always appreciate busy officials that are

al so now dual -- dual-hatting and providing their
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presence on behal f of Skamania County on the project
counci | .

So, Commi ssioner, we welconme you to this process
and appreciate your making tine for it and those who
you represent.

Al so wanted to echo Lance's coments of
hi ghli ghting our partner fromthe Departnent of
Energy in Oregon. That's EFSC with one "E," and
we're EFSEC with two Es, is one way to keep that
clear, so to speak.

So, with that, over to you, sir.

MR. HOCKER: Al right.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you.

MR. HOCKER:  Thank you. And thank
you to EFSEC and particularly to the fol ks who turned
out tonight. W appreciate the interest.

My nanme is Chris Hocker. The conmpany | work for
Is called PowerBridge. M coll eague Susan Brown is
next to ne. And like | said before, we had sone
proj ect representatives throughout the audi ence here
who' d be happy to answer informal questions.

The project that we're going to describe is
i nnovative in the sense that it's a technol ogy that
has not been used widely in the Pacific Northwest,

but it is a technol ogy that has been used on several
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occasi ons throughout the world. And the conpany |
wor k for, PowerBridge, has actually devel oped and
built and currently operates two such projects

I nvol vi ng underwater electric transm ssion.

Before | go any further, | do want to acknow edge
that we're well aware of the |ong-standi ng t housands
of years of occupancy by indi genous peopl es of the
region, and we are working very diligently to engage
with tribes and understand their concerns. So, you
know, | wanted to nmke sure that you knew that we're
very much appreciative of that and it's an ongoi ng
effort that's been going on for several years.

So | hopefully won't take too much tine. But |
do want to give you a pretty thorough overview

The project begins in The Dalles, Oegon, and
ends in the R vergate section of Portl and.

What ' s next ?

It is about a hundred mles in |l ength, of which
about 80 is underwater. Wen we say underwater, we
mean buried 10 to 15 feet below the sedi nent of the
river. It's not lying on the bottomof the river.

It avoi ds negative inpacts associated wth
overhead transm ssion lines. It will probably take
about three and a half years to build. The

installation of the cable underwater would only occur

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC CRT informational meetings
Public Information Meeting, - November 18, 2025

Page 27

during winter nonths to avoid sensitive periods for
m gration and spawni ng of fish.

And like | said before, this is a technol ogy that
has been in use for quite sone tine and continues to
be in use around the world.

Next .

Just as sort of a backdrop: A few years ago,
both states, Washington and Oregon, passed
| egi slation that mandated a sort of a stair-step
process of achieving 100 percent clean energy in
their states. And the first mlestone under those
mandat es actually occurs in 2030, and then it
ratchets up fromthere.

So it is a state mandate to nove to cl ean energy.
The issue, however, is that nost of the clean energy
resources exi st east of the Cascades. And nost of
the | oad, the people who actually use the power, is
west of the Cascades. So the dilemma is how do you
get enough transm ssion to nove the energy from east
to the west.

Next .

Ri ght now, in the region, Washington and Oregon,
the existing transm ssion systemis very nuch
constrained. It's at its limt. Not every single

hour of every day. But at peak periods, the
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transm ssion systemis under great constraint. And
this isn't just us saying this. |It's sonething that
has been nore and nore w dely acknow edged t hroughout
the region, as you can see by, you know, sone of the
headl i nes shown here.

So there's very little avail abl e east-to-west
transm ssion capacity. There's a transmssion grid
that was built in the "60s and '70s primarily by BPA.
Putting in new overhead hi gh-capacity transm ssion
lines is very challenging. There have been a couple
of efforts to do that that have fail ed.

And so we have this, as | said, highly
constrai ned transm ssion systemthat needs to be

addressed one way or the other.

Next .
Now, | realize this is not the nost intuitive
slide, but I"'mshowng it because it illustrates how

energy flows and how the project, even though it
begins in Oregon and it termnates in Oregon, really
doesn't -- it's irrespective of geography. And the
benefits to Washington are every bit as evident as
the benefits to O egon.

The blue kind of semcircles illustrate the
current main energy flows fromeast of the Cascades

to the west. The little circles are planned and very
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early-stage planning that BPA and others are thinking
of building. And the reason they need to build those
I nprovenents in the red and the black circles and the
blue circles is because the system works as a whol e.

So if you're bringing energy fromsources in the
east, you don't just string a line and from Point A
to Point B. Everything you do has an inpact on the
existing system so that if you bring it over to a
point, then that's going to affect how the ot her
parts of the system need to be upgraded to nmake it
all work. Oherwise, all you're doing is noving
constraints.

Qur project, which is the green |line, bypasses
t hose constraints by going directly fromthe Big Eddy
substation in The Dalles to the |load center in
greater Portland. Fromthere, it then escapes the
constraints and is able to flow north and south. So
by elimnating, or | should say reducing -- because
it's not the only solution -- by reducing those
constraints, you benefit the whole systemin both
states.

So as we said, we've, you know, nmanaged to draw a
certain anmobunt of attention as we've been filing
permts and dealing with fol ks on both sides of the

river. W are part of the needed solution, which is
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really probably three/four, at |east, thousand
nmegawatts' worth of transm ssion capacity. Wat we
propose is 1100 negawatts. So it's a significant
portion of neeting the constraints. |It's not the
only solution, but it's one that we know can be

I npl enent ed.

So it's hard to depict a hundred-mle
transm ssion line, but this is essentially the
overview of the project that, like | said, begins in
The Dalles. And, by the way, that conplex, if you're
famliar with it -- it's called the Starr Conplex --
Is a very large BPA set of facilities, including a
| ar ge substation called Bi g Eddy.

And the transm ssion that noves east from --
further east into The Dalles, into Starr, is not
constrained. The constrained area is basically the
hundred m | es between Bi g Eddy and here.

So the green is the underwater portion. The
yellow is the on-land portion. As you can see, the
only on-land portion affecting this specific |ocal
area is the bypass of the Bonneville Dam which we're
going to show there. There we go.

So the idea would be to take the cable out of the
river and land it in Stevenson. The landing is

af fected by a technol ogy call ed horizontal
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with adrill. Conduits are pulled through. The
depth of the drill can be 40, 50 feet bel ow the
ground surface. It cones back up onto land. And
then the cable is trenched. And it's conventi onal
trenching about four feet deep, as |'msure we're all
famliar with for cabl es and pi pelines and things
like that. Water |ines, that kind of thing.

It primarily follows State Route 14. That little
j og on Ashes Lake Road is at the suggestion of the
Washi ngt on DOT, Departnent of Transportation. It
proceeds around the dam primarily on Route 14, till
you get onto federal governnent property over by the
dam over to where you see the kind of the purple
sl ash there, which is the other horizontal
directional drill that gets it back into the water
and on down toward -- toward the Portland area.

Just for context, these are the Oregon | and
routes. Each is about five mles. It -- because
this is a direct current -- or DC -- line, it
requires conversion fromthe alternating current,
which is what the system-- we are primarily famliar
with. 1It's converted to DC because it's -- that

makes it controll able and doesn't require a | ot of

Public Information Meeting, - November 18, 2025 Page 31
directional drill. So there is no trenching invol ved
in bringing it from-- fromwater to land. It's done
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mechani cal systens along the way. It can be
transported | ong di stance underwater.

So it's converted fromAC to DC at Big Eddy. It
continues as a DC line to, if you look at the |eft
figure, to a converter station in the Rivergate
I ndustrial area in Portland. It then is converted to
AC -- back into AC power. Proceeds underground for
two, three mles to the Wllanette. Once again,
there's a horizontal directional drill that goes
under the WIllanette and cones up on the existing
Har borton substation, which is owned by Portl and
Gener al .

So why are we doing this underwater? Well, we've
al ready tal ked about the difficulties of siting
overhead transm ssion lines. But in developing this
project, we considered a nunber of alternatives to
see if there was any possible alternative path or
conbi nation of paths that m ght be preferable to
using the river.

There is no avail able path through the gorge or
densely popul ated areas w t hout unacceptabl e | npacts.
| f you can inagi ne running an overhead power I|ine
t hrough the gorge, it seens rather unlikely.

We are asked occasionally, Wll, why don't you

just bury it in |1-84? Because it's not permtted, is
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the answer. The State DOT and the Federal Hi ghway
Adm ni stration does not allow for that kind of burial
for that kind of |length. They nmake occasi onal
exceptions for very short lengths. But for a
hundred-m le route, never mnd that it probably isn't
constructible. Even if it were, they wouldn't permt
it.

Same with State Route 14 with a few excepti ons.
If you were to try to use State Route 14 for the
entire length, it would be unconstructibl e because of
vari ous natural and manmade features, bridges,
tunnel s, rock slides. W counted over 300 potenti al
obstacles, which, if you had a thousand years, you
m ght be able to figure themall out, but there's no
contractor in the world who woul d do that.

So we wll say that for the small stretch of
State Route 14 that bypasses the dam that is a
constructible route. And as | said, we've been
consulting with the DOT to understand, you know, what
we need to do in order to do that.

Same is true for railroad rights-of-way on either
side of the river where in many cases they're so
constrained that you basically can't do it. And |
doubt if the railroads would be happy about shutting

down their operation while we figured out how to put
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the trench in the line.

So now we get to describing the project, itself.
This is an illustration -- it's not an illustration.
It's the real deal. But it's to show you what the
cabl e 1 ooks |ike.

| f you ook at the bottomleft figure, the cable
iIs installed in a bundle that is about 12 inches in
dianmeter. So this is a slice of an actual cable, not
a replica or a facsimle or to scale or anything |ike
that. It's also quite heavy, so... And as you can
see, it's about the size of an iPhone.

The two cabl es are bundl ed together wth one or
two fiber-optic cables. The point of the fiber-optic
Is not a coomercial enterprise. It's to effect
communi cati on between the two converter stations.

And it's used, for instance, to detect if there's a

probl em at either converter station. It's all
internal to the -- to the project.
The construction, itself -- and if you | ook at

the right-hand figure, this is a depiction of a
process that uses a machine called a hydroplow or a
jet plowthat is pulled by a barge or a ship very,
very slowy. In areally good day, you can nake
about a mle and a half.

Can we go back for a second.
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M5. BROWN: Red button?

MR. HOCKER: There we go. The
| eft - hand shows the cabl e bundl e being paid off the
back of the vessel. This is actually from our
Nept une project that we -- that we built.

And so going back to the other figure. It is
slowy lowered in a bundle into the machinery call ed
a hydroplow. A hydropl ow has an adj ustabl e bl ade.
And nost inportantly, the blade includes a nunber of
hi gh- pressure water jets. So you're not digging a
trench. You're basically jetting a trench that
enmul sifies the sedi nent.

The cable then sort of simultaneously lays into
the trench. And about 75 percent of the sedi nent
that rises up within the trench then settles back
down over the cable. So it's |ike one slow,
conti nuous process. There's no nechani cal dredging.
There's no nmassive scar on the riverbed. The trench,
itself, is perhaps two feet wide to accommopdate a
12-inch-di aneter cabl e bundl e.

As we said before, the in-water portion of the
project is only allowed during what's call ed work
wi hdows by the environnmental agencies, which is
typically in the winter nonths -- Novenber through

February, March -- and specified to avoid, as | said,
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spawni ng and migration of fish species.

W tal ked about converter stations. This is
part -- this is really the only aboveground
facilities involved in the project. This particular
photo is of a converter station in San Franci sco.
About 15 years ago, a project very simlar to this
was built with a converter station in San Franci sco,
a converter station in Pittsburgh, California, which
iIsin the East Bay, if you're famliar with it, and
then the cable runs under the San Franci sco Bay to
the converter station here in -- in San Franci sco.

A converter station property requirenent is about
five acres. And it is quite simlar to the type of
substation that you may see pretty nuch anywhere,

i ncluding, for instance, the Starr Conplex or the
Har bort on substation that we referred to.

Permts, approvals, studies. W're under the
jurisdiction of really three major entities. One of
themis EFSEC here in Washington. One of themis
EFSC, without the second "E," in Oregon. And the
other is the Arny Corps of Engineers.

So we need to get approvals of all three of those
entities. That is a conplex process. Although, we
have been through that before with our projects on

t he East Coast between New York and New Jersey, where
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we also had two state jurisdictions and the Arny
Cor ps over seei ng.

So it is conplex to get a coordinated revi ew
It's sonmething that | know that both EFSECs and the
corps are focusing on in order to have a review
that -- that can be as coordi nated as possible, but
again, still observing the interests of the various
states and of the federal waterway.

We al so need interconnection agreenents with the
Bonnevi |l | e Power Adm nistration and Portland General
Electric. That's part of the process. W have
virtually no private property involved where the
cable is. It's primarily on public land. And there
have been already a | arge nunber of very significant
studi es that we have conducted -- biol ogi cal
assessnents, sedi nent anal ysis, sedinent transport --
in other words to say, Well, okay, if you're plow ng
the sedinent, where does it go? Does it travel down
the river? Does it stir up anything you don't want
to travel ? That kind of thing.

We' ve conducted a geophysical survey of the river
bottom and done a | ot of nodeling for things |ike
magnetic fields and tenperature.

The point being that we're -- even though we

showed you earlier on what |ooked like just a line on

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC CRT informational meetings
Public Information Meeting, - November 18, 2025

Page 38

a piece of paper, in fact it's been sited very
carefully; for instance, to get as close to the

m ddl e of the river as possible, but to avoid the
navi gati on channel where possible. W want to get
away fromthe shoreline because of the cul tural
resources aspect near the historic shoreline.

We have napped the river bottomto know where
there are areas of let's say solid rock or steep side
sl opes where you can't run a jet plow So really the
siting has been anything but random |[t's been
pretty careful in terns -- and to avoid habitat
areas, foraging areas for fish, that kind of thing.

So the permtting update. | don't need to go
through this in detail, but we have obviously
subm tted our application to Washi ngton EFSEC. W
are in the process of conpleting our siting
application for Oregon EFSC. There are actually a
coupl e of Arnmy Corps of Engineers permts that are
required: Section 408, Section 404. W have filed
those. Those are under review. And a very, very
I nportant part of the process for the corps as well
as for the states is consultation with the various
Native tri bes.

And so that consultation process, which is called

Section 106, has been underway. And as | said
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before, we are trying as best we can and have been
able to engage with a nunber of the tribes. It's
really the federal governnent's responsibility to

| ead that consultation process. But we are
supporting that, and it's perfectly permssible for
us to engage ourselves as long as it's done in
coordination with the 106 process.

We al so hold what are call ed agency coordi nation
neeti ngs periodically when we have sonething to say,
when we have perforned a study that we think m ght be
interesting to the agencies or the tribes. So every
so often -- we've got one com ng up next nonth --
we -- and these are voluntary. They're not part of
the process. They're outside the process. But we've
had very good response fromthe agencies and the
tribes who sit in and | earn about where we are in our
studi es and what we have -- what we have found.

W do expect that the project, during
construction, will and can result in a variety of
benefits, including quite a few construction jobs
during the three-and-a-half-year process. W have
done this before, as | keep saying. And we
understand that we can't just conme in, run a line, go
away, W thout partnering with the comunities that

are affected, even if the effect isn't all that
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great.

So we're open to any sort of discussions with the
| ocalities where there may be an inpact or an effect,
to look for ways to partner or benefits that we can
hel p provi de.

So, with that, just to nention sone of our
devel opnent team PowerBridge has done this before
within the [ast 20 years or so on the East Coast.
Sun2o0 Partners is primarily a sol ar devel oper that
was out here, oh, about six, seven years ago trying
to see if there were opportunities to site a sol ar
farm east of the Cascades and di scovered very quickly
that the opportunity is only as good as the
transm ssion that will get it to the people who wll
actually use the energy. And so they cane to us,
know ng that, you know, we were in this kind of
busi ness, and asked us if we would take a | ook and
see if this was sonething that we think is feasible.

Next Era Transm ssion -- and we have a coupl e of
Next Era partners here tonight -- is the |eading
publicly traded utility and renewabl es devel oper.

And they are the ones that now own and operate the
Trans Bay Cable project, which is the one | talked
about in San Franci sco.

Next slide -- and | won't belabor this -- is just
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an illustration of the simlar marine transm ssion

t hat has happened throughout the world. And there's
nore being built that -- even beyond this particular
l'isting.

Qur projects include, they're called Neptune and
Hudson. Neptune has been running successfully for 20
years, or alnost 20 years. 18 years. And it's
simlar to this. It runs primarily underwater for

about 50 mles, down part of a river, and into the

Atlantic Ccean. It runs al nost exactly 24/7 -- 24
hours a day, seven days a week -- and supplies about
25 percent of the -- all the energy use, electric

power use, on Long Island.

The Hudson project simlarly connects two power
grids: One in New Jersey, one in New York. And it
serves -- it goes down the Hudson River, buried
beneath the Hudson River, and serves the governnent
agencies in New York City.

So just to conclude, as | keep saying, we are
experienced at this. W understand the need to be
respectful, to be open, to be transparent, and to try
to partner wwth the comunities that we nmay affect.
And that's what we're trying to do.

And al ways happy to answer any questions, not

just here. W do have a website, of course.
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Cascade -- no. Wat's it called?
CascadeTransm ssion.com There's a mechani sm where
you can send us questions, which we're happy to
answer. And we wel cone that.

So, with that, I'lIl turn it over to Chair
Beckett. Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the

t horough review And, with that, we wll nove into
our public coment portion of this neeting. And
Ms. Ganthamw ||l help nme know who has signed up.

| f you haven't signed up, you're welcone to, |
t hi nk, over here at this table. And ultimately |'I]
certainly call on you if you raise your hand and
woul d just ask that you state your nanme for the
record if you haven't already signed up.

So, wth that, let ne turn this, | believe, to
Ms. Ganthamto |l et us know our first speaker.

Again, we are trying to limt comments tonight to
three m nutes and wel cone your coments. |f you do
have questions that you would [ike to note that be
i ncluded for the record, we will, you know, capture
t hose questions to the degree that we can answer sone
toni ght wi thout, you know, cutting off other people
who want to speak. | w Il consider that, but

ultimaitely we follow the rule of three m nutes per

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC CRT informational meetings
Public Information Meeting, - November 18, 2025 Page 43

person here.

So, with that, Ms. G antham

M5. GRANTHAM Certainly, Chair.

The first speaker that | have signed up is a Fred
G eef.

CHAI R BECKETT: Wl cone, sir.

MR, GREEF: Thank you for this
opportunity.

CHAI R BECKETT: And if you would,
sir, if you mght stand just a little closer to the
mke. | don't knowif we can quite capture you for
our online audience as well as the other Council
menbers who are here to hear your testinony, so..

MR. GREEF: Al right. Thank you
for this opportunity.

For nme, one of the nobst inportant things with
this environnental inpact statenent, which | strongly
believe is needed and will be required, is the
no-action alternative.

| think there's many reasons why this project
shoul d not go forward. And I'mnot going -- |'ve
just found out about it. I -- 1 will be submtting a
| ot nore comments besides this tonight. But you
nmentioned there's nmagnetic field and tenperature

studies. And there's an awful |lot of recreation in
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this river: Fishing, wndsurfing, swwnmng. There's
not a lot of |akes near the river. This is where the
peopl e here live and recreate.

And there's such a thing as EMrs. | think we
need to do a full study of what are the inpacts of
people right in the proximty of that cable for |ong
periods of tinme or -- anyway, so let's just say
el ec- -- magnetic, electric EMrs, all that type of
thing really does need to be closely | ooked at.

Anot her thing would be -- so anyway, there's
going to be all kinds of recreation inpacts. People
m ght not want to be near those cables. W m ght
| ose our windsurfing on the river.

There may be ot her pat hways besi des the gorge.
The gorge is the shoreline of the greatest
significance in this whole Northwest region. | know
Ecol ogy's shoreline programw |l really be interested
in before they permt this. And | believe you should
talk to the scientists there as to what they think
the inpacts on the fish and all the different water
quality inpacts associated wth such disruption to
the nost inportant shoreline of statew de
significance.

There's -- there may be other ways to go from

east-west besides the gorge. There may be ot her
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pat hways t hrough the nountains, through railroads,
t hrough other hi ghways. You say they nmay not want
It. So, anyway, |I'mnot sure that you can't put it
where there's railroads or other highways. This is
the worst place for it.

| really don't have -- and | would |like to know
who t he power serves, is going -- so you nentioned
sonething |Ii ke 800,000 households. W want to be
sure it doesn't go to serve any data centers --
absolute zero -- if for sone reason this project does
have to go through, and that there's no nucl ear power
traveling through it that was created by any type of
nucl ear.

Whether it's Bill Gates or Amazon or Meta or
Googl e, they're all pronuclear now, and that is a
horrible thing. W in this state, Washington State,
know how horrible nuclear power is. W had the
Washi ngt on Public Power Supply System which was such
a disaster. W know the inpacts of -- we still have
not cleaned up with the river fromthat.

And then the other thing would be Bradford
| sland. There's been huge inpacts to this river.

The tribal nations, their whole way of life and
culture was destroyed by BPA and all the dans on this

river. Every -- there's things in EISs called
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curmul ative inpacts. The cunul ative inpacts are so
big already that doing this one nore thing that

trashes the sacred tribal |and and their fish use and

various -- it's just -- the inpact on fish.
Then dans can be renoved to help the fish. |If
t hose dans have -- if we get perm ssion to nove those

dans and fix the river for the fish and the recre- --
and what happens to your |line then? Does this nean
we can't renove those dans for the next 50 years? So
anyway, that's just a (unintelligible) --

CHAI R BECKETT: Appreciate your
coment .

MR GREEF: | -- I'mreally -- |
haven't even begun to get ny head around this thing
yet. But | think the inpacts are huge. And there's
no question an EISis required in this thing. It's
just -- that's all. Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you.

Ms. G ant ham

M5. GRANTHAM  The next speaker |
have is Mary Repar.

M5. REPAR. Thank you very nuch for
this opportunity. 1It's been a long tine since
Whistling RRdge. So |'m |l ooking forward to this.

You' re in the National -- Colunbia R ver CGorge
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to be a long, |ong haul.

| " massum ng that the gorge comm ssion al so has
sonething to say about this, wll have sonething to
say. | brought it up to themat the |ast neeting.

| made comrents on the Colunbia River Treaty.
|'"'msure many of you did. And it was a very
I nteresting process. And one of the things that the
Colunbia R ver Treaty says is very inportant, is
I nprovi ng the ecosystemis going to be the main aim
of nodernization. | don't see this project as
I nprovi ng the ecosystens that we have here.

NEPA is a very good process. It does have
cunul ative inpacts and effects, and those will have
to be anal yzed thoroughly and with anal ysis.

This little river is being asked to do a lot. W
have the Gol dendal e punp project that wants water
fromthe Colunbia. W have the EPA Superfund cl eanup
at Bradford Island. W have this, and we have that.
And, you know, this is asking too nmuch of our
environnment. The rights of nature needs to be
included in the analysis of this, and I'ma very huge
proponent of the rights of nature.

Al so tribal consultation and alternatives. I

Public Information Meeting, - November 18, 2025 Page 47
Nati onal Scenic Area. You've entered the twlight
zone for permtting process. So welcone. |It's going
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would i ke to see a lot nore alternatives. You know,
we' re always being asked to vote for all these
projects that are going to nake our |ives better and
| ower our utility costs. Well, I'mnot seeing it.
|"msorry. W have had sol ar projects that have
prom sed to | ower our costs. W have sone of the

hi ghest cost per kilowatt-hour here in this
community. |If you can't do sonething for our
communi ty, don't bother.

W -- you know, there's -- there's other
al ternatives that are nuch cl eaner and nuch | ess
I ntrusive on our environnment.

Al so, the gentleman before ne spoke about the
health effects. There are health effects from
transm ssion lines. There are health effects on
the -- on humans, and there are health effects on
wildlife.

So these are ny notes, which you'll be getting in
a different format, and I'mgoing to submt sonething
tonight. But | look forward to the NEPA EI'S, and |
think you wll find that this project is not for us.

Thank you very mnuch.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for your
coment .

| believe that's the |ast of our sign-ups ahead
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of tinme?

M5. GRANTHAM  Correct. That's all
| was able to get.

CHAI R BECKETT: GCkay. Wuld anyone
el se who's in the roomcare to nake a comment? And
also for those online, if you raise your hand, we
will recognize you. But let ne please first turn
this to our guests in the room

Yes, ma'am |f you'd please step up to the m ke.
State your nane for the record, please.

And then | saw one ot her hand, but we'll catch
you next .

Thank you agai n.

M5. ALLINGER. My nane is Debbie
Allinger. And | ama survivor of cancer and your
wonder ful overhead power lines, which | lived
underneath or close enough that it's actually
di sfigured ny body. And, therefore, you want to put
sone nore stuff in this area that's going to kill
people. 1've lost (unintelligible) and many famly
menbers to do wth cancer and power lines. And
there's no studies right now on what you're planning
on doing. You keep nentioning tribal. And there's
nore effect on nore than just tribal.

| believe you need to do nore research on your
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| and-use to actually find out who owns the |and. And
"1l bet you find out the governnent does not own it.
So, therefore, |I'masking for nore studies and
| ooking into how the governnent acquired the land if
they think it's theirs. Thank you.
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for your
coment .
Next up. Welcone.
MS. YAZDANI : Thank you.
H . Teryn Yazdani with Col unbia Ri verkeeper.
Thanks for being here. 1'll keep this super brief.

|"'mgoing to be speaking at the | and-use hearing as

wel | .

CHAI R BECKETT: Ckay.

M5. YAZDANI: But | just wanted to
ask specifically if you-all would be willing to

respond either tonight or in the near future to
sonething raised in a recent article fromthe

Col unbian. Quoting Julie Carter, staff fromthe

Col unbia Inter-Tribal Fish Comm ssion, specifically a
response to the statenent that the applicant is
asserting the project neets the recommendati ons and
goals for CRITFC s energy vision and that CRI TFC
openly stated that this is untrue.

| think it's extrenely inportant to address that
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openly, honestly. And claimng that a project is in
line wwth an energy vision when CRITFC is saying the
opposite is quite concerning in how you're addressing
this to the public and seens |i ke greenwashi ng. So
just wanted to put that out there. Thank you.
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the
I nput and comment.
O hers in the roomwho'd like to step forward and
add comrent ?
Let nme turn to our online audience just to nmake
sure if I"'mmssing a hand that's rai sed and buy
anot her coupl e seconds here for our in-room
partici pants.
Anyt hing el se --
M5. GRANTHAM W have --
CHAI R BECKETT: -- Ms. G anthan?
M5. GRANTHAM W have three hands
raised online. The first one |I'm seeing is Nathan
Baker .
CHAI R BECKETT: Nat han Baker, go
ahead.
MR. BAKER: Can you hear ne?
CHAI R BECKETT: W can. Thank you.
Pl ease proceed.

MR. BAKER: Thank you.
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Good evening, Chair Beckett and nenbers of the
Council. M nanme is Nathan Baker. |'ma senior
staff attorney with Friends of the Col unbia Gorge.
And for this hearing, 1'd |ike to speak about two
procedural issues.

The process is inportant. W want to nake sure
that the required procedures are properly foll owed
for this hearing and for EFSEC s process.

The first procedural issue is that this hearing
tonight is premature. The duty to conduct an
informational public hearing is triggered by, quote,
the recei pt of an application for site certification,
end quote. That's RCW 80.50. 090.

So that's triggered by an application. Draft
applications don't count. And this is clearly a
draft application. "Draft" is the first word on the
cover page. All of the PDF file nanmes of a draft
application are | abeled with the word "draft."” The
word "draft" is used nore than 200 tinmes in the
docunent, nostly in the footers.

The docunent contains netadata with internal
comments between the applicant's consultants and
| awyers. The EFSEC website links to all the draft
application materials and describes themas drafts.

This is a draft application that is not ready for
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prime time. EFSEC should not have schedul ed the
hearings until after it receives an application, not
a draft application. This hearing is premature, and
it is error to be holding this hearing on a draft
applicati on.

Regardl ess, if and when the applicant submts an
actual non-draft application or converts the draft
application to a final application, that wll be,
under the plain | anguage of the statute, the, quote,
recei pt of an application for site certification, end
gquote, which will obligate EFSEC to hold a new series
of heari ngs.

The ot her procedural issue involves the nenbers
of the Council. Last night, the appointee by Cark
County to the Council was never nentioned and did not
participate. W're pleased to see Comm ssi oner
Lecki e from Skamani a County here toni ght. But
toni ght there was no nention of the city of
St evenson. Under RCW 80.50. 030, Subsection 5, the
Cty of Stevenson is supposed to appoi nt a nenber of
t he Council who, quote, shall sit with the Council,
end quote, for hearings involving the site involving
that city.

And according to Section 2.1.3.2 of the draft

application, the project is proposed inside the city
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of St evenson.

That may al so be the case for the city

of North Bonneville. The project certainly goes
within a big section of the North Bonnevill e urban
area. We're not quite sure about the city limts.
But the statute requires city appointees to, quote,
sit with the Council, end quote, for this hearing.
Hol ding this hearing without their participation
viol ates the statute.
In conclusion, if and when the applicant submts
a non-draft final application, EFSEC will then need
to schedul e informational public hearings in each of
the three counties. The relevant county and city
appoi ntees to the Council will need to sit with the
Council for these hearings. Thank you very nuch.
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you,
M. Baker.
Ms. Grantham who's up next?
M5. GRANTHAM  The next speaker is

Kat e Mur phy.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you.

M5. MJURPHY: Good day. This is
Kate Murphy. |I'mwth Col unbia Ri verkeeper.

Can | ask for a point of clarification, Chair,
before | start?

CHAI R BECKETT: Sur e.
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M5. MJURPHY: | just -- | just --
CHAI R BECKETT: Yes, you nay.
M5. MURPHY: -- wanted to clarify.

In yesterday's neeting, we were able to ask

proj ect-specific questions, and | think | heard Chris
mention that that would be okay. So can | ask -- can
| get an answer -- a response to a question?

CHAI R BECKETT: |If you go ahead and
state your question for the record, and then we'l]|
see where we're at on tine.

M5. MURPHY: Ch. GCkay. G eat.

CHAIR BECKETT: U timtely any
Iterative answers that | believe, you know, are
hel pful in the nonent, at the sane tine ultimately,
that's at the latitude of the chair. And out of

respect to the group, certainly want to conti nue

to --

M5. MURPHY: Ckay. Good.

CHAI R BECKETT: -- proceed here,
SO -- but please note your question for the record
and your other comments, and we'll start this now.

M5. MJURPHY. Thank you.
|'d start by lifting up Teryn's concern about
potential m srepresentation for CRITFC. And ny

gquestion directly is about what type of nodeling and
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research and testing has been done specific to the
Ceorgi a-Pacific pulp and paper mlIl in Canmas,

Washi ngton, which is a known contam nated site that
contains total petroleum hydrocarbons, it contains
pol ycyclic aromati c hydrocarbons, polychlorinated

bi phenyls, netals, dioxins, and things |Iike that, and
it's got an order for cleanup.

So I"mjust curious if you could speak to that a
little bit about how that's been addressed in the
project plan. Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the
question. | amactually going to ask that we not
answer that question in the nonent, given -- | can
appreciate the conplexity of it and including from
ot her past experience on certain cleanups. So |
think we'd all be probably best served if we handl ed
that nore formally. So thank you.

M5. MURPHY: Could | just ask
specifically: Has that site been considered based on
the contam nation there? That would be hel pful.

CHAI R BECKETT: Your questions are
being noted for the record, so that's ultimately
really the core function.

M5. MURPHY: Oh. Ckay. So we're
not doing the sanme kind of Q & A tonight.
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CHAI R BECKETT:  Yeah.

M5. MURPHY: Ckay. Then | wll
al so ask for the record to have sone nore specific
expl anati on about, when it says that it's buried
wi thin the sedinent of the riverbed, there's a | ot of
bedrock. And it seens that that woul dn't be possible
for the entire hundred mles. So how -- howis it
bei ng negoti ated through sone of those areas where
there m ght not be the deeper sedinent?

That's it. Thank you.

CHAIR BECKETT: And I'msorry. Can
you clarify. Was there a specific section of the
river that you were noting was the area that was nore

predom nant in bedrock or just in general ?

M5. MURPHY: Well, | nean, they
did -- Chris nentioned they've done a whol e scan of
the river, so they -- that would probably be nore

informative than ny input. But | think throughout
the entire hundred mles, | would be interested in
that. Thank you.
CHAI R BECKETT: Understood. Thank
you.
| think we nay be close. Seeing one nore.
M5. GRANTHAM We have one nore.

Excuse nme if | pronounce it incorrectly. Juan Monje.
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MR. MONJE: You did connect ne.
"' m Juan Monje. | have only -- | have sone concern,
but | can -- for the record, | can do two question.

One: If this project is neant to serve
residential -- residential and regional clean-energy
goals, why is the main converter station |ocated in
the Rivergate industrial area, where multiple |arge
data center are being planned?

Anot her one question is: PowerBridge says that
you W ll respect tribal concerns. Can you |ist which
tribal nations have formally consented and provide
copies of those letters, please?

That's it for now Thank you.

CHAI R BECKETT: Very well. Thank
you, M. Mbonje.

And | see that you had posted a question in the
chat, and that's been responded to. | think, if we
can nmake sure that we have the contact information if
you Wi sh to be contacted in case we need to follow up
just to clarify anything here in the record, that
woul d be hel pful. And you can paste that in chat in
this instance. Thank you again for your
partici pation.

| don't see any other hands raised. Are there

others in our audience this evening who wish to
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speak? Pl ease cone forward.

MR, HECHT: Hello. M nane is
Martin Hecht, and |'m a 35-year resident of
St evenson, WAshi ngt on.

And | -- ny concern is primarily that this, |
guess, was billed as a public information neeting,
but | don't think it was very well publicized. |
nmean, |'mglad that there's other nei ghbors and ot her
interested parties here. But | really found out
about it randomy, like, last night and tried to get
sone word out today that, you know, that this neeting
was happeni ng.

| find it very interesting and intriguing, this
project. |'d love to learn nore. But if you're
going to have a public information neeting, | think
you need to try a little harder to, you know, engage
the public.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the
input. And | certainly appreciate that. | think we
all share, you know, the interest in achieving what
you' ve stated. And obviously, you know,
conmuni cati ng out and finding everyone that wants to
be found is sonetines a challenge, but ultimtely
it's one we need to stick with. And | can just

assure you that we will continue to do so. And
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wherever we can inprove, we wll, wll be our pledge,
SO -- but thank you for stepping forward and cal ling
t hat out.

O her hands or anyone else in the audi ence?
Ckay. Then | am going to conclude our public
i nformati onal hearing and neeting at 6:54 p.m
(Meeting concl uded at
6:54 p.m)
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STATE COF WASHI NGTON )

)
County of Pierce )

That the foregoing
Washi ngton St ate Energy

I, John M S. Botel ho, CCR RPR,

ss a certified court reporter

in the State of Washi ngton, do
hereby certify:

public informational neeting of the
Facility Site Evaluation Council was

conducted in ny presence and concl uded on Novenber 18, 2025,
and thereafter was transcri bed under ny direction; that the
transcript is a full, true and conplete transcript of the
said neeting, transcribed to the best of ny ability;

That | amnot a re

ative, enployee, attorney or counsel

of any party to this nmatter or relative or enployee of any

such attorney or counsel

and that I amnot financially

interested in the said matter or the outcone thereof;

IN W TNESS WHERECF,

| have hereunto set ny hand

this 2nd day of Decenber, 2025.

/s/John M S. Botel ho, CCR RPR
Certified Court Reporter No. 2976
(Certification expires 5/26/2026.)
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,

 2   November 18, 2025, at 710 Southwest Rock Creek Drive,

 3   Stevenson, Washington, at 5:33 p.m., the following

 4   public informational meeting of the Washington State

 5   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

 6   wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Good evening,

11   everybody.  Again, my name's Kurt Beckett.  I'm chair

12   of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council here

13   for Washington State and want to welcome you-all this

14   evening, especially those of you who have taken your

15   time to join us here this evening.  Certainly want to

16   thank those who are online as well.

17       Other members of our Council who will be

18   introduced here shortly are also online in addition

19   to members of the public.

20       So, again, welcome.  And this is the first of two

21   meetings tonight.  We're beginning this evening with

22   the public informational meeting as required by state

23   law.  The purpose of the first meeting is to provide

24   an overview of the EFSEC review process and, in

25   particular, the overview of the project, itself, the
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 1   Cascade Renewable Transmission Project.

 2       We will then take public comment from our both

 3   in-room and online attendees.  And we'll talk a

 4   little bit more about that when we get there on

 5   timing and process.  It is about three minutes per

 6   person.  Just a heads-up.  And, again, we'll take

 7   online comments as well.

 8       Please know that the purpose of tonight's meeting

 9   is really to both, again, begin socializing the

10   details of the project with the public, but also as

11   you digest that, this evening if you have comments of

12   what EFSEC Council as well as staff should consider

13   in the review of the application, whether that's a

14   question you think that needs to be answered or a

15   perspective that you want to share, that's the

16   purpose of tonight's public comment, is to capture

17   those things.

18       Please know, as we start this process, ultimately

19   there are many different comment periods along the

20   way that we won't spend a lot of time on tonight, but

21   by no means is this kind of the only time that you'll

22   have a chance to understand the project and provide

23   your input.  But it is an important part so that we

24   capture any initial thoughts you may have as we then

25   go further into the official process.
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 1       The second meeting, which will begin immediately

 2   after our public comment concludes -- and that is

 3   specifically about the land-use consistency of the

 4   project and, in this case, how that project compares

 5   to land-use code in Skamania County.  And so there

 6   will be a brief presentation on that, and then

 7   comments will be taken on the land-use issue only

 8   during the land-use consistency hearing.

 9       So, with that, let me thank you-all again for

10   participating.

11       And if Ms. Grantham would please call the roll.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.

13       Department of commerce.

14                     MS. OSBORNE:  Hi.  Elizabeth

15   Osborne, present.

16                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

17   Ecology.

18                     MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.

19                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

20   and Wildlife.

21                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin, present

22   virtually.

23                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

24   Natural Resources.

25                     MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present
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 1   virtually.

 2                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

 3   Transportation Commission.

 4                     MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,

 5   present virtually from the UTC/EFSEC offices in

 6   Lacey, Washington.

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

 8       Moving on to our local government.  For this

 9   project and Skamania County, Asa Leckie.

10                     MR. LECKIE:  Yeah.  Asa Leckie,

11   online.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  "Asa."  Thank you.

13       Moving on to Assistant Attorney General Jon

14   Thompson.

15                     MR. THOMPSON:  I am present online.

16                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law

17   Judge Russell Mikow.

18                     JUDGE MIKOW:  Present online.

19                     MS. GRANTHAM:  For Council staff

20   here, I am going to call those who are anticipated to

21   possibly speak tonight.

22       Sonia Bumpus.

23                     MS. BUMPUS:  Here.

24                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.

25                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.
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 1                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.

 2                     MS. BELKINA:  Present.

 3                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.

 4                     MR. CAPUTO:  Present.

 5                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.

 6                     MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.

 8                     MS. McLEAN:  Present online.

 9                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

10       And is there anyone here for the counsel for the

11   environment?

12                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah

13   Reyneveld is here.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

15       Chair, there is a quorum.

16                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very

17   much.

18       I'm going to ask our applicant team to introduce

19   themselves briefly.  And as a heads-up to our counsel

20   member, I was going to next call on you just to

21   provide a brief word of the role of the counsel of

22   the environment, and then I would turn this soon to

23   Sonia Bumpus, our director of EFSEC, that will begin

24   our staff presentation for the EFSEC process.

25       So heads-up on that, counsel for the environment
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 1   and first over to our applicant for brief

 2   introductions.

 3                     MR. HOCKER:  My name is Chris

 4   Hocker with Cascade Renewable Transmission.  With me

 5   at the desk here is Susan Brown, a colleague.  And we

 6   have other folks in the audience are representing our

 7   development partners and our consultant, HDR.  So

 8   there's probably five or six who will be happy to

 9   answer questions, I guess, beforehand obviously and

10   afterwards if there are any.

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

12       Counsel Reyneveld.

13                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Hello,

14   everyone.  My name is Sarah Reyneveld, and I'm here

15   tonight on behalf of counsel for the environment,

16   Yuriy Korol, who has been assigned to this project

17   but had a conflict this evening.

18       Pursuant to RCW 80.50.080, when the counsel

19   receives site application, the attorney general, Nick

20   Brown, appoints an assistant attorney general to

21   serve as counsel for the environment.  And the

22   purpose of counsel for the environment, per the

23   statute, is to represent the public and its interests

24   in protecting the quality of the environment

25   throughout the siting process so that the -- our
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 1   counsel for the environment fully participates

 2   throughout that process.

 3       So thank you for the opportunity for a brief

 4   introduction.  Again, Yuriy Korol has been assigned

 5   to this project, and should be present tomorrow

 6   evening.  Thank you.

 7                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much

 8   for the overview.

 9       And, with that, let me pass this to Director

10   Bumpus to kick us off on the EFSEC overview process.

11   Thank you.

12                     MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

13   Beckett.

14       As Chair Beckett said, my name is Sonia Bumpus.

15   I am the executive director of the Energy Facility

16   Site Evaluation Council, or EFSEC, as we say.

17       Wanted to first say thank you for being here

18   tonight.  We really welcome your attendance and

19   participation.  It means a lot to us.  I know

20   everybody's busy.  And so you taking the time to come

21   out and meet us, we really appreciate that.

22       A couple of remarks before we get started with

23   the PowerPoint presentation that EFSEC staff will

24   provide about our process.  And Chair Beckett talked

25   about this a little bit already.  The reason that
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 1   we're here tonight is to hear from you about this

 2   application that was filed with EFSEC.  It's also to

 3   hold the land-use consistency hearing that's going to

 4   follow this public informational hearing.

 5       When EFSEC receives an application for site

 6   certification, when someone wants to build an energy

 7   facility that falls under EFSEC jurisdiction, EFSEC's

 8   required to hold a public informational hearing and

 9   take comment on the application.  And then we also

10   have to do a land-use consistency hearing.  But

11   that's not all there is to the process.  There's

12   other steps that follow that you'll hear about in the

13   PowerPoint presentation.

14       They include the environmental review under the

15   State Environmental Policy Act.  And if the project

16   doesn't qualify for what we call expedited

17   processing, then EFSEC is required to also hold an

18   adjudicative hearing.  So there's a lot of steps.

19       The reason I'm telling you all this right now,

20   even though you're going to get a nutshell

21   presentation of it shortly, is because there are a

22   lot of steps ahead of us in terms of engaging with

23   EFSEC and providing input into the process, and they

24   all have -- these different parts of the process all

25   serve a different role.
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 1       Tonight when you come up and you talk with us

 2   about this application, what it's going to do is it's

 3   going to help inform our review of the application

 4   that was just filed.  And so as the SEPA responsible

 5   official of EFSEC, I'm going to be looking at those

 6   comments to help inform what I'm looking at when I'm

 7   interpreting the information in the application.  And

 8   what we hope to do is get to a point where we

 9   consider the application to be complete enough to be

10   able to move towards the next part of the process.

11       So with that being said, I encourage you to also

12   sign up with us, if you haven't already, for

13   notifications about the project and EFSEC activities.

14   Because moving forward from here, EFSEC will be

15   talking with the Council at our monthly Council

16   meetings.  They're held on the third Wednesday of

17   each month.  And there'll be a project update about

18   this specific application at each one of those

19   meetings.

20       So it's a good way to stay apprised as to what's

21   developing with the application review, public

22   meetings that we're planning for the future parts of

23   the process.

24       So thank you for coming out, and I am now going

25   to pass this over to our siting specialist so that
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 1   they can introduce themselves and start the

 2   presentation.

 3                     MS. BELKINA:  Welcome, everybody.

 4   And thank you, all, for coming to participate this

 5   evening.  My name is Maria Belkina.  I'm the lead

 6   site specialist for EFSEC for this project.  And I

 7   would like to introduce my colleague Lance Caputo.

 8   He will be giving a short presentation on the EFSEC

 9   process for those who are unfamiliar with our agency.

10                     MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Maria.

11       As Maria mentioned, my name is Lance Caputo.

12   I've been assigned to assist Maria.  She is the lead

13   siting specialist on this project.  And I am going to

14   go through a very hopefully brief overview of the

15   agency and our process.

16       A little bit about the history of the EFSEC

17   agency.  EFSEC was created in 1970 for the siting of

18   thermal power plants.  The intent was to create a

19   one-stop permitting agency for large energy

20   facilities.  EFSEC is comprised of state and local

21   government members who review each application before

22   voting to make a council recommendation to the

23   governor.

24       If recommending approval, the package to the

25   governor includes a draft site certification

0015

 1   agreement, or what we call a SCA, which defines all

 2   preconstruction, construction, and operation plans.

 3   If approved by the governor's office, the decision

 4   preempts all other state or local regulations.

 5       EFSEC is comprised of members from several

 6   different state-level agencies.  The chairperson is

 7   appointed by the governor, and there are standing

 8   members from five other agencies appointed by those

 9   agencies to sit on the Council.

10       The current Council is made up of Chairman Kurt

11   Beckett, Blake Nelson from the Department of Ecology,

12   Nate Pamplin from the Department of Fish and

13   Wildlife, Elizabeth Osborne from the Department of

14   Commerce, Maverick Ryan from the Department of

15   Natural Resources, and Brian Rybarik from the

16   Utilities and Transportation Commission.

17       There are additional agencies that may elect to

18   appoint a Council member during the review of a new

19   application.  These agencies are the Department of

20   Agriculture, the Department of Transportation, the

21   Department of Health, and the Military Department.

22       The local county shall also appoint a Council

23   member for the review of a new application.  For

24   Skamania County, Asa Leckie -- if I said your name

25   correctly, sir -- is the county representative.  If a
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 1   proposal -- if a proposal project is located at a

 2   port, the port may also appoint a nonvoting member.

 3       Multiple energy generations -- generation

 4   facilities fall under EFSEC's jurisdiction.  Some

 5   projects, such as thermal power plants with less than

 6   350 megawatts and nuclear generation for the purpose

 7   of generating electricity, are required to be sited

 8   through EFSEC, while others -- such as wind, solar,

 9   green hydrogen, storage, or clean energy

10   manufacturing -- can opt in our process at any size.

11       Transmission lines greater than 115 kilovolts can

12   also opt in, while lines greater than 500 kilovolts

13   alternating current or 300 kilovolts direct current

14   are required.  Thresholds for pipelines and

15   refineries that may be sited through EFSEC are found

16   in the Revised Codes of Washington, or RCW,

17   80.50.060.

18       Multiple energy generation -- thank you.  My

19   first mistake.  Somebody keep track for me.  I

20   appreciate how many mistakes I make.

21       Here is a map of the facilities that are

22   certified or have applied for certification under

23   EFSEC's jurisdiction.  You can see marked in green,

24   there are seven operating facilities, including two

25   natural gas facilities, one nuclear facility, two
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 1   solar facilities and two wind facilities.

 2       The blue marks indicate the four additional

 3   facilities that are approved but are not yet

 4   constructed.

 5       The clear circle is the one facility in the

 6   process of being decommissioned.  EFSEC is currently

 7   reviewing seven projects marked by yellow, including

 8   this Cascade Renewable Transmission project.

 9       Here is a flowchart showing the general process

10   an applicant will go through when they submit an

11   application to EFSEC.  I know it looks daunting, but

12   please bear with us.

13       There are yellow boxes on the chart that indicate

14   specific milestones in the process where the Council

15   and staff seek public input.  You can see that there

16   are multiple processes that happen concurrently when

17   EFSEC is reviewing an application.  The permitting

18   process, outlined across the top row, involves

19   identifying and preparing applicable environmental

20   permits.  The land-use and adjudicative process runs

21   through the middle.  And the State Environmental

22   Policy Act, or what we call SEPA, process is shown

23   along the bottom.  All these processes ultimately

24   feed into the Council's recommendation made to the

25   governor.

0018

 1       Where an adjudication is required following the

 2   land-use consistency hearing, an order is issued to

 3   commence proceedings and initiate intervention.

 4   Here, members of the public wishing to participate in

 5   the adjudication must identify themselves and their

 6   issues in writing.  There are prehearing conferences

 7   through which parties are granted intervention status

 8   and issues are identified.  Exhibits and testimony

 9   are provided, and cross-examination is conducted.

10       After this, the Council looks at all the

11   information in the adjudication record and

12   deliberates.  Finally, the Council develops an order

13   establishing their findings of fact and conclusions

14   of law from the information provided throughout these

15   proceedings.

16       For every proposed project, a SEPA review is

17   performed.  When a determination of significance and

18   a decision to prepare an environmental impact

19   statement -- or what we call an EIS -- is made,

20   public comments are taken on the scope of the EIS.

21       After public comment for scoping, the SEPA

22   responsible official -- here, our agency director

23   Sonia Bumpus -- determines the scope of the EIS.  A

24   draft EIS is prepared and issued with a minimum

25   30-day public comment period, after which the final
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 1   EIS is prepared and released.

 2       In some instances, a determination of

 3   nonsignificance, or a DNS, or a mitigated

 4   determination of nonsignificance, an MDNS, is issued.

 5   If the SEPA responsible official determines that a

 6   project meets the criteria of a DNS or MDNS, an EIS

 7   is not required.

 8       This is an alphabet we have here going.

 9       In this process, determination is noticed to the

10   public, and there is a minimum 15-day public comment

11   period on a mitigated determination of

12   nonsignificance while a determination of significance

13   requires no comment period.

14       Following the conclusion of these separate

15   avenues of application review, the Council develops

16   its recommendation to the governor, tying together

17   the information brought forth throughout the entire

18   application review process.  If a project is issued a

19   mitigated determination of nonsignificance and

20   received a determination of land-use consistency, it

21   may qualify for an expedited review process.

22       To be considered for expedited processing, an

23   applicant must make the request in writing.  If the

24   project meets the two aforementioned criteria for

25   land-use consistency and a MDNS, the Council can
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 1   grant expedited process review.

 2       In this expedited process, the adjudication step

 3   is not required, and an environmental impact

 4   statement is not prepared.  Applications granted

 5   expedited processing do hold an additional public

 6   hearing prior to the Council's recommendation to hear

 7   any conditions that may be considered to impose on

 8   the project, similar to a conditional use process

 9   hearing.  The Council prepares their recommendation

10   to the governor in an expedited time frame under this

11   process.

12       Now, EFSEC is also the issuing agency for any

13   applicable state and local governmental permits a

14   facility may require, including water quality and air

15   quality permits as they may apply.  The permits are

16   identified in the final package with the Council's

17   recommendation to the governor.

18       If an application is approved by the governor,

19   EFSEC then has oversight of the environmental

20   compliance for the life of the facility through

21   decommissioning.  EFSEC has standing contracts with

22   applicable state agencies that assist in monitoring

23   and enforcement of conditions either in the site

24   certification agreement, identified permits, or the

25   environmental impact statement or the mitigated
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 1   determination of nonsignificance.  EFSEC's

 2   enforcement authority extends to the issuance of any

 3   penalties that may apply.

 4       At the conclusion of the Council's review of an

 5   application, a recommendation is made to the governor

 6   to either approve or reject the application.  This

 7   initiates a 60-day window within which the governor

 8   will then either approve the application, reject the

 9   application, or remand the application back to the

10   Council for reconsideration.  Any application that is

11   rejected by the governor is a final decision on that

12   application.

13       As previously mentioned, EFSEC oversees

14   facilities under its jurisdiction through

15   decommissioning.  Prior to the start of construction

16   of approved projects, an initial site restoration

17   plan is required.  Then at the end of the life

18   expectancy of the facility, prior to the start of

19   decommissioning, a detailed site restoration plan is

20   required.

21       These plans must be reviewed and approved by the

22   Council.  The project must also provide financial

23   assurance for the decommissioning in the event that

24   the project is no longer able to complete the

25   process.  Assuming the project decommissions while
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 1   still on the full control of the developer, these

 2   costs would be paid by the certificate holder

 3   directly.

 4       And before I conclude the presentation, I'd like

 5   to mention that our partners in the project are

 6   representing the State of Oregon, the senior siting

 7   analyst with the Oregon Department of Energy and the

 8   Energy Facility Siting Council, is Christopher Clark.

 9   He's here tonight.  So if you have questions about

10   the Oregon half of the project, the gentleman over

11   there with the beard.  He's available for you.

12       So thank you for joining us this evening.  We

13   appreciate your time and interest in the Cascade

14   Renewable Transmission Project.  Our work is closely

15   coordinated with the Oregon Department of Energy and

16   the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, ensuring that both

17   states and federal agencies have aligned in the

18   environmental permitting process.

19       This wraps up my presentation for the evening.

20   But before I end, I'd like to remind everyone how

21   they may submit comments for this project.

22       You may send in written comments by e-mail to

23   comments@efsec.wa.gov; by postal mail to our office

24   at 621 Woodland Square Loop, PO Box 43172, Olympia,

25   Washington; or by phone at (360) 664-1345.
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 1       When EFSEC is in an active comment period

 2   associated with a specific milestone, comments may

 3   also be submitted to our online comment database at

 4   comments.efsec.wa.gov.  All comments received,

 5   regardless of timing or method of delivery, will be

 6   saved with the project record and available to the

 7   Council and staff for review.

 8       Thank you for bearing with me.  And I'll turn it

 9   back over to Maria?  Sonia Bumpus, our director.

10                     MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Lance.

11   Really appreciate it.

12       Just a couple of things.  And Lance went over

13   the -- how to submit comments, so I won't go back

14   over that, other than just to say, so using an

15   example from the presentation, Lance talked about, if

16   we were to prepare an EIS, we would make a

17   determination of significance.

18       And he also mentioned that there's no comment, no

19   public comment period required when I issue a

20   determination of significance.  However, there's this

21   part of SEPA, called scoping, that we're required to

22   do.

23       So if we were going to make a determination of

24   significance, we would need to go through a scoping

25   period.  And there's a comment period that we're
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 1   required to do.  And what that comment period does is

 2   it gives us a chance to hear from you as far as what

 3   you think needs to be analyzed or considered in that

 4   environmental impact statement.

 5       And so that is exactly what EFSEC would call a

 6   comment period.  So if you're on that mailing list

 7   that I talked about earlier, you would get noticed,

 8   Hey, EFSEC is going to be starting scoping.  We've

 9   issued a determination of significance, and we're

10   inviting you to provide comments to us about the

11   scope of the environmental impact statement.

12       So just to give you a real-world example of one

13   of those milestones that Lance highlighted in his

14   presentation.  Thank you.

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, all.

16       As we move to the PowerPoint, let me make a brief

17   word.  A PowerPoint from the applicants.  I think we

18   can cue that up.  We will move to the project

19   overview, which is one of the most critical parts

20   tonight in addition to your input.

21       I did want to also highlight again Commissioner

22   Leckie, Asa Leckie, who is serving on this project

23   council for the Cascade Renewable Transmission

24   Project -- always appreciate busy officials that are

25   also now dual -- dual-hatting and providing their
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 1   presence on behalf of Skamania County on the project

 2   council.

 3       So, Commissioner, we welcome you to this process

 4   and appreciate your making time for it and those who

 5   you represent.

 6       Also wanted to echo Lance's comments of

 7   highlighting our partner from the Department of

 8   Energy in Oregon.  That's EFSC with one "E," and

 9   we're EFSEC with two Es, is one way to keep that

10   clear, so to speak.

11       So, with that, over to you, sir.

12                     MR. HOCKER:  All right.

13                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

14                     MR. HOCKER:  Thank you.  And thank

15   you to EFSEC and particularly to the folks who turned

16   out tonight.  We appreciate the interest.

17       My name is Chris Hocker.  The company I work for

18   is called PowerBridge.  My colleague Susan Brown is

19   next to me.  And like I said before, we had some

20   project representatives throughout the audience here

21   who'd be happy to answer informal questions.

22       The project that we're going to describe is

23   innovative in the sense that it's a technology that

24   has not been used widely in the Pacific Northwest,

25   but it is a technology that has been used on several
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 1   occasions throughout the world.  And the company I

 2   work for, PowerBridge, has actually developed and

 3   built and currently operates two such projects

 4   involving underwater electric transmission.

 5       Before I go any further, I do want to acknowledge

 6   that we're well aware of the long-standing thousands

 7   of years of occupancy by indigenous peoples of the

 8   region, and we are working very diligently to engage

 9   with tribes and understand their concerns.  So, you

10   know, I wanted to make sure that you knew that we're

11   very much appreciative of that and it's an ongoing

12   effort that's been going on for several years.

13       So I hopefully won't take too much time.  But I

14   do want to give you a pretty thorough overview.

15       The project begins in The Dalles, Oregon, and

16   ends in the Rivergate section of Portland.

17       What's next?

18       It is about a hundred miles in length, of which

19   about 80 is underwater.  When we say underwater, we

20   mean buried 10 to 15 feet below the sediment of the

21   river.  It's not lying on the bottom of the river.

22       It avoids negative impacts associated with

23   overhead transmission lines.  It will probably take

24   about three and a half years to build.  The

25   installation of the cable underwater would only occur
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 1   during winter months to avoid sensitive periods for

 2   migration and spawning of fish.

 3       And like I said before, this is a technology that

 4   has been in use for quite some time and continues to

 5   be in use around the world.

 6       Next.

 7       Just as sort of a backdrop:  A few years ago,

 8   both states, Washington and Oregon, passed

 9   legislation that mandated a sort of a stair-step

10   process of achieving 100 percent clean energy in

11   their states.  And the first milestone under those

12   mandates actually occurs in 2030, and then it

13   ratchets up from there.

14       So it is a state mandate to move to clean energy.

15   The issue, however, is that most of the clean energy

16   resources exist east of the Cascades.  And most of

17   the load, the people who actually use the power, is

18   west of the Cascades.  So the dilemma is how do you

19   get enough transmission to move the energy from east

20   to the west.

21       Next.

22       Right now, in the region, Washington and Oregon,

23   the existing transmission system is very much

24   constrained.  It's at its limit.  Not every single

25   hour of every day.  But at peak periods, the
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 1   transmission system is under great constraint.  And

 2   this isn't just us saying this.  It's something that

 3   has been more and more widely acknowledged throughout

 4   the region, as you can see by, you know, some of the

 5   headlines shown here.

 6       So there's very little available east-to-west

 7   transmission capacity.  There's a transmission grid

 8   that was built in the '60s and '70s primarily by BPA.

 9   Putting in new overhead high-capacity transmission

10   lines is very challenging.  There have been a couple

11   of efforts to do that that have failed.

12       And so we have this, as I said, highly

13   constrained transmission system that needs to be

14   addressed one way or the other.

15       Next.

16       Now, I realize this is not the most intuitive

17   slide, but I'm showing it because it illustrates how

18   energy flows and how the project, even though it

19   begins in Oregon and it terminates in Oregon, really

20   doesn't -- it's irrespective of geography.  And the

21   benefits to Washington are every bit as evident as

22   the benefits to Oregon.

23       The blue kind of semicircles illustrate the

24   current main energy flows from east of the Cascades

25   to the west.  The little circles are planned and very
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 1   early-stage planning that BPA and others are thinking

 2   of building.  And the reason they need to build those

 3   improvements in the red and the black circles and the

 4   blue circles is because the system works as a whole.

 5       So if you're bringing energy from sources in the

 6   east, you don't just string a line and from Point A

 7   to Point B.  Everything you do has an impact on the

 8   existing system, so that if you bring it over to a

 9   point, then that's going to affect how the other

10   parts of the system need to be upgraded to make it

11   all work.  Otherwise, all you're doing is moving

12   constraints.

13       Our project, which is the green line, bypasses

14   those constraints by going directly from the Big Eddy

15   substation in The Dalles to the load center in

16   greater Portland.  From there, it then escapes the

17   constraints and is able to flow north and south.  So

18   by eliminating, or I should say reducing -- because

19   it's not the only solution -- by reducing those

20   constraints, you benefit the whole system in both

21   states.

22       So as we said, we've, you know, managed to draw a

23   certain amount of attention as we've been filing

24   permits and dealing with folks on both sides of the

25   river.  We are part of the needed solution, which is
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 1   really probably three/four, at least, thousand

 2   megawatts' worth of transmission capacity.  What we

 3   propose is 1100 megawatts.  So it's a significant

 4   portion of meeting the constraints.  It's not the

 5   only solution, but it's one that we know can be

 6   implemented.

 7       So it's hard to depict a hundred-mile

 8   transmission line, but this is essentially the

 9   overview of the project that, like I said, begins in

10   The Dalles.  And, by the way, that complex, if you're

11   familiar with it -- it's called the Starr Complex --

12   is a very large BPA set of facilities, including a

13   large substation called Big Eddy.

14       And the transmission that moves east from --

15   further east into The Dalles, into Starr, is not

16   constrained.  The constrained area is basically the

17   hundred miles between Big Eddy and here.

18       So the green is the underwater portion.  The

19   yellow is the on-land portion.  As you can see, the

20   only on-land portion affecting this specific local

21   area is the bypass of the Bonneville Dam, which we're

22   going to show there.  There we go.

23       So the idea would be to take the cable out of the

24   river and land it in Stevenson.  The landing is

25   affected by a technology called horizontal
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 1   directional drill.  So there is no trenching involved

 2   in bringing it from -- from water to land.  It's done

 3   with a drill.  Conduits are pulled through.  The

 4   depth of the drill can be 40, 50 feet below the

 5   ground surface.  It comes back up onto land.  And

 6   then the cable is trenched.  And it's conventional

 7   trenching about four feet deep, as I'm sure we're all

 8   familiar with for cables and pipelines and things

 9   like that.  Water lines, that kind of thing.

10       It primarily follows State Route 14.  That little

11   jog on Ashes Lake Road is at the suggestion of the

12   Washington DOT, Department of Transportation.  It

13   proceeds around the dam, primarily on Route 14, till

14   you get onto federal government property over by the

15   dam, over to where you see the kind of the purple

16   slash there, which is the other horizontal

17   directional drill that gets it back into the water

18   and on down toward -- toward the Portland area.

19       Just for context, these are the Oregon land

20   routes.  Each is about five miles.  It -- because

21   this is a direct current -- or DC -- line, it

22   requires conversion from the alternating current,

23   which is what the system -- we are primarily familiar

24   with.  It's converted to DC because it's -- that

25   makes it controllable and doesn't require a lot of
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 1   mechanical systems along the way.  It can be

 2   transported long distance underwater.

 3       So it's converted from AC to DC at Big Eddy.  It

 4   continues as a DC line to, if you look at the left

 5   figure, to a converter station in the Rivergate

 6   industrial area in Portland.  It then is converted to

 7   AC -- back into AC power.  Proceeds underground for

 8   two, three miles to the Willamette.  Once again,

 9   there's a horizontal directional drill that goes

10   under the Willamette and comes up on the existing

11   Harborton substation, which is owned by Portland

12   General.

13       So why are we doing this underwater?  Well, we've

14   already talked about the difficulties of siting

15   overhead transmission lines.  But in developing this

16   project, we considered a number of alternatives to

17   see if there was any possible alternative path or

18   combination of paths that might be preferable to

19   using the river.

20       There is no available path through the gorge or

21   densely populated areas without unacceptable impacts.

22   If you can imagine running an overhead power line

23   through the gorge, it seems rather unlikely.

24       We are asked occasionally, Well, why don't you

25   just bury it in I-84?  Because it's not permitted, is
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 1   the answer.  The State DOT and the Federal Highway

 2   Administration does not allow for that kind of burial

 3   for that kind of length.  They make occasional

 4   exceptions for very short lengths.  But for a

 5   hundred-mile route, never mind that it probably isn't

 6   constructible.  Even if it were, they wouldn't permit

 7   it.

 8       Same with State Route 14 with a few exceptions.

 9   If you were to try to use State Route 14 for the

10   entire length, it would be unconstructible because of

11   various natural and manmade features, bridges,

12   tunnels, rock slides.  We counted over 300 potential

13   obstacles, which, if you had a thousand years, you

14   might be able to figure them all out, but there's no

15   contractor in the world who would do that.

16       So we will say that for the small stretch of

17   State Route 14 that bypasses the dam, that is a

18   constructible route.  And as I said, we've been

19   consulting with the DOT to understand, you know, what

20   we need to do in order to do that.

21       Same is true for railroad rights-of-way on either

22   side of the river where in many cases they're so

23   constrained that you basically can't do it.  And I

24   doubt if the railroads would be happy about shutting

25   down their operation while we figured out how to put
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 1   the trench in the line.

 2       So now we get to describing the project, itself.

 3   This is an illustration -- it's not an illustration.

 4   It's the real deal.  But it's to show you what the

 5   cable looks like.

 6       If you look at the bottom left figure, the cable

 7   is installed in a bundle that is about 12 inches in

 8   diameter.  So this is a slice of an actual cable, not

 9   a replica or a facsimile or to scale or anything like

10   that.  It's also quite heavy, so...  And as you can

11   see, it's about the size of an iPhone.

12       The two cables are bundled together with one or

13   two fiber-optic cables.  The point of the fiber-optic

14   is not a commercial enterprise.  It's to effect

15   communication between the two converter stations.

16   And it's used, for instance, to detect if there's a

17   problem at either converter station.  It's all

18   internal to the -- to the project.

19       The construction, itself -- and if you look at

20   the right-hand figure, this is a depiction of a

21   process that uses a machine called a hydroplow or a

22   jet plow that is pulled by a barge or a ship very,

23   very slowly.  In a really good day, you can make

24   about a mile and a half.

25       Can we go back for a second.
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 1                     MS. BROWN:  Red button?

 2                     MR. HOCKER:  There we go.  The

 3   left-hand shows the cable bundle being paid off the

 4   back of the vessel.  This is actually from our

 5   Neptune project that we -- that we built.

 6       And so going back to the other figure.  It is

 7   slowly lowered in a bundle into the machinery called

 8   a hydroplow.  A hydroplow has an adjustable blade.

 9   And most importantly, the blade includes a number of

10   high-pressure water jets.  So you're not digging a

11   trench.  You're basically jetting a trench that

12   emulsifies the sediment.

13       The cable then sort of simultaneously lays into

14   the trench.  And about 75 percent of the sediment

15   that rises up within the trench then settles back

16   down over the cable.  So it's like one slow,

17   continuous process.  There's no mechanical dredging.

18   There's no massive scar on the riverbed.  The trench,

19   itself, is perhaps two feet wide to accommodate a

20   12-inch-diameter cable bundle.

21       As we said before, the in-water portion of the

22   project is only allowed during what's called work

23   windows by the environmental agencies, which is

24   typically in the winter months -- November through

25   February, March -- and specified to avoid, as I said,
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 1   spawning and migration of fish species.

 2       We talked about converter stations.  This is

 3   part -- this is really the only aboveground

 4   facilities involved in the project.  This particular

 5   photo is of a converter station in San Francisco.

 6   About 15 years ago, a project very similar to this

 7   was built with a converter station in San Francisco,

 8   a converter station in Pittsburgh, California, which

 9   is in the East Bay, if you're familiar with it, and

10   then the cable runs under the San Francisco Bay to

11   the converter station here in -- in San Francisco.

12       A converter station property requirement is about

13   five acres.  And it is quite similar to the type of

14   substation that you may see pretty much anywhere,

15   including, for instance, the Starr Complex or the

16   Harborton substation that we referred to.

17       Permits, approvals, studies.  We're under the

18   jurisdiction of really three major entities.  One of

19   them is EFSEC here in Washington.  One of them is

20   EFSC, without the second "E," in Oregon.  And the

21   other is the Army Corps of Engineers.

22       So we need to get approvals of all three of those

23   entities.  That is a complex process.  Although, we

24   have been through that before with our projects on

25   the East Coast between New York and New Jersey, where
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 1   we also had two state jurisdictions and the Army

 2   Corps overseeing.

 3       So it is complex to get a coordinated review.

 4   It's something that I know that both EFSECs and the

 5   corps are focusing on in order to have a review

 6   that -- that can be as coordinated as possible, but

 7   again, still observing the interests of the various

 8   states and of the federal waterway.

 9       We also need interconnection agreements with the

10   Bonneville Power Administration and Portland General

11   Electric.  That's part of the process.  We have

12   virtually no private property involved where the

13   cable is.  It's primarily on public land.  And there

14   have been already a large number of very significant

15   studies that we have conducted -- biological

16   assessments, sediment analysis, sediment transport --

17   in other words to say, Well, okay, if you're plowing

18   the sediment, where does it go?  Does it travel down

19   the river?  Does it stir up anything you don't want

20   to travel?  That kind of thing.

21       We've conducted a geophysical survey of the river

22   bottom and done a lot of modeling for things like

23   magnetic fields and temperature.

24       The point being that we're -- even though we

25   showed you earlier on what looked like just a line on
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 1   a piece of paper, in fact it's been sited very

 2   carefully; for instance, to get as close to the

 3   middle of the river as possible, but to avoid the

 4   navigation channel where possible.  We want to get

 5   away from the shoreline because of the cultural

 6   resources aspect near the historic shoreline.

 7       We have mapped the river bottom to know where

 8   there are areas of let's say solid rock or steep side

 9   slopes where you can't run a jet plow.  So really the

10   siting has been anything but random.  It's been

11   pretty careful in terms -- and to avoid habitat

12   areas, foraging areas for fish, that kind of thing.

13       So the permitting update.  I don't need to go

14   through this in detail, but we have obviously

15   submitted our application to Washington EFSEC.  We

16   are in the process of completing our siting

17   application for Oregon EFSC.  There are actually a

18   couple of Army Corps of Engineers permits that are

19   required:  Section 408, Section 404.  We have filed

20   those.  Those are under review.  And a very, very

21   important part of the process for the corps as well

22   as for the states is consultation with the various

23   Native tribes.

24       And so that consultation process, which is called

25   Section 106, has been underway.  And as I said
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 1   before, we are trying as best we can and have been

 2   able to engage with a number of the tribes.  It's

 3   really the federal government's responsibility to

 4   lead that consultation process.  But we are

 5   supporting that, and it's perfectly permissible for

 6   us to engage ourselves as long as it's done in

 7   coordination with the 106 process.

 8       We also hold what are called agency coordination

 9   meetings periodically when we have something to say,

10   when we have performed a study that we think might be

11   interesting to the agencies or the tribes.  So every

12   so often -- we've got one coming up next month --

13   we -- and these are voluntary.  They're not part of

14   the process.  They're outside the process.  But we've

15   had very good response from the agencies and the

16   tribes who sit in and learn about where we are in our

17   studies and what we have -- what we have found.

18       We do expect that the project, during

19   construction, will and can result in a variety of

20   benefits, including quite a few construction jobs

21   during the three-and-a-half-year process.  We have

22   done this before, as I keep saying.  And we

23   understand that we can't just come in, run a line, go

24   away, without partnering with the communities that

25   are affected, even if the effect isn't all that
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 1   great.

 2       So we're open to any sort of discussions with the

 3   localities where there may be an impact or an effect,

 4   to look for ways to partner or benefits that we can

 5   help provide.

 6       So, with that, just to mention some of our

 7   development team.  PowerBridge has done this before

 8   within the last 20 years or so on the East Coast.

 9   Sun2o Partners is primarily a solar developer that

10   was out here, oh, about six, seven years ago trying

11   to see if there were opportunities to site a solar

12   farm east of the Cascades and discovered very quickly

13   that the opportunity is only as good as the

14   transmission that will get it to the people who will

15   actually use the energy.  And so they came to us,

16   knowing that, you know, we were in this kind of

17   business, and asked us if we would take a look and

18   see if this was something that we think is feasible.

19       NextEra Transmission -- and we have a couple of

20   NextEra partners here tonight -- is the leading

21   publicly traded utility and renewables developer.

22   And they are the ones that now own and operate the

23   Trans Bay Cable project, which is the one I talked

24   about in San Francisco.

25       Next slide -- and I won't belabor this -- is just
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 1   an illustration of the similar marine transmission

 2   that has happened throughout the world.  And there's

 3   more being built that -- even beyond this particular

 4   listing.

 5       Our projects include, they're called Neptune and

 6   Hudson.  Neptune has been running successfully for 20

 7   years, or almost 20 years.  18 years.  And it's

 8   similar to this.  It runs primarily underwater for

 9   about 50 miles, down part of a river, and into the

10   Atlantic Ocean.  It runs almost exactly 24/7 -- 24

11   hours a day, seven days a week -- and supplies about

12   25 percent of the -- all the energy use, electric

13   power use, on Long Island.

14       The Hudson project similarly connects two power

15   grids:  One in New Jersey, one in New York.  And it

16   serves -- it goes down the Hudson River, buried

17   beneath the Hudson River, and serves the government

18   agencies in New York City.

19       So just to conclude, as I keep saying, we are

20   experienced at this.  We understand the need to be

21   respectful, to be open, to be transparent, and to try

22   to partner with the communities that we may affect.

23   And that's what we're trying to do.

24       And always happy to answer any questions, not

25   just here.  We do have a website, of course.
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 1   Cascade -- no.  What's it called?

 2   CascadeTransmission.com.  There's a mechanism where

 3   you can send us questions, which we're happy to

 4   answer.  And we welcome that.

 5       So, with that, I'll turn it over to Chair

 6   Beckett.  Thank you.

 7                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

 8   thorough review.  And, with that, we will move into

 9   our public comment portion of this meeting.  And

10   Ms. Grantham will help me know who has signed up.

11       If you haven't signed up, you're welcome to, I

12   think, over here at this table.  And ultimately I'll

13   certainly call on you if you raise your hand and

14   would just ask that you state your name for the

15   record if you haven't already signed up.

16       So, with that, let me turn this, I believe, to

17   Ms. Grantham to let us know our first speaker.

18       Again, we are trying to limit comments tonight to

19   three minutes and welcome your comments.  If you do

20   have questions that you would like to note that be

21   included for the record, we will, you know, capture

22   those questions to the degree that we can answer some

23   tonight without, you know, cutting off other people

24   who want to speak.  I will consider that, but

25   ultimately we follow the rule of three minutes per
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 1   person here.

 2       So, with that, Ms. Grantham.

 3                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.

 4       The first speaker that I have signed up is a Fred

 5   Greef.

 6                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Welcome, sir.

 7                     MR. GREEF:  Thank you for this

 8   opportunity.

 9                     CHAIR BECKETT:  And if you would,

10   sir, if you might stand just a little closer to the

11   mike.  I don't know if we can quite capture you for

12   our online audience as well as the other Council

13   members who are here to hear your testimony, so...

14                     MR. GREEF:  All right.  Thank you

15   for this opportunity.

16       For me, one of the most important things with

17   this environmental impact statement, which I strongly

18   believe is needed and will be required, is the

19   no-action alternative.

20       I think there's many reasons why this project

21   should not go forward.  And I'm not going -- I've

22   just found out about it.  I -- I will be submitting a

23   lot more comments besides this tonight.  But you

24   mentioned there's magnetic field and temperature

25   studies.  And there's an awful lot of recreation in
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 1   this river:  Fishing, windsurfing, swimming.  There's

 2   not a lot of lakes near the river.  This is where the

 3   people here live and recreate.

 4       And there's such a thing as EMFs.  I think we

 5   need to do a full study of what are the impacts of

 6   people right in the proximity of that cable for long

 7   periods of time or -- anyway, so let's just say

 8   elec- -- magnetic, electric EMFs, all that type of

 9   thing really does need to be closely looked at.

10       Another thing would be -- so anyway, there's

11   going to be all kinds of recreation impacts.  People

12   might not want to be near those cables.  We might

13   lose our windsurfing on the river.

14       There may be other pathways besides the gorge.

15   The gorge is the shoreline of the greatest

16   significance in this whole Northwest region.  I know

17   Ecology's shoreline program will really be interested

18   in before they permit this.  And I believe you should

19   talk to the scientists there as to what they think

20   the impacts on the fish and all the different water

21   quality impacts associated with such disruption to

22   the most important shoreline of statewide

23   significance.

24       There's -- there may be other ways to go from

25   east-west besides the gorge.  There may be other
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 1   pathways through the mountains, through railroads,

 2   through other highways.  You say they may not want

 3   it.  So, anyway, I'm not sure that you can't put it

 4   where there's railroads or other highways.  This is

 5   the worst place for it.

 6       I really don't have -- and I would like to know

 7   who the power serves, is going -- so you mentioned

 8   something like 800,000 households.  We want to be

 9   sure it doesn't go to serve any data centers --

10   absolute zero -- if for some reason this project does

11   have to go through, and that there's no nuclear power

12   traveling through it that was created by any type of

13   nuclear.

14       Whether it's Bill Gates or Amazon or Meta or

15   Google, they're all pronuclear now, and that is a

16   horrible thing.  We in this state, Washington State,

17   know how horrible nuclear power is.  We had the

18   Washington Public Power Supply System, which was such

19   a disaster.  We know the impacts of -- we still have

20   not cleaned up with the river from that.

21       And then the other thing would be Bradford

22   Island.  There's been huge impacts to this river.

23   The tribal nations, their whole way of life and

24   culture was destroyed by BPA and all the dams on this

25   river.  Every -- there's things in EISs called

0046

 1   cumulative impacts.  The cumulative impacts are so

 2   big already that doing this one more thing that

 3   trashes the sacred tribal land and their fish use and

 4   various -- it's just -- the impact on fish.

 5       Then dams can be removed to help the fish.  If

 6   those dams have -- if we get permission to move those

 7   dams and fix the river for the fish and the recre- --

 8   and what happens to your line then?  Does this mean

 9   we can't remove those dams for the next 50 years?  So

10   anyway, that's just a (unintelligible) --

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate your

12   comment.

13                     MR. GREEF:  I -- I'm really -- I

14   haven't even begun to get my head around this thing

15   yet.  But I think the impacts are huge.  And there's

16   no question an EIS is required in this thing.  It's

17   just -- that's all.  Thank you.

18                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

19       Ms. Grantham.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker I

21   have is Mary Repar.

22                     MS. REPAR:  Thank you very much for

23   this opportunity.  It's been a long time since

24   Whistling Ridge.  So I'm looking forward to this.

25       You're in the National -- Columbia River Gorge
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 1   National Scenic Area.  You've entered the twilight

 2   zone for permitting process.  So welcome.  It's going

 3   to be a long, long haul.

 4       I'm assuming that the gorge commission also has

 5   something to say about this, will have something to

 6   say.  I brought it up to them at the last meeting.

 7       I made comments on the Columbia River Treaty.

 8   I'm sure many of you did.  And it was a very

 9   interesting process.  And one of the things that the

10   Columbia River Treaty says is very important, is

11   improving the ecosystem is going to be the main aim

12   of modernization.  I don't see this project as

13   improving the ecosystems that we have here.

14       NEPA is a very good process.  It does have

15   cumulative impacts and effects, and those will have

16   to be analyzed thoroughly and with analysis.

17       This little river is being asked to do a lot.  We

18   have the Goldendale pump project that wants water

19   from the Columbia.  We have the EPA Superfund cleanup

20   at Bradford Island.  We have this, and we have that.

21   And, you know, this is asking too much of our

22   environment.  The rights of nature needs to be

23   included in the analysis of this, and I'm a very huge

24   proponent of the rights of nature.

25       Also tribal consultation and alternatives.  I
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 1   would like to see a lot more alternatives.  You know,

 2   we're always being asked to vote for all these

 3   projects that are going to make our lives better and

 4   lower our utility costs.  Well, I'm not seeing it.

 5   I'm sorry.  We have had solar projects that have

 6   promised to lower our costs.  We have some of the

 7   highest cost per kilowatt-hour here in this

 8   community.  If you can't do something for our

 9   community, don't bother.

10       We -- you know, there's -- there's other

11   alternatives that are much cleaner and much less

12   intrusive on our environment.

13       Also, the gentleman before me spoke about the

14   health effects.  There are health effects from

15   transmission lines.  There are health effects on

16   the -- on humans, and there are health effects on

17   wildlife.

18       So these are my notes, which you'll be getting in

19   a different format, and I'm going to submit something

20   tonight.  But I look forward to the NEPA EIS, and I

21   think you will find that this project is not for us.

22       Thank you very much.

23                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your

24   comment.

25       I believe that's the last of our sign-ups ahead
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 1   of time?

 2                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Correct.  That's all

 3   I was able to get.

 4                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Would anyone

 5   else who's in the room care to make a comment?  And

 6   also for those online, if you raise your hand, we

 7   will recognize you.  But let me please first turn

 8   this to our guests in the room.

 9       Yes, ma'am.  If you'd please step up to the mike.

10   State your name for the record, please.

11       And then I saw one other hand, but we'll catch

12   you next.

13       Thank you again.

14                     MS. ALLINGER:  My name is Debbie

15   Allinger.  And I am a survivor of cancer and your

16   wonderful overhead power lines, which I lived

17   underneath or close enough that it's actually

18   disfigured my body.  And, therefore, you want to put

19   some more stuff in this area that's going to kill

20   people.  I've lost (unintelligible) and many family

21   members to do with cancer and power lines.  And

22   there's no studies right now on what you're planning

23   on doing.  You keep mentioning tribal.  And there's

24   more effect on more than just tribal.

25       I believe you need to do more research on your
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 1   land-use to actually find out who owns the land.  And

 2   I'll bet you find out the government does not own it.

 3       So, therefore, I'm asking for more studies and

 4   looking into how the government acquired the land if

 5   they think it's theirs.  Thank you.

 6                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your

 7   comment.

 8       Next up.  Welcome.

 9                     MS. YAZDANI:  Thank you.

10       Hi.  Teryn Yazdani with Columbia Riverkeeper.

11   Thanks for being here.  I'll keep this super brief.

12   I'm going to be speaking at the land-use hearing as

13   well.

14                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.

15                     MS. YAZDANI:  But I just wanted to

16   ask specifically if you-all would be willing to

17   respond either tonight or in the near future to

18   something raised in a recent article from the

19   Columbian.  Quoting Julie Carter, staff from the

20   Columbia Inter-Tribal Fish Commission, specifically a

21   response to the statement that the applicant is

22   asserting the project meets the recommendations and

23   goals for CRITFC's energy vision and that CRITFC

24   openly stated that this is untrue.

25       I think it's extremely important to address that
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 1   openly, honestly.  And claiming that a project is in

 2   line with an energy vision when CRITFC is saying the

 3   opposite is quite concerning in how you're addressing

 4   this to the public and seems like greenwashing.  So

 5   just wanted to put that out there.  Thank you.

 6                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

 7   input and comment.

 8       Others in the room who'd like to step forward and

 9   add comment?

10       Let me turn to our online audience just to make

11   sure if I'm missing a hand that's raised and buy

12   another couple seconds here for our in-room

13   participants.

14       Anything else --

15                     MS. GRANTHAM:  We have --

16                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Ms. Grantham?

17                     MS. GRANTHAM:  We have three hands

18   raised online.  The first one I'm seeing is Nathan

19   Baker.

20                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Nathan Baker, go

21   ahead.

22                     MR. BAKER:  Can you hear me?

23                     CHAIR BECKETT:  We can.  Thank you.

24   Please proceed.

25                     MR. BAKER:  Thank you.
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 1       Good evening, Chair Beckett and members of the

 2   Council.  My name is Nathan Baker.  I'm a senior

 3   staff attorney with Friends of the Columbia Gorge.

 4   And for this hearing, I'd like to speak about two

 5   procedural issues.

 6       The process is important.  We want to make sure

 7   that the required procedures are properly followed

 8   for this hearing and for EFSEC's process.

 9       The first procedural issue is that this hearing

10   tonight is premature.  The duty to conduct an

11   informational public hearing is triggered by, quote,

12   the receipt of an application for site certification,

13   end quote.  That's RCW 80.50.090.

14       So that's triggered by an application.  Draft

15   applications don't count.  And this is clearly a

16   draft application.  "Draft" is the first word on the

17   cover page.  All of the PDF file names of a draft

18   application are labeled with the word "draft."  The

19   word "draft" is used more than 200 times in the

20   document, mostly in the footers.

21       The document contains metadata with internal

22   comments between the applicant's consultants and

23   lawyers.  The EFSEC website links to all the draft

24   application materials and describes them as drafts.

25       This is a draft application that is not ready for
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 1   prime time.  EFSEC should not have scheduled the

 2   hearings until after it receives an application, not

 3   a draft application.  This hearing is premature, and

 4   it is error to be holding this hearing on a draft

 5   application.

 6       Regardless, if and when the applicant submits an

 7   actual non-draft application or converts the draft

 8   application to a final application, that will be,

 9   under the plain language of the statute, the, quote,

10   receipt of an application for site certification, end

11   quote, which will obligate EFSEC to hold a new series

12   of hearings.

13       The other procedural issue involves the members

14   of the Council.  Last night, the appointee by Clark

15   County to the Council was never mentioned and did not

16   participate.  We're pleased to see Commissioner

17   Leckie from Skamania County here tonight.  But

18   tonight there was no mention of the city of

19   Stevenson.  Under RCW 80.50.030, Subsection 5, the

20   City of Stevenson is supposed to appoint a member of

21   the Council who, quote, shall sit with the Council,

22   end quote, for hearings involving the site involving

23   that city.

24       And according to Section 2.1.3.2 of the draft

25   application, the project is proposed inside the city
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 1   of Stevenson.  That may also be the case for the city

 2   of North Bonneville.  The project certainly goes

 3   within a big section of the North Bonneville urban

 4   area.  We're not quite sure about the city limits.

 5   But the statute requires city appointees to, quote,

 6   sit with the Council, end quote, for this hearing.

 7   Holding this hearing without their participation

 8   violates the statute.

 9       In conclusion, if and when the applicant submits

10   a non-draft final application, EFSEC will then need

11   to schedule informational public hearings in each of

12   the three counties.  The relevant county and city

13   appointees to the Council will need to sit with the

14   Council for these hearings.  Thank you very much.

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,

16   Mr. Baker.

17       Ms. Grantham, who's up next?

18                     MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker is

19   Kate Murphy.

20                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

21                     MS. MURPHY:  Good day.  This is

22   Kate Murphy.  I'm with Columbia Riverkeeper.

23       Can I ask for a point of clarification, Chair,

24   before I start?

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Sure.
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 1                     MS. MURPHY:  I just -- I just --

 2                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, you may.

 3                     MS. MURPHY:  -- wanted to clarify.

 4   In yesterday's meeting, we were able to ask

 5   project-specific questions, and I think I heard Chris

 6   mention that that would be okay.  So can I ask -- can

 7   I get an answer -- a response to a question?

 8                     CHAIR BECKETT:  If you go ahead and

 9   state your question for the record, and then we'll

10   see where we're at on time.

11                     MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  Great.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Ultimately any

13   iterative answers that I believe, you know, are

14   helpful in the moment, at the same time ultimately,

15   that's at the latitude of the chair.  And out of

16   respect to the group, certainly want to continue

17   to --

18                     MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Good.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- proceed here,

20   so -- but please note your question for the record

21   and your other comments, and we'll start this now.

22                     MS. MURPHY:  Thank you.

23       I'd start by lifting up Teryn's concern about

24   potential misrepresentation for CRITFC.  And my

25   question directly is about what type of modeling and
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 1   research and testing has been done specific to the

 2   Georgia-Pacific pulp and paper mill in Camas,

 3   Washington, which is a known contaminated site that

 4   contains total petroleum hydrocarbons, it contains

 5   polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, polychlorinated

 6   biphenyls, metals, dioxins, and things like that, and

 7   it's got an order for cleanup.

 8       So I'm just curious if you could speak to that a

 9   little bit about how that's been addressed in the

10   project plan.  Thank you.

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

12   question.  I am actually going to ask that we not

13   answer that question in the moment, given -- I can

14   appreciate the complexity of it and including from

15   other past experience on certain cleanups.  So I

16   think we'd all be probably best served if we handled

17   that more formally.  So thank you.

18                     MS. MURPHY:  Could I just ask

19   specifically:  Has that site been considered based on

20   the contamination there?  That would be helpful.

21                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Your questions are

22   being noted for the record, so that's ultimately

23   really the core function.

24                     MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  So we're

25   not doing the same kind of Q & A tonight.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.

 2                     MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Then I will

 3   also ask for the record to have some more specific

 4   explanation about, when it says that it's buried

 5   within the sediment of the riverbed, there's a lot of

 6   bedrock.  And it seems that that wouldn't be possible

 7   for the entire hundred miles.  So how -- how is it

 8   being negotiated through some of those areas where

 9   there might not be the deeper sediment?

10       That's it.  Thank you.

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  And I'm sorry.  Can

12   you clarify.  Was there a specific section of the

13   river that you were noting was the area that was more

14   predominant in bedrock or just in general?

15                     MS. MURPHY:  Well, I mean, they

16   did -- Chris mentioned they've done a whole scan of

17   the river, so they -- that would probably be more

18   informative than my input.  But I think throughout

19   the entire hundred miles, I would be interested in

20   that.  Thank you.

21                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Understood.  Thank

22   you.

23       I think we may be close.  Seeing one more.

24                     MS. GRANTHAM:  We have one more.

25   Excuse me if I pronounce it incorrectly.  Juan Monje.
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 1                     MR. MONJE:  You did connect me.

 2   I'm Juan Monje.  I have only -- I have some concern,

 3   but I can -- for the record, I can do two question.

 4       One:  If this project is meant to serve

 5   residential -- residential and regional clean-energy

 6   goals, why is the main converter station located in

 7   the Rivergate industrial area, where multiple large

 8   data center are being planned?

 9       Another one question is:  PowerBridge says that

10   you will respect tribal concerns.  Can you list which

11   tribal nations have formally consented and provide

12   copies of those letters, please?

13       That's it for now.  Thank you.

14                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.  Thank

15   you, Mr. Monje.

16       And I see that you had posted a question in the

17   chat, and that's been responded to.  I think, if we

18   can make sure that we have the contact information if

19   you wish to be contacted in case we need to follow up

20   just to clarify anything here in the record, that

21   would be helpful.  And you can paste that in chat in

22   this instance.  Thank you again for your

23   participation.

24       I don't see any other hands raised.  Are there

25   others in our audience this evening who wish to
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 1   speak?  Please come forward.

 2                     MR. HECHT:  Hello.  My name is

 3   Martin Hecht, and I'm a 35-year resident of

 4   Stevenson, Washington.

 5       And I -- my concern is primarily that this, I

 6   guess, was billed as a public information meeting,

 7   but I don't think it was very well publicized.  I

 8   mean, I'm glad that there's other neighbors and other

 9   interested parties here.  But I really found out

10   about it randomly, like, last night and tried to get

11   some word out today that, you know, that this meeting

12   was happening.

13       I find it very interesting and intriguing, this

14   project.  I'd love to learn more.  But if you're

15   going to have a public information meeting, I think

16   you need to try a little harder to, you know, engage

17   the public.

18                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

19   input.  And I certainly appreciate that.  I think we

20   all share, you know, the interest in achieving what

21   you've stated.  And obviously, you know,

22   communicating out and finding everyone that wants to

23   be found is sometimes a challenge, but ultimately

24   it's one we need to stick with.  And I can just

25   assure you that we will continue to do so.  And
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 1   wherever we can improve, we will, will be our pledge,

 2   so -- but thank you for stepping forward and calling

 3   that out.

 4       Other hands or anyone else in the audience?

 5       Okay.  Then I am going to conclude our public

 6   informational hearing and meeting at 6:54 p.m.

 7                            (Meeting concluded at

 8                             6:54 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M. S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing public informational meeting of the

 5   Washington State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was

     conducted in my presence and concluded on November 18, 2025,

 6   and thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

     transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

 7   said meeting, transcribed to the best of my ability;

 8        That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

     of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

 9   such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

     interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;
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          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

11   this 2nd day of December, 2025.
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                               (Certification expires 5/26/2026.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25




		Index		MediaGroup		SourceCase		FirstName		LastName		Date		StartPage		EndPage		LinesPerPage		Complete

		1		PublicInformationalMeeting111825.151433_100		EFSEC CRT informational meetings 		 		Public Information Meeting		11/18/2025		1		61		25		true



		Index		Timecode		TimeStamp		Temp		PageNum		LineNum		NoDisplay		Text		Native		Redact

		1						PG		1		0		false		page 1				false

		2						LN		1		0		false		                 ______________________________________________________________				false

		3						LN		1		0		false		                                       WASHINGTON STATE				false

		4						LN		1		0		false		                            ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL				false

		5						LN		1		0		false		                                 CASCADE TRANSMISSION PROJECT				false

		6						LN		1		0		false		                                 PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING				false

		7						LN		1		0		false		                 ______________________________________________________________				false

		8						LN		1		0		false		                                        November 18, 2025				false

		9						LN		1		0		false		                                     Stevenson, Washington				false

		10						LN		1		0		false		                     Reporter:  John M. S. Botelho, CCR, RPR				false

		11						PG		2		0		false		page 2				false

		12						LN		2		1		false		           1                           APPEARANCES				false

		13						LN		2		2		false		           2				false

		14						LN		2		2		false		                  STATE AGENCY MEMBERS:				false

		15						LN		2		3		false		           3				false

		16						LN		2		3		false		                       Kurt Beckett, Chair				false

		17						LN		2		4		false		           4				false

		18						LN		2		4		false		                       Elizabeth Osborne, Department of Commerce				false

		19						LN		2		5		false		           5				false

		20						LN		2		5		false		                       Blake Nelson, Department of Ecology				false

		21						LN		2		6		false		           6				false

		22						LN		2		6		false		                       Nate Pamplin, Dept. of Fish and Wildlife				false

		23						LN		2		7		false		           7				false

		24						LN		2		7		false		                       Maverick Ryan, Department of Natural Resources				false

		25						LN		2		8		false		           8				false

		26						LN		2		8		false		                       Brian Rybarik,				false

		27						LN		2		9		false		           9           Utilities & Transportation Commission				false

		28						LN		2		10		false		          10				false

		29						LN		2		11		false		          11      LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND OPTIONAL STATE AGENCIES:				false

		30						LN		2		12		false		          12           Cascade Renewable Transmission:				false

		31						LN		2		13		false		          13               Asa Leckie, Skamania County				false

		32						LN		2		14		false		          14				false

		33						LN		2		15		false		          15      ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL:				false

		34						LN		2		16		false		          16           Jon Thompson				false

		35						LN		2		17		false		          17				false

		36						LN		2		18		false		          18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:				false

		37						LN		2		19		false		          19           Russell Mikow				false

		38						LN		2		20		false		          20				false

		39						LN		2		21		false		          21				false

		40						LN		2		22		false		          22				false

		41						LN		2		23		false		          23				false

		42						LN		2		24		false		          24				false

		43						LN		2		25		false		          25				false

		44						PG		3		0		false		page 3				false

		45						LN		3		1		false		           1                    APPEARANCES (Continuing)				false

		46						LN		3		2		false		           2				false

		47						LN		3		3		false		           3      COUNCIL STAFF:				false

		48						LN		3		4		false		           4           Sonia Bumpus               Alex Shiley				false

		49						LN		3		5		false		           5           Ami Hafkemeyer             Karl Holappa				false

		50						LN		3		6		false		           6           Joan Owens                 Maria Belkina				false

		51						LN		3		7		false		           7           Andrea Grantham            Lisa McLean				false

		52						LN		3		8		false		           8           Lance Caputo				false

		53						LN		3		9		false		           9				false

		54						LN		3		10		false		          10      COUNSEL FOR THE ENVIRONMENT:				false

		55						LN		3		11		false		          11           Sarah Reyneveld				false

		56						LN		3		12		false		          12				false

		57						LN		3		13		false		          13      IN ATTENDANCE:				false

		58						LN		3		14		false		          14           For Cascade Renewable Transmission, LLC:				false

		59						LN		3		15		false		          15               Chris Hocker				false

		60						LN		3		16		false		          16               Susan Brown				false

		61						LN		3		17		false		          17				false

		62						LN		3		18		false		          18				false

		63						LN		3		19		false		          19				false

		64						LN		3		20		false		          20				false

		65						LN		3		21		false		          21				false

		66						LN		3		22		false		          22				false

		67						LN		3		23		false		          23				false

		68						LN		3		24		false		          24				false

		69						LN		3		25		false		          25				false

		70						PG		4		0		false		page 4				false

		71						LN		4		1		false		           1                        EXAMINATION INDEX				false

		72						LN		4		2		false		           2      EVENT:                                       PAGE NO.				false

		73						LN		4		3		false		           3    Roll call                                           7				false

		74						LN		4		4		false		           4    Introductions				false

		75						LN		4		5		false		           5        Cascade Renewable Transmission                 10				false

		76						LN		4		6		false		           6        Counsel for the environment                    10				false

		77						LN		4		7		false		           7    EFSEC Director - EFSEC overview process            11				false

		78						LN		4		8		false		           8    EFSEC - siting process presentation                14				false

		79						LN		4		9		false		           9    Remarks by EFSEC director                          23				false

		80						LN		4		10		false		          10    Cascade Renewable Transmission -- project          25				false

		81						LN		4		10		false		                presentation				false

		82						LN		4		11		false		          11				false

		83						LN		4		11		false		                Public comments                                    42				false

		84						LN		4		12		false		          12				false

		85						LN		4		12		false		                Conclusion                                         60				false

		86						LN		4		13		false		          13				false

		87						LN		4		14		false		          14				false

		88						LN		4		15		false		          15				false

		89						LN		4		16		false		          16				false

		90						LN		4		17		false		          17				false

		91						LN		4		18		false		          18				false

		92						LN		4		19		false		          19				false

		93						LN		4		20		false		          20				false

		94						LN		4		21		false		          21				false

		95						LN		4		22		false		          22				false

		96						LN		4		23		false		          23				false

		97						LN		4		24		false		          24				false

		98						LN		4		25		false		          25				false

		99						PG		5		0		false		page 5				false

		100						LN		5		1		false		           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,				false

		101						LN		5		2		false		           2      November 18, 2025, at 710 Southwest Rock Creek Drive,				false

		102						LN		5		3		false		           3      Stevenson, Washington, at 5:33 p.m., the following				false

		103						LN		5		4		false		           4      public informational meeting of the Washington State				false

		104						LN		5		5		false		           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to				false

		105						LN		5		6		false		           6      wit:				false

		106						LN		5		7		false		           7				false

		107						LN		5		8		false		           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>				false

		108						LN		5		9		false		           9				false

		109						LN		5		10		false		          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good evening,				false

		110						LN		5		11		false		          11      everybody.  Again, my name's Kurt Beckett.  I'm chair				false

		111						LN		5		12		false		          12      of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council here				false

		112						LN		5		13		false		          13      for Washington State and want to welcome you-all this				false

		113						LN		5		14		false		          14      evening, especially those of you who have taken your				false

		114						LN		5		15		false		          15      time to join us here this evening.  Certainly want to				false

		115						LN		5		16		false		          16      thank those who are online as well.				false

		116						LN		5		17		false		          17          Other members of our Council who will be				false

		117						LN		5		18		false		          18      introduced here shortly are also online in addition				false

		118						LN		5		19		false		          19      to members of the public.				false

		119						LN		5		20		false		          20          So, again, welcome.  And this is the first of two				false

		120						LN		5		21		false		          21      meetings tonight.  We're beginning this evening with				false

		121						LN		5		22		false		          22      the public informational meeting as required by state				false

		122						LN		5		23		false		          23      law.  The purpose of the first meeting is to provide				false

		123						LN		5		24		false		          24      an overview of the EFSEC review process and, in				false

		124						LN		5		25		false		          25      particular, the overview of the project, itself, the				false

		125						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		126						LN		6		1		false		           1      Cascade Renewable Transmission Project.				false

		127						LN		6		2		false		           2          We will then take public comment from our both				false

		128						LN		6		3		false		           3      in-room and online attendees.  And we'll talk a				false

		129						LN		6		4		false		           4      little bit more about that when we get there on				false

		130						LN		6		5		false		           5      timing and process.  It is about three minutes per				false

		131						LN		6		6		false		           6      person.  Just a heads-up.  And, again, we'll take				false

		132						LN		6		7		false		           7      online comments as well.				false

		133						LN		6		8		false		           8          Please know that the purpose of tonight's meeting				false

		134						LN		6		9		false		           9      is really to both, again, begin socializing the				false

		135						LN		6		10		false		          10      details of the project with the public, but also as				false

		136						LN		6		11		false		          11      you digest that, this evening if you have comments of				false

		137						LN		6		12		false		          12      what EFSEC Council as well as staff should consider				false

		138						LN		6		13		false		          13      in the review of the application, whether that's a				false

		139						LN		6		14		false		          14      question you think that needs to be answered or a				false

		140						LN		6		15		false		          15      perspective that you want to share, that's the				false

		141						LN		6		16		false		          16      purpose of tonight's public comment, is to capture				false

		142						LN		6		17		false		          17      those things.				false

		143						LN		6		18		false		          18          Please know, as we start this process, ultimately				false

		144						LN		6		19		false		          19      there are many different comment periods along the				false

		145						LN		6		20		false		          20      way that we won't spend a lot of time on tonight, but				false

		146						LN		6		21		false		          21      by no means is this kind of the only time that you'll				false

		147						LN		6		22		false		          22      have a chance to understand the project and provide				false

		148						LN		6		23		false		          23      your input.  But it is an important part so that we				false

		149						LN		6		24		false		          24      capture any initial thoughts you may have as we then				false

		150						LN		6		25		false		          25      go further into the official process.				false

		151						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		152						LN		7		1		false		           1          The second meeting, which will begin immediately				false

		153						LN		7		2		false		           2      after our public comment concludes -- and that is				false

		154						LN		7		3		false		           3      specifically about the land-use consistency of the				false

		155						LN		7		4		false		           4      project and, in this case, how that project compares				false

		156						LN		7		5		false		           5      to land-use code in Skamania County.  And so there				false

		157						LN		7		6		false		           6      will be a brief presentation on that, and then				false

		158						LN		7		7		false		           7      comments will be taken on the land-use issue only				false

		159						LN		7		8		false		           8      during the land-use consistency hearing.				false

		160						LN		7		9		false		           9          So, with that, let me thank you-all again for				false

		161						LN		7		10		false		          10      participating.				false

		162						LN		7		11		false		          11          And if Ms. Grantham would please call the roll.				false

		163						LN		7		12		false		          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.				false

		164						LN		7		13		false		          13          Department of commerce.				false

		165						LN		7		14		false		          14                        MS. OSBORNE:  Hi.  Elizabeth				false

		166						LN		7		15		false		          15      Osborne, present.				false

		167						LN		7		16		false		          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		168						LN		7		17		false		          17      Ecology.				false

		169						LN		7		18		false		          18                        MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.				false

		170						LN		7		19		false		          19                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish				false

		171						LN		7		20		false		          20      and Wildlife.				false

		172						LN		7		21		false		          21                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin, present				false

		173						LN		7		22		false		          22      virtually.				false

		174						LN		7		23		false		          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		175						LN		7		24		false		          24      Natural Resources.				false

		176						LN		7		25		false		          25                        MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present				false

		177						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		178						LN		8		1		false		           1      virtually.				false

		179						LN		8		2		false		           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and				false

		180						LN		8		3		false		           3      Transportation Commission.				false

		181						LN		8		4		false		           4                        MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,				false

		182						LN		8		5		false		           5      present virtually from the UTC/EFSEC offices in				false

		183						LN		8		6		false		           6      Lacey, Washington.				false

		184						LN		8		7		false		           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		185						LN		8		8		false		           8          Moving on to our local government.  For this				false

		186						LN		8		9		false		           9      project and Skamania County, Asa Leckie.				false

		187						LN		8		10		false		          10                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah.  Asa Leckie,				false

		188						LN		8		11		false		          11      online.				false

		189						LN		8		12		false		          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  "Asa."  Thank you.				false

		190						LN		8		13		false		          13          Moving on to Assistant Attorney General Jon				false

		191						LN		8		14		false		          14      Thompson.				false

		192						LN		8		15		false		          15                        MR. THOMPSON:  I am present online.				false

		193						LN		8		16		false		          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law				false

		194						LN		8		17		false		          17      Judge Russell Mikow.				false

		195						LN		8		18		false		          18                        JUDGE MIKOW:  Present online.				false

		196						LN		8		19		false		          19                        MS. GRANTHAM:  For Council staff				false

		197						LN		8		20		false		          20      here, I am going to call those who are anticipated to				false

		198						LN		8		21		false		          21      possibly speak tonight.				false

		199						LN		8		22		false		          22          Sonia Bumpus.				false

		200						LN		8		23		false		          23                        MS. BUMPUS:  Here.				false

		201						LN		8		24		false		          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.				false

		202						LN		8		25		false		          25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.				false

		203						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		204						LN		9		1		false		           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.				false

		205						LN		9		2		false		           2                        MS. BELKINA:  Present.				false

		206						LN		9		3		false		           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.				false

		207						LN		9		4		false		           4                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.				false

		208						LN		9		5		false		           5                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.				false

		209						LN		9		6		false		           6                        MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.				false

		210						LN		9		7		false		           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.				false

		211						LN		9		8		false		           8                        MS. McLEAN:  Present online.				false

		212						LN		9		9		false		           9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		213						LN		9		10		false		          10          And is there anyone here for the counsel for the				false

		214						LN		9		11		false		          11      environment?				false

		215						LN		9		12		false		          12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah				false

		216						LN		9		13		false		          13      Reyneveld is here.				false

		217						LN		9		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		218						LN		9		15		false		          15          Chair, there is a quorum.				false

		219						LN		9		16		false		          16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very				false

		220						LN		9		17		false		          17      much.				false

		221						LN		9		18		false		          18          I'm going to ask our applicant team to introduce				false

		222						LN		9		19		false		          19      themselves briefly.  And as a heads-up to our counsel				false

		223						LN		9		20		false		          20      member, I was going to next call on you just to				false

		224						LN		9		21		false		          21      provide a brief word of the role of the counsel of				false

		225						LN		9		22		false		          22      the environment, and then I would turn this soon to				false

		226						LN		9		23		false		          23      Sonia Bumpus, our director of EFSEC, that will begin				false

		227						LN		9		24		false		          24      our staff presentation for the EFSEC process.				false

		228						LN		9		25		false		          25          So heads-up on that, counsel for the environment				false

		229						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		230						LN		10		1		false		           1      and first over to our applicant for brief				false

		231						LN		10		2		false		           2      introductions.				false

		232						LN		10		3		false		           3                        MR. HOCKER:  My name is Chris				false

		233						LN		10		4		false		           4      Hocker with Cascade Renewable Transmission.  With me				false

		234						LN		10		5		false		           5      at the desk here is Susan Brown, a colleague.  And we				false

		235						LN		10		6		false		           6      have other folks in the audience are representing our				false

		236						LN		10		7		false		           7      development partners and our consultant, HDR.  So				false

		237						LN		10		8		false		           8      there's probably five or six who will be happy to				false

		238						LN		10		9		false		           9      answer questions, I guess, beforehand obviously and				false

		239						LN		10		10		false		          10      afterwards if there are any.				false

		240						LN		10		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		241						LN		10		12		false		          12          Counsel Reyneveld.				false

		242						LN		10		13		false		          13                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Hello,				false

		243						LN		10		14		false		          14      everyone.  My name is Sarah Reyneveld, and I'm here				false

		244						LN		10		15		false		          15      tonight on behalf of counsel for the environment,				false

		245						LN		10		16		false		          16      Yuriy Korol, who has been assigned to this project				false

		246						LN		10		17		false		          17      but had a conflict this evening.				false

		247						LN		10		18		false		          18          Pursuant to RCW 80.50.080, when the counsel				false

		248						LN		10		19		false		          19      receives site application, the attorney general, Nick				false

		249						LN		10		20		false		          20      Brown, appoints an assistant attorney general to				false

		250						LN		10		21		false		          21      serve as counsel for the environment.  And the				false

		251						LN		10		22		false		          22      purpose of counsel for the environment, per the				false

		252						LN		10		23		false		          23      statute, is to represent the public and its interests				false

		253						LN		10		24		false		          24      in protecting the quality of the environment				false

		254						LN		10		25		false		          25      throughout the siting process so that the -- our				false

		255						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		256						LN		11		1		false		           1      counsel for the environment fully participates				false

		257						LN		11		2		false		           2      throughout that process.				false

		258						LN		11		3		false		           3          So thank you for the opportunity for a brief				false

		259						LN		11		4		false		           4      introduction.  Again, Yuriy Korol has been assigned				false

		260						LN		11		5		false		           5      to this project, and should be present tomorrow				false

		261						LN		11		6		false		           6      evening.  Thank you.				false

		262						LN		11		7		false		           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much				false

		263						LN		11		8		false		           8      for the overview.				false

		264						LN		11		9		false		           9          And, with that, let me pass this to Director				false

		265						LN		11		10		false		          10      Bumpus to kick us off on the EFSEC overview process.				false

		266						LN		11		11		false		          11      Thank you.				false

		267						LN		11		12		false		          12                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair				false

		268						LN		11		13		false		          13      Beckett.				false

		269						LN		11		14		false		          14          As Chair Beckett said, my name is Sonia Bumpus.				false

		270						LN		11		15		false		          15      I am the executive director of the Energy Facility				false

		271						LN		11		16		false		          16      Site Evaluation Council, or EFSEC, as we say.				false

		272						LN		11		17		false		          17          Wanted to first say thank you for being here				false

		273						LN		11		18		false		          18      tonight.  We really welcome your attendance and				false

		274						LN		11		19		false		          19      participation.  It means a lot to us.  I know				false

		275						LN		11		20		false		          20      everybody's busy.  And so you taking the time to come				false

		276						LN		11		21		false		          21      out and meet us, we really appreciate that.				false

		277						LN		11		22		false		          22          A couple of remarks before we get started with				false

		278						LN		11		23		false		          23      the PowerPoint presentation that EFSEC staff will				false

		279						LN		11		24		false		          24      provide about our process.  And Chair Beckett talked				false

		280						LN		11		25		false		          25      about this a little bit already.  The reason that				false

		281						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		282						LN		12		1		false		           1      we're here tonight is to hear from you about this				false

		283						LN		12		2		false		           2      application that was filed with EFSEC.  It's also to				false

		284						LN		12		3		false		           3      hold the land-use consistency hearing that's going to				false

		285						LN		12		4		false		           4      follow this public informational hearing.				false

		286						LN		12		5		false		           5          When EFSEC receives an application for site				false

		287						LN		12		6		false		           6      certification, when someone wants to build an energy				false

		288						LN		12		7		false		           7      facility that falls under EFSEC jurisdiction, EFSEC's				false

		289						LN		12		8		false		           8      required to hold a public informational hearing and				false

		290						LN		12		9		false		           9      take comment on the application.  And then we also				false

		291						LN		12		10		false		          10      have to do a land-use consistency hearing.  But				false

		292						LN		12		11		false		          11      that's not all there is to the process.  There's				false

		293						LN		12		12		false		          12      other steps that follow that you'll hear about in the				false

		294						LN		12		13		false		          13      PowerPoint presentation.				false

		295						LN		12		14		false		          14          They include the environmental review under the				false

		296						LN		12		15		false		          15      State Environmental Policy Act.  And if the project				false

		297						LN		12		16		false		          16      doesn't qualify for what we call expedited				false

		298						LN		12		17		false		          17      processing, then EFSEC is required to also hold an				false

		299						LN		12		18		false		          18      adjudicative hearing.  So there's a lot of steps.				false

		300						LN		12		19		false		          19          The reason I'm telling you all this right now,				false

		301						LN		12		20		false		          20      even though you're going to get a nutshell				false

		302						LN		12		21		false		          21      presentation of it shortly, is because there are a				false

		303						LN		12		22		false		          22      lot of steps ahead of us in terms of engaging with				false

		304						LN		12		23		false		          23      EFSEC and providing input into the process, and they				false

		305						LN		12		24		false		          24      all have -- these different parts of the process all				false

		306						LN		12		25		false		          25      serve a different role.				false

		307						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		308						LN		13		1		false		           1          Tonight when you come up and you talk with us				false

		309						LN		13		2		false		           2      about this application, what it's going to do is it's				false

		310						LN		13		3		false		           3      going to help inform our review of the application				false

		311						LN		13		4		false		           4      that was just filed.  And so as the SEPA responsible				false

		312						LN		13		5		false		           5      official of EFSEC, I'm going to be looking at those				false

		313						LN		13		6		false		           6      comments to help inform what I'm looking at when I'm				false

		314						LN		13		7		false		           7      interpreting the information in the application.  And				false

		315						LN		13		8		false		           8      what we hope to do is get to a point where we				false

		316						LN		13		9		false		           9      consider the application to be complete enough to be				false

		317						LN		13		10		false		          10      able to move towards the next part of the process.				false

		318						LN		13		11		false		          11          So with that being said, I encourage you to also				false

		319						LN		13		12		false		          12      sign up with us, if you haven't already, for				false

		320						LN		13		13		false		          13      notifications about the project and EFSEC activities.				false

		321						LN		13		14		false		          14      Because moving forward from here, EFSEC will be				false

		322						LN		13		15		false		          15      talking with the Council at our monthly Council				false

		323						LN		13		16		false		          16      meetings.  They're held on the third Wednesday of				false

		324						LN		13		17		false		          17      each month.  And there'll be a project update about				false

		325						LN		13		18		false		          18      this specific application at each one of those				false

		326						LN		13		19		false		          19      meetings.				false

		327						LN		13		20		false		          20          So it's a good way to stay apprised as to what's				false

		328						LN		13		21		false		          21      developing with the application review, public				false

		329						LN		13		22		false		          22      meetings that we're planning for the future parts of				false

		330						LN		13		23		false		          23      the process.				false

		331						LN		13		24		false		          24          So thank you for coming out, and I am now going				false

		332						LN		13		25		false		          25      to pass this over to our siting specialist so that				false

		333						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		334						LN		14		1		false		           1      they can introduce themselves and start the				false

		335						LN		14		2		false		           2      presentation.				false

		336						LN		14		3		false		           3                        MS. BELKINA:  Welcome, everybody.				false

		337						LN		14		4		false		           4      And thank you, all, for coming to participate this				false

		338						LN		14		5		false		           5      evening.  My name is Maria Belkina.  I'm the lead				false

		339						LN		14		6		false		           6      site specialist for EFSEC for this project.  And I				false

		340						LN		14		7		false		           7      would like to introduce my colleague Lance Caputo.				false

		341						LN		14		8		false		           8      He will be giving a short presentation on the EFSEC				false

		342						LN		14		9		false		           9      process for those who are unfamiliar with our agency.				false

		343						LN		14		10		false		          10                        MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Maria.				false

		344						LN		14		11		false		          11          As Maria mentioned, my name is Lance Caputo.				false

		345						LN		14		12		false		          12      I've been assigned to assist Maria.  She is the lead				false

		346						LN		14		13		false		          13      siting specialist on this project.  And I am going to				false

		347						LN		14		14		false		          14      go through a very hopefully brief overview of the				false

		348						LN		14		15		false		          15      agency and our process.				false

		349						LN		14		16		false		          16          A little bit about the history of the EFSEC				false

		350						LN		14		17		false		          17      agency.  EFSEC was created in 1970 for the siting of				false

		351						LN		14		18		false		          18      thermal power plants.  The intent was to create a				false

		352						LN		14		19		false		          19      one-stop permitting agency for large energy				false

		353						LN		14		20		false		          20      facilities.  EFSEC is comprised of state and local				false

		354						LN		14		21		false		          21      government members who review each application before				false

		355						LN		14		22		false		          22      voting to make a council recommendation to the				false

		356						LN		14		23		false		          23      governor.				false

		357						LN		14		24		false		          24          If recommending approval, the package to the				false

		358						LN		14		25		false		          25      governor includes a draft site certification				false

		359						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		360						LN		15		1		false		           1      agreement, or what we call a SCA, which defines all				false

		361						LN		15		2		false		           2      preconstruction, construction, and operation plans.				false

		362						LN		15		3		false		           3      If approved by the governor's office, the decision				false

		363						LN		15		4		false		           4      preempts all other state or local regulations.				false

		364						LN		15		5		false		           5          EFSEC is comprised of members from several				false

		365						LN		15		6		false		           6      different state-level agencies.  The chairperson is				false

		366						LN		15		7		false		           7      appointed by the governor, and there are standing				false

		367						LN		15		8		false		           8      members from five other agencies appointed by those				false

		368						LN		15		9		false		           9      agencies to sit on the Council.				false

		369						LN		15		10		false		          10          The current Council is made up of Chairman Kurt				false

		370						LN		15		11		false		          11      Beckett, Blake Nelson from the Department of Ecology,				false

		371						LN		15		12		false		          12      Nate Pamplin from the Department of Fish and				false

		372						LN		15		13		false		          13      Wildlife, Elizabeth Osborne from the Department of				false

		373						LN		15		14		false		          14      Commerce, Maverick Ryan from the Department of				false

		374						LN		15		15		false		          15      Natural Resources, and Brian Rybarik from the				false

		375						LN		15		16		false		          16      Utilities and Transportation Commission.				false

		376						LN		15		17		false		          17          There are additional agencies that may elect to				false

		377						LN		15		18		false		          18      appoint a Council member during the review of a new				false

		378						LN		15		19		false		          19      application.  These agencies are the Department of				false

		379						LN		15		20		false		          20      Agriculture, the Department of Transportation, the				false

		380						LN		15		21		false		          21      Department of Health, and the Military Department.				false

		381						LN		15		22		false		          22          The local county shall also appoint a Council				false

		382						LN		15		23		false		          23      member for the review of a new application.  For				false

		383						LN		15		24		false		          24      Skamania County, Asa Leckie -- if I said your name				false

		384						LN		15		25		false		          25      correctly, sir -- is the county representative.  If a				false

		385						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		386						LN		16		1		false		           1      proposal -- if a proposal project is located at a				false

		387						LN		16		2		false		           2      port, the port may also appoint a nonvoting member.				false

		388						LN		16		3		false		           3          Multiple energy generations -- generation				false

		389						LN		16		4		false		           4      facilities fall under EFSEC's jurisdiction.  Some				false

		390						LN		16		5		false		           5      projects, such as thermal power plants with less than				false

		391						LN		16		6		false		           6      350 megawatts and nuclear generation for the purpose				false

		392						LN		16		7		false		           7      of generating electricity, are required to be sited				false

		393						LN		16		8		false		           8      through EFSEC, while others -- such as wind, solar,				false

		394						LN		16		9		false		           9      green hydrogen, storage, or clean energy				false

		395						LN		16		10		false		          10      manufacturing -- can opt in our process at any size.				false

		396						LN		16		11		false		          11          Transmission lines greater than 115 kilovolts can				false

		397						LN		16		12		false		          12      also opt in, while lines greater than 500 kilovolts				false

		398						LN		16		13		false		          13      alternating current or 300 kilovolts direct current				false

		399						LN		16		14		false		          14      are required.  Thresholds for pipelines and				false

		400						LN		16		15		false		          15      refineries that may be sited through EFSEC are found				false

		401						LN		16		16		false		          16      in the Revised Codes of Washington, or RCW,				false

		402						LN		16		17		false		          17      80.50.060.				false

		403						LN		16		18		false		          18          Multiple energy generation -- thank you.  My				false

		404						LN		16		19		false		          19      first mistake.  Somebody keep track for me.  I				false

		405						LN		16		20		false		          20      appreciate how many mistakes I make.				false

		406						LN		16		21		false		          21          Here is a map of the facilities that are				false

		407						LN		16		22		false		          22      certified or have applied for certification under				false

		408						LN		16		23		false		          23      EFSEC's jurisdiction.  You can see marked in green,				false

		409						LN		16		24		false		          24      there are seven operating facilities, including two				false

		410						LN		16		25		false		          25      natural gas facilities, one nuclear facility, two				false

		411						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		412						LN		17		1		false		           1      solar facilities and two wind facilities.				false

		413						LN		17		2		false		           2          The blue marks indicate the four additional				false

		414						LN		17		3		false		           3      facilities that are approved but are not yet				false

		415						LN		17		4		false		           4      constructed.				false

		416						LN		17		5		false		           5          The clear circle is the one facility in the				false

		417						LN		17		6		false		           6      process of being decommissioned.  EFSEC is currently				false

		418						LN		17		7		false		           7      reviewing seven projects marked by yellow, including				false

		419						LN		17		8		false		           8      this Cascade Renewable Transmission project.				false

		420						LN		17		9		false		           9          Here is a flowchart showing the general process				false

		421						LN		17		10		false		          10      an applicant will go through when they submit an				false

		422						LN		17		11		false		          11      application to EFSEC.  I know it looks daunting, but				false

		423						LN		17		12		false		          12      please bear with us.				false

		424						LN		17		13		false		          13          There are yellow boxes on the chart that indicate				false

		425						LN		17		14		false		          14      specific milestones in the process where the Council				false

		426						LN		17		15		false		          15      and staff seek public input.  You can see that there				false

		427						LN		17		16		false		          16      are multiple processes that happen concurrently when				false

		428						LN		17		17		false		          17      EFSEC is reviewing an application.  The permitting				false

		429						LN		17		18		false		          18      process, outlined across the top row, involves				false

		430						LN		17		19		false		          19      identifying and preparing applicable environmental				false

		431						LN		17		20		false		          20      permits.  The land-use and adjudicative process runs				false

		432						LN		17		21		false		          21      through the middle.  And the State Environmental				false

		433						LN		17		22		false		          22      Policy Act, or what we call SEPA, process is shown				false

		434						LN		17		23		false		          23      along the bottom.  All these processes ultimately				false

		435						LN		17		24		false		          24      feed into the Council's recommendation made to the				false

		436						LN		17		25		false		          25      governor.				false

		437						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		438						LN		18		1		false		           1          Where an adjudication is required following the				false

		439						LN		18		2		false		           2      land-use consistency hearing, an order is issued to				false

		440						LN		18		3		false		           3      commence proceedings and initiate intervention.				false

		441						LN		18		4		false		           4      Here, members of the public wishing to participate in				false

		442						LN		18		5		false		           5      the adjudication must identify themselves and their				false

		443						LN		18		6		false		           6      issues in writing.  There are prehearing conferences				false

		444						LN		18		7		false		           7      through which parties are granted intervention status				false

		445						LN		18		8		false		           8      and issues are identified.  Exhibits and testimony				false

		446						LN		18		9		false		           9      are provided, and cross-examination is conducted.				false

		447						LN		18		10		false		          10          After this, the Council looks at all the				false

		448						LN		18		11		false		          11      information in the adjudication record and				false

		449						LN		18		12		false		          12      deliberates.  Finally, the Council develops an order				false

		450						LN		18		13		false		          13      establishing their findings of fact and conclusions				false

		451						LN		18		14		false		          14      of law from the information provided throughout these				false

		452						LN		18		15		false		          15      proceedings.				false

		453						LN		18		16		false		          16          For every proposed project, a SEPA review is				false

		454						LN		18		17		false		          17      performed.  When a determination of significance and				false

		455						LN		18		18		false		          18      a decision to prepare an environmental impact				false

		456						LN		18		19		false		          19      statement -- or what we call an EIS -- is made,				false

		457						LN		18		20		false		          20      public comments are taken on the scope of the EIS.				false

		458						LN		18		21		false		          21          After public comment for scoping, the SEPA				false

		459						LN		18		22		false		          22      responsible official -- here, our agency director				false

		460						LN		18		23		false		          23      Sonia Bumpus -- determines the scope of the EIS.  A				false

		461						LN		18		24		false		          24      draft EIS is prepared and issued with a minimum				false

		462						LN		18		25		false		          25      30-day public comment period, after which the final				false

		463						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		464						LN		19		1		false		           1      EIS is prepared and released.				false

		465						LN		19		2		false		           2          In some instances, a determination of				false

		466						LN		19		3		false		           3      nonsignificance, or a DNS, or a mitigated				false

		467						LN		19		4		false		           4      determination of nonsignificance, an MDNS, is issued.				false

		468						LN		19		5		false		           5      If the SEPA responsible official determines that a				false

		469						LN		19		6		false		           6      project meets the criteria of a DNS or MDNS, an EIS				false

		470						LN		19		7		false		           7      is not required.				false

		471						LN		19		8		false		           8          This is an alphabet we have here going.				false

		472						LN		19		9		false		           9          In this process, determination is noticed to the				false

		473						LN		19		10		false		          10      public, and there is a minimum 15-day public comment				false

		474						LN		19		11		false		          11      period on a mitigated determination of				false

		475						LN		19		12		false		          12      nonsignificance while a determination of significance				false

		476						LN		19		13		false		          13      requires no comment period.				false

		477						LN		19		14		false		          14          Following the conclusion of these separate				false

		478						LN		19		15		false		          15      avenues of application review, the Council develops				false

		479						LN		19		16		false		          16      its recommendation to the governor, tying together				false

		480						LN		19		17		false		          17      the information brought forth throughout the entire				false

		481						LN		19		18		false		          18      application review process.  If a project is issued a				false

		482						LN		19		19		false		          19      mitigated determination of nonsignificance and				false

		483						LN		19		20		false		          20      received a determination of land-use consistency, it				false

		484						LN		19		21		false		          21      may qualify for an expedited review process.				false

		485						LN		19		22		false		          22          To be considered for expedited processing, an				false

		486						LN		19		23		false		          23      applicant must make the request in writing.  If the				false

		487						LN		19		24		false		          24      project meets the two aforementioned criteria for				false

		488						LN		19		25		false		          25      land-use consistency and a MDNS, the Council can				false

		489						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		490						LN		20		1		false		           1      grant expedited process review.				false

		491						LN		20		2		false		           2          In this expedited process, the adjudication step				false

		492						LN		20		3		false		           3      is not required, and an environmental impact				false

		493						LN		20		4		false		           4      statement is not prepared.  Applications granted				false

		494						LN		20		5		false		           5      expedited processing do hold an additional public				false

		495						LN		20		6		false		           6      hearing prior to the Council's recommendation to hear				false

		496						LN		20		7		false		           7      any conditions that may be considered to impose on				false

		497						LN		20		8		false		           8      the project, similar to a conditional use process				false

		498						LN		20		9		false		           9      hearing.  The Council prepares their recommendation				false

		499						LN		20		10		false		          10      to the governor in an expedited time frame under this				false

		500						LN		20		11		false		          11      process.				false

		501						LN		20		12		false		          12          Now, EFSEC is also the issuing agency for any				false

		502						LN		20		13		false		          13      applicable state and local governmental permits a				false

		503						LN		20		14		false		          14      facility may require, including water quality and air				false

		504						LN		20		15		false		          15      quality permits as they may apply.  The permits are				false

		505						LN		20		16		false		          16      identified in the final package with the Council's				false

		506						LN		20		17		false		          17      recommendation to the governor.				false

		507						LN		20		18		false		          18          If an application is approved by the governor,				false

		508						LN		20		19		false		          19      EFSEC then has oversight of the environmental				false

		509						LN		20		20		false		          20      compliance for the life of the facility through				false

		510						LN		20		21		false		          21      decommissioning.  EFSEC has standing contracts with				false

		511						LN		20		22		false		          22      applicable state agencies that assist in monitoring				false

		512						LN		20		23		false		          23      and enforcement of conditions either in the site				false

		513						LN		20		24		false		          24      certification agreement, identified permits, or the				false

		514						LN		20		25		false		          25      environmental impact statement or the mitigated				false

		515						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		516						LN		21		1		false		           1      determination of nonsignificance.  EFSEC's				false

		517						LN		21		2		false		           2      enforcement authority extends to the issuance of any				false

		518						LN		21		3		false		           3      penalties that may apply.				false

		519						LN		21		4		false		           4          At the conclusion of the Council's review of an				false

		520						LN		21		5		false		           5      application, a recommendation is made to the governor				false

		521						LN		21		6		false		           6      to either approve or reject the application.  This				false

		522						LN		21		7		false		           7      initiates a 60-day window within which the governor				false

		523						LN		21		8		false		           8      will then either approve the application, reject the				false

		524						LN		21		9		false		           9      application, or remand the application back to the				false

		525						LN		21		10		false		          10      Council for reconsideration.  Any application that is				false

		526						LN		21		11		false		          11      rejected by the governor is a final decision on that				false

		527						LN		21		12		false		          12      application.				false

		528						LN		21		13		false		          13          As previously mentioned, EFSEC oversees				false

		529						LN		21		14		false		          14      facilities under its jurisdiction through				false

		530						LN		21		15		false		          15      decommissioning.  Prior to the start of construction				false

		531						LN		21		16		false		          16      of approved projects, an initial site restoration				false

		532						LN		21		17		false		          17      plan is required.  Then at the end of the life				false

		533						LN		21		18		false		          18      expectancy of the facility, prior to the start of				false

		534						LN		21		19		false		          19      decommissioning, a detailed site restoration plan is				false

		535						LN		21		20		false		          20      required.				false

		536						LN		21		21		false		          21          These plans must be reviewed and approved by the				false

		537						LN		21		22		false		          22      Council.  The project must also provide financial				false

		538						LN		21		23		false		          23      assurance for the decommissioning in the event that				false

		539						LN		21		24		false		          24      the project is no longer able to complete the				false

		540						LN		21		25		false		          25      process.  Assuming the project decommissions while				false
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		542						LN		22		1		false		           1      still on the full control of the developer, these				false

		543						LN		22		2		false		           2      costs would be paid by the certificate holder				false

		544						LN		22		3		false		           3      directly.				false

		545						LN		22		4		false		           4          And before I conclude the presentation, I'd like				false

		546						LN		22		5		false		           5      to mention that our partners in the project are				false

		547						LN		22		6		false		           6      representing the State of Oregon, the senior siting				false

		548						LN		22		7		false		           7      analyst with the Oregon Department of Energy and the				false

		549						LN		22		8		false		           8      Energy Facility Siting Council, is Christopher Clark.				false

		550						LN		22		9		false		           9      He's here tonight.  So if you have questions about				false

		551						LN		22		10		false		          10      the Oregon half of the project, the gentleman over				false

		552						LN		22		11		false		          11      there with the beard.  He's available for you.				false

		553						LN		22		12		false		          12          So thank you for joining us this evening.  We				false

		554						LN		22		13		false		          13      appreciate your time and interest in the Cascade				false

		555						LN		22		14		false		          14      Renewable Transmission Project.  Our work is closely				false

		556						LN		22		15		false		          15      coordinated with the Oregon Department of Energy and				false

		557						LN		22		16		false		          16      the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, ensuring that both				false

		558						LN		22		17		false		          17      states and federal agencies have aligned in the				false

		559						LN		22		18		false		          18      environmental permitting process.				false

		560						LN		22		19		false		          19          This wraps up my presentation for the evening.				false

		561						LN		22		20		false		          20      But before I end, I'd like to remind everyone how				false

		562						LN		22		21		false		          21      they may submit comments for this project.				false

		563						LN		22		22		false		          22          You may send in written comments by e-mail to				false

		564						LN		22		23		false		          23      comments@efsec.wa.gov; by postal mail to our office				false

		565						LN		22		24		false		          24      at 621 Woodland Square Loop, PO Box 43172, Olympia,				false

		566						LN		22		25		false		          25      Washington; or by phone at (360) 664-1345.				false
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		568						LN		23		1		false		           1          When EFSEC is in an active comment period				false

		569						LN		23		2		false		           2      associated with a specific milestone, comments may				false

		570						LN		23		3		false		           3      also be submitted to our online comment database at				false

		571						LN		23		4		false		           4      comments.efsec.wa.gov.  All comments received,				false

		572						LN		23		5		false		           5      regardless of timing or method of delivery, will be				false

		573						LN		23		6		false		           6      saved with the project record and available to the				false

		574						LN		23		7		false		           7      Council and staff for review.				false

		575						LN		23		8		false		           8          Thank you for bearing with me.  And I'll turn it				false

		576						LN		23		9		false		           9      back over to Maria?  Sonia Bumpus, our director.				false

		577						LN		23		10		false		          10                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Lance.				false

		578						LN		23		11		false		          11      Really appreciate it.				false

		579						LN		23		12		false		          12          Just a couple of things.  And Lance went over				false

		580						LN		23		13		false		          13      the -- how to submit comments, so I won't go back				false

		581						LN		23		14		false		          14      over that, other than just to say, so using an				false

		582						LN		23		15		false		          15      example from the presentation, Lance talked about, if				false

		583						LN		23		16		false		          16      we were to prepare an EIS, we would make a				false

		584						LN		23		17		false		          17      determination of significance.				false

		585						LN		23		18		false		          18          And he also mentioned that there's no comment, no				false

		586						LN		23		19		false		          19      public comment period required when I issue a				false

		587						LN		23		20		false		          20      determination of significance.  However, there's this				false

		588						LN		23		21		false		          21      part of SEPA, called scoping, that we're required to				false

		589						LN		23		22		false		          22      do.				false

		590						LN		23		23		false		          23          So if we were going to make a determination of				false

		591						LN		23		24		false		          24      significance, we would need to go through a scoping				false

		592						LN		23		25		false		          25      period.  And there's a comment period that we're				false
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		594						LN		24		1		false		           1      required to do.  And what that comment period does is				false

		595						LN		24		2		false		           2      it gives us a chance to hear from you as far as what				false

		596						LN		24		3		false		           3      you think needs to be analyzed or considered in that				false

		597						LN		24		4		false		           4      environmental impact statement.				false

		598						LN		24		5		false		           5          And so that is exactly what EFSEC would call a				false

		599						LN		24		6		false		           6      comment period.  So if you're on that mailing list				false

		600						LN		24		7		false		           7      that I talked about earlier, you would get noticed,				false

		601						LN		24		8		false		           8      Hey, EFSEC is going to be starting scoping.  We've				false

		602						LN		24		9		false		           9      issued a determination of significance, and we're				false

		603						LN		24		10		false		          10      inviting you to provide comments to us about the				false

		604						LN		24		11		false		          11      scope of the environmental impact statement.				false

		605						LN		24		12		false		          12          So just to give you a real-world example of one				false

		606						LN		24		13		false		          13      of those milestones that Lance highlighted in his				false

		607						LN		24		14		false		          14      presentation.  Thank you.				false

		608						LN		24		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, all.				false

		609						LN		24		16		false		          16          As we move to the PowerPoint, let me make a brief				false

		610						LN		24		17		false		          17      word.  A PowerPoint from the applicants.  I think we				false

		611						LN		24		18		false		          18      can cue that up.  We will move to the project				false

		612						LN		24		19		false		          19      overview, which is one of the most critical parts				false

		613						LN		24		20		false		          20      tonight in addition to your input.				false

		614						LN		24		21		false		          21          I did want to also highlight again Commissioner				false

		615						LN		24		22		false		          22      Leckie, Asa Leckie, who is serving on this project				false

		616						LN		24		23		false		          23      council for the Cascade Renewable Transmission				false

		617						LN		24		24		false		          24      Project -- always appreciate busy officials that are				false

		618						LN		24		25		false		          25      also now dual -- dual-hatting and providing their				false
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		620						LN		25		1		false		           1      presence on behalf of Skamania County on the project				false

		621						LN		25		2		false		           2      council.				false

		622						LN		25		3		false		           3          So, Commissioner, we welcome you to this process				false

		623						LN		25		4		false		           4      and appreciate your making time for it and those who				false

		624						LN		25		5		false		           5      you represent.				false

		625						LN		25		6		false		           6          Also wanted to echo Lance's comments of				false

		626						LN		25		7		false		           7      highlighting our partner from the Department of				false

		627						LN		25		8		false		           8      Energy in Oregon.  That's EFSC with one "E," and				false

		628						LN		25		9		false		           9      we're EFSEC with two Es, is one way to keep that				false

		629						LN		25		10		false		          10      clear, so to speak.				false

		630						LN		25		11		false		          11          So, with that, over to you, sir.				false

		631						LN		25		12		false		          12                        MR. HOCKER:  All right.				false

		632						LN		25		13		false		          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		633						LN		25		14		false		          14                        MR. HOCKER:  Thank you.  And thank				false

		634						LN		25		15		false		          15      you to EFSEC and particularly to the folks who turned				false

		635						LN		25		16		false		          16      out tonight.  We appreciate the interest.				false

		636						LN		25		17		false		          17          My name is Chris Hocker.  The company I work for				false

		637						LN		25		18		false		          18      is called PowerBridge.  My colleague Susan Brown is				false

		638						LN		25		19		false		          19      next to me.  And like I said before, we had some				false

		639						LN		25		20		false		          20      project representatives throughout the audience here				false

		640						LN		25		21		false		          21      who'd be happy to answer informal questions.				false

		641						LN		25		22		false		          22          The project that we're going to describe is				false

		642						LN		25		23		false		          23      innovative in the sense that it's a technology that				false

		643						LN		25		24		false		          24      has not been used widely in the Pacific Northwest,				false

		644						LN		25		25		false		          25      but it is a technology that has been used on several				false
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		646						LN		26		1		false		           1      occasions throughout the world.  And the company I				false

		647						LN		26		2		false		           2      work for, PowerBridge, has actually developed and				false

		648						LN		26		3		false		           3      built and currently operates two such projects				false

		649						LN		26		4		false		           4      involving underwater electric transmission.				false

		650						LN		26		5		false		           5          Before I go any further, I do want to acknowledge				false

		651						LN		26		6		false		           6      that we're well aware of the long-standing thousands				false

		652						LN		26		7		false		           7      of years of occupancy by indigenous peoples of the				false

		653						LN		26		8		false		           8      region, and we are working very diligently to engage				false

		654						LN		26		9		false		           9      with tribes and understand their concerns.  So, you				false

		655						LN		26		10		false		          10      know, I wanted to make sure that you knew that we're				false

		656						LN		26		11		false		          11      very much appreciative of that and it's an ongoing				false

		657						LN		26		12		false		          12      effort that's been going on for several years.				false

		658						LN		26		13		false		          13          So I hopefully won't take too much time.  But I				false

		659						LN		26		14		false		          14      do want to give you a pretty thorough overview.				false

		660						LN		26		15		false		          15          The project begins in The Dalles, Oregon, and				false

		661						LN		26		16		false		          16      ends in the Rivergate section of Portland.				false

		662						LN		26		17		false		          17          What's next?				false

		663						LN		26		18		false		          18          It is about a hundred miles in length, of which				false

		664						LN		26		19		false		          19      about 80 is underwater.  When we say underwater, we				false

		665						LN		26		20		false		          20      mean buried 10 to 15 feet below the sediment of the				false

		666						LN		26		21		false		          21      river.  It's not lying on the bottom of the river.				false

		667						LN		26		22		false		          22          It avoids negative impacts associated with				false

		668						LN		26		23		false		          23      overhead transmission lines.  It will probably take				false

		669						LN		26		24		false		          24      about three and a half years to build.  The				false

		670						LN		26		25		false		          25      installation of the cable underwater would only occur				false
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		672						LN		27		1		false		           1      during winter months to avoid sensitive periods for				false

		673						LN		27		2		false		           2      migration and spawning of fish.				false

		674						LN		27		3		false		           3          And like I said before, this is a technology that				false

		675						LN		27		4		false		           4      has been in use for quite some time and continues to				false

		676						LN		27		5		false		           5      be in use around the world.				false

		677						LN		27		6		false		           6          Next.				false

		678						LN		27		7		false		           7          Just as sort of a backdrop:  A few years ago,				false

		679						LN		27		8		false		           8      both states, Washington and Oregon, passed				false

		680						LN		27		9		false		           9      legislation that mandated a sort of a stair-step				false

		681						LN		27		10		false		          10      process of achieving 100 percent clean energy in				false

		682						LN		27		11		false		          11      their states.  And the first milestone under those				false

		683						LN		27		12		false		          12      mandates actually occurs in 2030, and then it				false

		684						LN		27		13		false		          13      ratchets up from there.				false

		685						LN		27		14		false		          14          So it is a state mandate to move to clean energy.				false

		686						LN		27		15		false		          15      The issue, however, is that most of the clean energy				false

		687						LN		27		16		false		          16      resources exist east of the Cascades.  And most of				false

		688						LN		27		17		false		          17      the load, the people who actually use the power, is				false

		689						LN		27		18		false		          18      west of the Cascades.  So the dilemma is how do you				false

		690						LN		27		19		false		          19      get enough transmission to move the energy from east				false

		691						LN		27		20		false		          20      to the west.				false

		692						LN		27		21		false		          21          Next.				false

		693						LN		27		22		false		          22          Right now, in the region, Washington and Oregon,				false

		694						LN		27		23		false		          23      the existing transmission system is very much				false

		695						LN		27		24		false		          24      constrained.  It's at its limit.  Not every single				false

		696						LN		27		25		false		          25      hour of every day.  But at peak periods, the				false
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		698						LN		28		1		false		           1      transmission system is under great constraint.  And				false

		699						LN		28		2		false		           2      this isn't just us saying this.  It's something that				false

		700						LN		28		3		false		           3      has been more and more widely acknowledged throughout				false

		701						LN		28		4		false		           4      the region, as you can see by, you know, some of the				false

		702						LN		28		5		false		           5      headlines shown here.				false

		703						LN		28		6		false		           6          So there's very little available east-to-west				false

		704						LN		28		7		false		           7      transmission capacity.  There's a transmission grid				false

		705						LN		28		8		false		           8      that was built in the '60s and '70s primarily by BPA.				false

		706						LN		28		9		false		           9      Putting in new overhead high-capacity transmission				false

		707						LN		28		10		false		          10      lines is very challenging.  There have been a couple				false

		708						LN		28		11		false		          11      of efforts to do that that have failed.				false

		709						LN		28		12		false		          12          And so we have this, as I said, highly				false

		710						LN		28		13		false		          13      constrained transmission system that needs to be				false

		711						LN		28		14		false		          14      addressed one way or the other.				false

		712						LN		28		15		false		          15          Next.				false

		713						LN		28		16		false		          16          Now, I realize this is not the most intuitive				false

		714						LN		28		17		false		          17      slide, but I'm showing it because it illustrates how				false

		715						LN		28		18		false		          18      energy flows and how the project, even though it				false

		716						LN		28		19		false		          19      begins in Oregon and it terminates in Oregon, really				false

		717						LN		28		20		false		          20      doesn't -- it's irrespective of geography.  And the				false

		718						LN		28		21		false		          21      benefits to Washington are every bit as evident as				false

		719						LN		28		22		false		          22      the benefits to Oregon.				false

		720						LN		28		23		false		          23          The blue kind of semicircles illustrate the				false

		721						LN		28		24		false		          24      current main energy flows from east of the Cascades				false

		722						LN		28		25		false		          25      to the west.  The little circles are planned and very				false
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		724						LN		29		1		false		           1      early-stage planning that BPA and others are thinking				false

		725						LN		29		2		false		           2      of building.  And the reason they need to build those				false

		726						LN		29		3		false		           3      improvements in the red and the black circles and the				false

		727						LN		29		4		false		           4      blue circles is because the system works as a whole.				false

		728						LN		29		5		false		           5          So if you're bringing energy from sources in the				false

		729						LN		29		6		false		           6      east, you don't just string a line and from Point A				false

		730						LN		29		7		false		           7      to Point B.  Everything you do has an impact on the				false

		731						LN		29		8		false		           8      existing system, so that if you bring it over to a				false

		732						LN		29		9		false		           9      point, then that's going to affect how the other				false

		733						LN		29		10		false		          10      parts of the system need to be upgraded to make it				false

		734						LN		29		11		false		          11      all work.  Otherwise, all you're doing is moving				false

		735						LN		29		12		false		          12      constraints.				false

		736						LN		29		13		false		          13          Our project, which is the green line, bypasses				false

		737						LN		29		14		false		          14      those constraints by going directly from the Big Eddy				false

		738						LN		29		15		false		          15      substation in The Dalles to the load center in				false

		739						LN		29		16		false		          16      greater Portland.  From there, it then escapes the				false

		740						LN		29		17		false		          17      constraints and is able to flow north and south.  So				false

		741						LN		29		18		false		          18      by eliminating, or I should say reducing -- because				false

		742						LN		29		19		false		          19      it's not the only solution -- by reducing those				false

		743						LN		29		20		false		          20      constraints, you benefit the whole system in both				false

		744						LN		29		21		false		          21      states.				false

		745						LN		29		22		false		          22          So as we said, we've, you know, managed to draw a				false

		746						LN		29		23		false		          23      certain amount of attention as we've been filing				false

		747						LN		29		24		false		          24      permits and dealing with folks on both sides of the				false

		748						LN		29		25		false		          25      river.  We are part of the needed solution, which is				false
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		750						LN		30		1		false		           1      really probably three/four, at least, thousand				false

		751						LN		30		2		false		           2      megawatts' worth of transmission capacity.  What we				false

		752						LN		30		3		false		           3      propose is 1100 megawatts.  So it's a significant				false

		753						LN		30		4		false		           4      portion of meeting the constraints.  It's not the				false

		754						LN		30		5		false		           5      only solution, but it's one that we know can be				false

		755						LN		30		6		false		           6      implemented.				false

		756						LN		30		7		false		           7          So it's hard to depict a hundred-mile				false

		757						LN		30		8		false		           8      transmission line, but this is essentially the				false

		758						LN		30		9		false		           9      overview of the project that, like I said, begins in				false

		759						LN		30		10		false		          10      The Dalles.  And, by the way, that complex, if you're				false

		760						LN		30		11		false		          11      familiar with it -- it's called the Starr Complex --				false

		761						LN		30		12		false		          12      is a very large BPA set of facilities, including a				false

		762						LN		30		13		false		          13      large substation called Big Eddy.				false

		763						LN		30		14		false		          14          And the transmission that moves east from --				false

		764						LN		30		15		false		          15      further east into The Dalles, into Starr, is not				false

		765						LN		30		16		false		          16      constrained.  The constrained area is basically the				false

		766						LN		30		17		false		          17      hundred miles between Big Eddy and here.				false

		767						LN		30		18		false		          18          So the green is the underwater portion.  The				false

		768						LN		30		19		false		          19      yellow is the on-land portion.  As you can see, the				false

		769						LN		30		20		false		          20      only on-land portion affecting this specific local				false

		770						LN		30		21		false		          21      area is the bypass of the Bonneville Dam, which we're				false

		771						LN		30		22		false		          22      going to show there.  There we go.				false

		772						LN		30		23		false		          23          So the idea would be to take the cable out of the				false

		773						LN		30		24		false		          24      river and land it in Stevenson.  The landing is				false

		774						LN		30		25		false		          25      affected by a technology called horizontal				false

		775						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		776						LN		31		1		false		           1      directional drill.  So there is no trenching involved				false

		777						LN		31		2		false		           2      in bringing it from -- from water to land.  It's done				false

		778						LN		31		3		false		           3      with a drill.  Conduits are pulled through.  The				false

		779						LN		31		4		false		           4      depth of the drill can be 40, 50 feet below the				false

		780						LN		31		5		false		           5      ground surface.  It comes back up onto land.  And				false

		781						LN		31		6		false		           6      then the cable is trenched.  And it's conventional				false

		782						LN		31		7		false		           7      trenching about four feet deep, as I'm sure we're all				false

		783						LN		31		8		false		           8      familiar with for cables and pipelines and things				false

		784						LN		31		9		false		           9      like that.  Water lines, that kind of thing.				false

		785						LN		31		10		false		          10          It primarily follows State Route 14.  That little				false

		786						LN		31		11		false		          11      jog on Ashes Lake Road is at the suggestion of the				false

		787						LN		31		12		false		          12      Washington DOT, Department of Transportation.  It				false

		788						LN		31		13		false		          13      proceeds around the dam, primarily on Route 14, till				false

		789						LN		31		14		false		          14      you get onto federal government property over by the				false

		790						LN		31		15		false		          15      dam, over to where you see the kind of the purple				false

		791						LN		31		16		false		          16      slash there, which is the other horizontal				false

		792						LN		31		17		false		          17      directional drill that gets it back into the water				false

		793						LN		31		18		false		          18      and on down toward -- toward the Portland area.				false

		794						LN		31		19		false		          19          Just for context, these are the Oregon land				false

		795						LN		31		20		false		          20      routes.  Each is about five miles.  It -- because				false

		796						LN		31		21		false		          21      this is a direct current -- or DC -- line, it				false

		797						LN		31		22		false		          22      requires conversion from the alternating current,				false

		798						LN		31		23		false		          23      which is what the system -- we are primarily familiar				false

		799						LN		31		24		false		          24      with.  It's converted to DC because it's -- that				false

		800						LN		31		25		false		          25      makes it controllable and doesn't require a lot of				false

		801						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		802						LN		32		1		false		           1      mechanical systems along the way.  It can be				false

		803						LN		32		2		false		           2      transported long distance underwater.				false

		804						LN		32		3		false		           3          So it's converted from AC to DC at Big Eddy.  It				false

		805						LN		32		4		false		           4      continues as a DC line to, if you look at the left				false

		806						LN		32		5		false		           5      figure, to a converter station in the Rivergate				false

		807						LN		32		6		false		           6      industrial area in Portland.  It then is converted to				false

		808						LN		32		7		false		           7      AC -- back into AC power.  Proceeds underground for				false

		809						LN		32		8		false		           8      two, three miles to the Willamette.  Once again,				false

		810						LN		32		9		false		           9      there's a horizontal directional drill that goes				false

		811						LN		32		10		false		          10      under the Willamette and comes up on the existing				false

		812						LN		32		11		false		          11      Harborton substation, which is owned by Portland				false

		813						LN		32		12		false		          12      General.				false

		814						LN		32		13		false		          13          So why are we doing this underwater?  Well, we've				false

		815						LN		32		14		false		          14      already talked about the difficulties of siting				false

		816						LN		32		15		false		          15      overhead transmission lines.  But in developing this				false

		817						LN		32		16		false		          16      project, we considered a number of alternatives to				false

		818						LN		32		17		false		          17      see if there was any possible alternative path or				false

		819						LN		32		18		false		          18      combination of paths that might be preferable to				false

		820						LN		32		19		false		          19      using the river.				false

		821						LN		32		20		false		          20          There is no available path through the gorge or				false

		822						LN		32		21		false		          21      densely populated areas without unacceptable impacts.				false

		823						LN		32		22		false		          22      If you can imagine running an overhead power line				false

		824						LN		32		23		false		          23      through the gorge, it seems rather unlikely.				false

		825						LN		32		24		false		          24          We are asked occasionally, Well, why don't you				false

		826						LN		32		25		false		          25      just bury it in I-84?  Because it's not permitted, is				false

		827						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		828						LN		33		1		false		           1      the answer.  The State DOT and the Federal Highway				false

		829						LN		33		2		false		           2      Administration does not allow for that kind of burial				false

		830						LN		33		3		false		           3      for that kind of length.  They make occasional				false

		831						LN		33		4		false		           4      exceptions for very short lengths.  But for a				false

		832						LN		33		5		false		           5      hundred-mile route, never mind that it probably isn't				false

		833						LN		33		6		false		           6      constructible.  Even if it were, they wouldn't permit				false

		834						LN		33		7		false		           7      it.				false

		835						LN		33		8		false		           8          Same with State Route 14 with a few exceptions.				false

		836						LN		33		9		false		           9      If you were to try to use State Route 14 for the				false

		837						LN		33		10		false		          10      entire length, it would be unconstructible because of				false

		838						LN		33		11		false		          11      various natural and manmade features, bridges,				false

		839						LN		33		12		false		          12      tunnels, rock slides.  We counted over 300 potential				false

		840						LN		33		13		false		          13      obstacles, which, if you had a thousand years, you				false

		841						LN		33		14		false		          14      might be able to figure them all out, but there's no				false

		842						LN		33		15		false		          15      contractor in the world who would do that.				false

		843						LN		33		16		false		          16          So we will say that for the small stretch of				false

		844						LN		33		17		false		          17      State Route 14 that bypasses the dam, that is a				false

		845						LN		33		18		false		          18      constructible route.  And as I said, we've been				false

		846						LN		33		19		false		          19      consulting with the DOT to understand, you know, what				false

		847						LN		33		20		false		          20      we need to do in order to do that.				false

		848						LN		33		21		false		          21          Same is true for railroad rights-of-way on either				false

		849						LN		33		22		false		          22      side of the river where in many cases they're so				false

		850						LN		33		23		false		          23      constrained that you basically can't do it.  And I				false

		851						LN		33		24		false		          24      doubt if the railroads would be happy about shutting				false

		852						LN		33		25		false		          25      down their operation while we figured out how to put				false

		853						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		854						LN		34		1		false		           1      the trench in the line.				false

		855						LN		34		2		false		           2          So now we get to describing the project, itself.				false

		856						LN		34		3		false		           3      This is an illustration -- it's not an illustration.				false

		857						LN		34		4		false		           4      It's the real deal.  But it's to show you what the				false

		858						LN		34		5		false		           5      cable looks like.				false

		859						LN		34		6		false		           6          If you look at the bottom left figure, the cable				false

		860						LN		34		7		false		           7      is installed in a bundle that is about 12 inches in				false

		861						LN		34		8		false		           8      diameter.  So this is a slice of an actual cable, not				false

		862						LN		34		9		false		           9      a replica or a facsimile or to scale or anything like				false

		863						LN		34		10		false		          10      that.  It's also quite heavy, so...  And as you can				false

		864						LN		34		11		false		          11      see, it's about the size of an iPhone.				false

		865						LN		34		12		false		          12          The two cables are bundled together with one or				false

		866						LN		34		13		false		          13      two fiber-optic cables.  The point of the fiber-optic				false

		867						LN		34		14		false		          14      is not a commercial enterprise.  It's to effect				false

		868						LN		34		15		false		          15      communication between the two converter stations.				false

		869						LN		34		16		false		          16      And it's used, for instance, to detect if there's a				false

		870						LN		34		17		false		          17      problem at either converter station.  It's all				false

		871						LN		34		18		false		          18      internal to the -- to the project.				false

		872						LN		34		19		false		          19          The construction, itself -- and if you look at				false

		873						LN		34		20		false		          20      the right-hand figure, this is a depiction of a				false

		874						LN		34		21		false		          21      process that uses a machine called a hydroplow or a				false

		875						LN		34		22		false		          22      jet plow that is pulled by a barge or a ship very,				false

		876						LN		34		23		false		          23      very slowly.  In a really good day, you can make				false

		877						LN		34		24		false		          24      about a mile and a half.				false

		878						LN		34		25		false		          25          Can we go back for a second.				false

		879						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		880						LN		35		1		false		           1                        MS. BROWN:  Red button?				false

		881						LN		35		2		false		           2                        MR. HOCKER:  There we go.  The				false

		882						LN		35		3		false		           3      left-hand shows the cable bundle being paid off the				false

		883						LN		35		4		false		           4      back of the vessel.  This is actually from our				false

		884						LN		35		5		false		           5      Neptune project that we -- that we built.				false

		885						LN		35		6		false		           6          And so going back to the other figure.  It is				false

		886						LN		35		7		false		           7      slowly lowered in a bundle into the machinery called				false

		887						LN		35		8		false		           8      a hydroplow.  A hydroplow has an adjustable blade.				false

		888						LN		35		9		false		           9      And most importantly, the blade includes a number of				false

		889						LN		35		10		false		          10      high-pressure water jets.  So you're not digging a				false

		890						LN		35		11		false		          11      trench.  You're basically jetting a trench that				false

		891						LN		35		12		false		          12      emulsifies the sediment.				false

		892						LN		35		13		false		          13          The cable then sort of simultaneously lays into				false

		893						LN		35		14		false		          14      the trench.  And about 75 percent of the sediment				false

		894						LN		35		15		false		          15      that rises up within the trench then settles back				false

		895						LN		35		16		false		          16      down over the cable.  So it's like one slow,				false

		896						LN		35		17		false		          17      continuous process.  There's no mechanical dredging.				false

		897						LN		35		18		false		          18      There's no massive scar on the riverbed.  The trench,				false

		898						LN		35		19		false		          19      itself, is perhaps two feet wide to accommodate a				false

		899						LN		35		20		false		          20      12-inch-diameter cable bundle.				false

		900						LN		35		21		false		          21          As we said before, the in-water portion of the				false

		901						LN		35		22		false		          22      project is only allowed during what's called work				false

		902						LN		35		23		false		          23      windows by the environmental agencies, which is				false

		903						LN		35		24		false		          24      typically in the winter months -- November through				false

		904						LN		35		25		false		          25      February, March -- and specified to avoid, as I said,				false

		905						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		906						LN		36		1		false		           1      spawning and migration of fish species.				false

		907						LN		36		2		false		           2          We talked about converter stations.  This is				false

		908						LN		36		3		false		           3      part -- this is really the only aboveground				false

		909						LN		36		4		false		           4      facilities involved in the project.  This particular				false

		910						LN		36		5		false		           5      photo is of a converter station in San Francisco.				false

		911						LN		36		6		false		           6      About 15 years ago, a project very similar to this				false

		912						LN		36		7		false		           7      was built with a converter station in San Francisco,				false

		913						LN		36		8		false		           8      a converter station in Pittsburgh, California, which				false

		914						LN		36		9		false		           9      is in the East Bay, if you're familiar with it, and				false

		915						LN		36		10		false		          10      then the cable runs under the San Francisco Bay to				false

		916						LN		36		11		false		          11      the converter station here in -- in San Francisco.				false

		917						LN		36		12		false		          12          A converter station property requirement is about				false

		918						LN		36		13		false		          13      five acres.  And it is quite similar to the type of				false

		919						LN		36		14		false		          14      substation that you may see pretty much anywhere,				false

		920						LN		36		15		false		          15      including, for instance, the Starr Complex or the				false

		921						LN		36		16		false		          16      Harborton substation that we referred to.				false

		922						LN		36		17		false		          17          Permits, approvals, studies.  We're under the				false

		923						LN		36		18		false		          18      jurisdiction of really three major entities.  One of				false

		924						LN		36		19		false		          19      them is EFSEC here in Washington.  One of them is				false

		925						LN		36		20		false		          20      EFSC, without the second "E," in Oregon.  And the				false

		926						LN		36		21		false		          21      other is the Army Corps of Engineers.				false

		927						LN		36		22		false		          22          So we need to get approvals of all three of those				false

		928						LN		36		23		false		          23      entities.  That is a complex process.  Although, we				false

		929						LN		36		24		false		          24      have been through that before with our projects on				false

		930						LN		36		25		false		          25      the East Coast between New York and New Jersey, where				false

		931						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		932						LN		37		1		false		           1      we also had two state jurisdictions and the Army				false

		933						LN		37		2		false		           2      Corps overseeing.				false

		934						LN		37		3		false		           3          So it is complex to get a coordinated review.				false

		935						LN		37		4		false		           4      It's something that I know that both EFSECs and the				false

		936						LN		37		5		false		           5      corps are focusing on in order to have a review				false

		937						LN		37		6		false		           6      that -- that can be as coordinated as possible, but				false

		938						LN		37		7		false		           7      again, still observing the interests of the various				false

		939						LN		37		8		false		           8      states and of the federal waterway.				false

		940						LN		37		9		false		           9          We also need interconnection agreements with the				false

		941						LN		37		10		false		          10      Bonneville Power Administration and Portland General				false

		942						LN		37		11		false		          11      Electric.  That's part of the process.  We have				false

		943						LN		37		12		false		          12      virtually no private property involved where the				false

		944						LN		37		13		false		          13      cable is.  It's primarily on public land.  And there				false

		945						LN		37		14		false		          14      have been already a large number of very significant				false

		946						LN		37		15		false		          15      studies that we have conducted -- biological				false

		947						LN		37		16		false		          16      assessments, sediment analysis, sediment transport --				false

		948						LN		37		17		false		          17      in other words to say, Well, okay, if you're plowing				false

		949						LN		37		18		false		          18      the sediment, where does it go?  Does it travel down				false

		950						LN		37		19		false		          19      the river?  Does it stir up anything you don't want				false

		951						LN		37		20		false		          20      to travel?  That kind of thing.				false

		952						LN		37		21		false		          21          We've conducted a geophysical survey of the river				false

		953						LN		37		22		false		          22      bottom and done a lot of modeling for things like				false

		954						LN		37		23		false		          23      magnetic fields and temperature.				false

		955						LN		37		24		false		          24          The point being that we're -- even though we				false

		956						LN		37		25		false		          25      showed you earlier on what looked like just a line on				false

		957						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		958						LN		38		1		false		           1      a piece of paper, in fact it's been sited very				false

		959						LN		38		2		false		           2      carefully; for instance, to get as close to the				false

		960						LN		38		3		false		           3      middle of the river as possible, but to avoid the				false

		961						LN		38		4		false		           4      navigation channel where possible.  We want to get				false

		962						LN		38		5		false		           5      away from the shoreline because of the cultural				false

		963						LN		38		6		false		           6      resources aspect near the historic shoreline.				false

		964						LN		38		7		false		           7          We have mapped the river bottom to know where				false

		965						LN		38		8		false		           8      there are areas of let's say solid rock or steep side				false

		966						LN		38		9		false		           9      slopes where you can't run a jet plow.  So really the				false

		967						LN		38		10		false		          10      siting has been anything but random.  It's been				false

		968						LN		38		11		false		          11      pretty careful in terms -- and to avoid habitat				false

		969						LN		38		12		false		          12      areas, foraging areas for fish, that kind of thing.				false

		970						LN		38		13		false		          13          So the permitting update.  I don't need to go				false

		971						LN		38		14		false		          14      through this in detail, but we have obviously				false

		972						LN		38		15		false		          15      submitted our application to Washington EFSEC.  We				false

		973						LN		38		16		false		          16      are in the process of completing our siting				false

		974						LN		38		17		false		          17      application for Oregon EFSC.  There are actually a				false

		975						LN		38		18		false		          18      couple of Army Corps of Engineers permits that are				false

		976						LN		38		19		false		          19      required:  Section 408, Section 404.  We have filed				false

		977						LN		38		20		false		          20      those.  Those are under review.  And a very, very				false

		978						LN		38		21		false		          21      important part of the process for the corps as well				false

		979						LN		38		22		false		          22      as for the states is consultation with the various				false

		980						LN		38		23		false		          23      Native tribes.				false

		981						LN		38		24		false		          24          And so that consultation process, which is called				false

		982						LN		38		25		false		          25      Section 106, has been underway.  And as I said				false

		983						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		984						LN		39		1		false		           1      before, we are trying as best we can and have been				false

		985						LN		39		2		false		           2      able to engage with a number of the tribes.  It's				false

		986						LN		39		3		false		           3      really the federal government's responsibility to				false

		987						LN		39		4		false		           4      lead that consultation process.  But we are				false

		988						LN		39		5		false		           5      supporting that, and it's perfectly permissible for				false

		989						LN		39		6		false		           6      us to engage ourselves as long as it's done in				false

		990						LN		39		7		false		           7      coordination with the 106 process.				false

		991						LN		39		8		false		           8          We also hold what are called agency coordination				false

		992						LN		39		9		false		           9      meetings periodically when we have something to say,				false

		993						LN		39		10		false		          10      when we have performed a study that we think might be				false

		994						LN		39		11		false		          11      interesting to the agencies or the tribes.  So every				false

		995						LN		39		12		false		          12      so often -- we've got one coming up next month --				false

		996						LN		39		13		false		          13      we -- and these are voluntary.  They're not part of				false

		997						LN		39		14		false		          14      the process.  They're outside the process.  But we've				false

		998						LN		39		15		false		          15      had very good response from the agencies and the				false

		999						LN		39		16		false		          16      tribes who sit in and learn about where we are in our				false

		1000						LN		39		17		false		          17      studies and what we have -- what we have found.				false

		1001						LN		39		18		false		          18          We do expect that the project, during				false

		1002						LN		39		19		false		          19      construction, will and can result in a variety of				false

		1003						LN		39		20		false		          20      benefits, including quite a few construction jobs				false

		1004						LN		39		21		false		          21      during the three-and-a-half-year process.  We have				false

		1005						LN		39		22		false		          22      done this before, as I keep saying.  And we				false

		1006						LN		39		23		false		          23      understand that we can't just come in, run a line, go				false

		1007						LN		39		24		false		          24      away, without partnering with the communities that				false

		1008						LN		39		25		false		          25      are affected, even if the effect isn't all that				false

		1009						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1010						LN		40		1		false		           1      great.				false

		1011						LN		40		2		false		           2          So we're open to any sort of discussions with the				false

		1012						LN		40		3		false		           3      localities where there may be an impact or an effect,				false

		1013						LN		40		4		false		           4      to look for ways to partner or benefits that we can				false

		1014						LN		40		5		false		           5      help provide.				false

		1015						LN		40		6		false		           6          So, with that, just to mention some of our				false

		1016						LN		40		7		false		           7      development team.  PowerBridge has done this before				false

		1017						LN		40		8		false		           8      within the last 20 years or so on the East Coast.				false

		1018						LN		40		9		false		           9      Sun2o Partners is primarily a solar developer that				false

		1019						LN		40		10		false		          10      was out here, oh, about six, seven years ago trying				false

		1020						LN		40		11		false		          11      to see if there were opportunities to site a solar				false

		1021						LN		40		12		false		          12      farm east of the Cascades and discovered very quickly				false

		1022						LN		40		13		false		          13      that the opportunity is only as good as the				false

		1023						LN		40		14		false		          14      transmission that will get it to the people who will				false

		1024						LN		40		15		false		          15      actually use the energy.  And so they came to us,				false

		1025						LN		40		16		false		          16      knowing that, you know, we were in this kind of				false

		1026						LN		40		17		false		          17      business, and asked us if we would take a look and				false

		1027						LN		40		18		false		          18      see if this was something that we think is feasible.				false

		1028						LN		40		19		false		          19          NextEra Transmission -- and we have a couple of				false

		1029						LN		40		20		false		          20      NextEra partners here tonight -- is the leading				false

		1030						LN		40		21		false		          21      publicly traded utility and renewables developer.				false

		1031						LN		40		22		false		          22      And they are the ones that now own and operate the				false

		1032						LN		40		23		false		          23      Trans Bay Cable project, which is the one I talked				false

		1033						LN		40		24		false		          24      about in San Francisco.				false

		1034						LN		40		25		false		          25          Next slide -- and I won't belabor this -- is just				false

		1035						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1036						LN		41		1		false		           1      an illustration of the similar marine transmission				false

		1037						LN		41		2		false		           2      that has happened throughout the world.  And there's				false

		1038						LN		41		3		false		           3      more being built that -- even beyond this particular				false

		1039						LN		41		4		false		           4      listing.				false

		1040						LN		41		5		false		           5          Our projects include, they're called Neptune and				false

		1041						LN		41		6		false		           6      Hudson.  Neptune has been running successfully for 20				false

		1042						LN		41		7		false		           7      years, or almost 20 years.  18 years.  And it's				false

		1043						LN		41		8		false		           8      similar to this.  It runs primarily underwater for				false

		1044						LN		41		9		false		           9      about 50 miles, down part of a river, and into the				false

		1045						LN		41		10		false		          10      Atlantic Ocean.  It runs almost exactly 24/7 -- 24				false

		1046						LN		41		11		false		          11      hours a day, seven days a week -- and supplies about				false

		1047						LN		41		12		false		          12      25 percent of the -- all the energy use, electric				false

		1048						LN		41		13		false		          13      power use, on Long Island.				false

		1049						LN		41		14		false		          14          The Hudson project similarly connects two power				false

		1050						LN		41		15		false		          15      grids:  One in New Jersey, one in New York.  And it				false

		1051						LN		41		16		false		          16      serves -- it goes down the Hudson River, buried				false

		1052						LN		41		17		false		          17      beneath the Hudson River, and serves the government				false

		1053						LN		41		18		false		          18      agencies in New York City.				false

		1054						LN		41		19		false		          19          So just to conclude, as I keep saying, we are				false

		1055						LN		41		20		false		          20      experienced at this.  We understand the need to be				false

		1056						LN		41		21		false		          21      respectful, to be open, to be transparent, and to try				false

		1057						LN		41		22		false		          22      to partner with the communities that we may affect.				false

		1058						LN		41		23		false		          23      And that's what we're trying to do.				false

		1059						LN		41		24		false		          24          And always happy to answer any questions, not				false

		1060						LN		41		25		false		          25      just here.  We do have a website, of course.				false

		1061						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1062						LN		42		1		false		           1      Cascade -- no.  What's it called?				false

		1063						LN		42		2		false		           2      CascadeTransmission.com.  There's a mechanism where				false

		1064						LN		42		3		false		           3      you can send us questions, which we're happy to				false

		1065						LN		42		4		false		           4      answer.  And we welcome that.				false

		1066						LN		42		5		false		           5          So, with that, I'll turn it over to Chair				false

		1067						LN		42		6		false		           6      Beckett.  Thank you.				false

		1068						LN		42		7		false		           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		1069						LN		42		8		false		           8      thorough review.  And, with that, we will move into				false

		1070						LN		42		9		false		           9      our public comment portion of this meeting.  And				false

		1071						LN		42		10		false		          10      Ms. Grantham will help me know who has signed up.				false

		1072						LN		42		11		false		          11          If you haven't signed up, you're welcome to, I				false

		1073						LN		42		12		false		          12      think, over here at this table.  And ultimately I'll				false

		1074						LN		42		13		false		          13      certainly call on you if you raise your hand and				false

		1075						LN		42		14		false		          14      would just ask that you state your name for the				false

		1076						LN		42		15		false		          15      record if you haven't already signed up.				false

		1077						LN		42		16		false		          16          So, with that, let me turn this, I believe, to				false

		1078						LN		42		17		false		          17      Ms. Grantham to let us know our first speaker.				false

		1079						LN		42		18		false		          18          Again, we are trying to limit comments tonight to				false

		1080						LN		42		19		false		          19      three minutes and welcome your comments.  If you do				false

		1081						LN		42		20		false		          20      have questions that you would like to note that be				false

		1082						LN		42		21		false		          21      included for the record, we will, you know, capture				false

		1083						LN		42		22		false		          22      those questions to the degree that we can answer some				false

		1084						LN		42		23		false		          23      tonight without, you know, cutting off other people				false

		1085						LN		42		24		false		          24      who want to speak.  I will consider that, but				false

		1086						LN		42		25		false		          25      ultimately we follow the rule of three minutes per				false

		1087						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1088						LN		43		1		false		           1      person here.				false

		1089						LN		43		2		false		           2          So, with that, Ms. Grantham.				false

		1090						LN		43		3		false		           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.				false

		1091						LN		43		4		false		           4          The first speaker that I have signed up is a Fred				false

		1092						LN		43		5		false		           5      Greef.				false

		1093						LN		43		6		false		           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Welcome, sir.				false

		1094						LN		43		7		false		           7                        MR. GREEF:  Thank you for this				false

		1095						LN		43		8		false		           8      opportunity.				false

		1096						LN		43		9		false		           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And if you would,				false

		1097						LN		43		10		false		          10      sir, if you might stand just a little closer to the				false

		1098						LN		43		11		false		          11      mike.  I don't know if we can quite capture you for				false

		1099						LN		43		12		false		          12      our online audience as well as the other Council				false

		1100						LN		43		13		false		          13      members who are here to hear your testimony, so...				false

		1101						LN		43		14		false		          14                        MR. GREEF:  All right.  Thank you				false

		1102						LN		43		15		false		          15      for this opportunity.				false

		1103						LN		43		16		false		          16          For me, one of the most important things with				false

		1104						LN		43		17		false		          17      this environmental impact statement, which I strongly				false

		1105						LN		43		18		false		          18      believe is needed and will be required, is the				false

		1106						LN		43		19		false		          19      no-action alternative.				false

		1107						LN		43		20		false		          20          I think there's many reasons why this project				false

		1108						LN		43		21		false		          21      should not go forward.  And I'm not going -- I've				false

		1109						LN		43		22		false		          22      just found out about it.  I -- I will be submitting a				false

		1110						LN		43		23		false		          23      lot more comments besides this tonight.  But you				false

		1111						LN		43		24		false		          24      mentioned there's magnetic field and temperature				false

		1112						LN		43		25		false		          25      studies.  And there's an awful lot of recreation in				false

		1113						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1114						LN		44		1		false		           1      this river:  Fishing, windsurfing, swimming.  There's				false

		1115						LN		44		2		false		           2      not a lot of lakes near the river.  This is where the				false

		1116						LN		44		3		false		           3      people here live and recreate.				false

		1117						LN		44		4		false		           4          And there's such a thing as EMFs.  I think we				false

		1118						LN		44		5		false		           5      need to do a full study of what are the impacts of				false

		1119						LN		44		6		false		           6      people right in the proximity of that cable for long				false

		1120						LN		44		7		false		           7      periods of time or -- anyway, so let's just say				false

		1121						LN		44		8		false		           8      elec- -- magnetic, electric EMFs, all that type of				false

		1122						LN		44		9		false		           9      thing really does need to be closely looked at.				false

		1123						LN		44		10		false		          10          Another thing would be -- so anyway, there's				false

		1124						LN		44		11		false		          11      going to be all kinds of recreation impacts.  People				false

		1125						LN		44		12		false		          12      might not want to be near those cables.  We might				false

		1126						LN		44		13		false		          13      lose our windsurfing on the river.				false

		1127						LN		44		14		false		          14          There may be other pathways besides the gorge.				false

		1128						LN		44		15		false		          15      The gorge is the shoreline of the greatest				false

		1129						LN		44		16		false		          16      significance in this whole Northwest region.  I know				false

		1130						LN		44		17		false		          17      Ecology's shoreline program will really be interested				false

		1131						LN		44		18		false		          18      in before they permit this.  And I believe you should				false

		1132						LN		44		19		false		          19      talk to the scientists there as to what they think				false

		1133						LN		44		20		false		          20      the impacts on the fish and all the different water				false

		1134						LN		44		21		false		          21      quality impacts associated with such disruption to				false

		1135						LN		44		22		false		          22      the most important shoreline of statewide				false

		1136						LN		44		23		false		          23      significance.				false

		1137						LN		44		24		false		          24          There's -- there may be other ways to go from				false

		1138						LN		44		25		false		          25      east-west besides the gorge.  There may be other				false

		1139						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1140						LN		45		1		false		           1      pathways through the mountains, through railroads,				false

		1141						LN		45		2		false		           2      through other highways.  You say they may not want				false

		1142						LN		45		3		false		           3      it.  So, anyway, I'm not sure that you can't put it				false

		1143						LN		45		4		false		           4      where there's railroads or other highways.  This is				false

		1144						LN		45		5		false		           5      the worst place for it.				false

		1145						LN		45		6		false		           6          I really don't have -- and I would like to know				false

		1146						LN		45		7		false		           7      who the power serves, is going -- so you mentioned				false

		1147						LN		45		8		false		           8      something like 800,000 households.  We want to be				false

		1148						LN		45		9		false		           9      sure it doesn't go to serve any data centers --				false

		1149						LN		45		10		false		          10      absolute zero -- if for some reason this project does				false

		1150						LN		45		11		false		          11      have to go through, and that there's no nuclear power				false

		1151						LN		45		12		false		          12      traveling through it that was created by any type of				false

		1152						LN		45		13		false		          13      nuclear.				false

		1153						LN		45		14		false		          14          Whether it's Bill Gates or Amazon or Meta or				false

		1154						LN		45		15		false		          15      Google, they're all pronuclear now, and that is a				false

		1155						LN		45		16		false		          16      horrible thing.  We in this state, Washington State,				false

		1156						LN		45		17		false		          17      know how horrible nuclear power is.  We had the				false

		1157						LN		45		18		false		          18      Washington Public Power Supply System, which was such				false

		1158						LN		45		19		false		          19      a disaster.  We know the impacts of -- we still have				false

		1159						LN		45		20		false		          20      not cleaned up with the river from that.				false

		1160						LN		45		21		false		          21          And then the other thing would be Bradford				false

		1161						LN		45		22		false		          22      Island.  There's been huge impacts to this river.				false

		1162						LN		45		23		false		          23      The tribal nations, their whole way of life and				false

		1163						LN		45		24		false		          24      culture was destroyed by BPA and all the dams on this				false

		1164						LN		45		25		false		          25      river.  Every -- there's things in EISs called				false

		1165						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1166						LN		46		1		false		           1      cumulative impacts.  The cumulative impacts are so				false

		1167						LN		46		2		false		           2      big already that doing this one more thing that				false

		1168						LN		46		3		false		           3      trashes the sacred tribal land and their fish use and				false

		1169						LN		46		4		false		           4      various -- it's just -- the impact on fish.				false

		1170						LN		46		5		false		           5          Then dams can be removed to help the fish.  If				false

		1171						LN		46		6		false		           6      those dams have -- if we get permission to move those				false

		1172						LN		46		7		false		           7      dams and fix the river for the fish and the recre- --				false

		1173						LN		46		8		false		           8      and what happens to your line then?  Does this mean				false

		1174						LN		46		9		false		           9      we can't remove those dams for the next 50 years?  So				false

		1175						LN		46		10		false		          10      anyway, that's just a (unintelligible) --				false

		1176						LN		46		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate your				false

		1177						LN		46		12		false		          12      comment.				false

		1178						LN		46		13		false		          13                        MR. GREEF:  I -- I'm really -- I				false

		1179						LN		46		14		false		          14      haven't even begun to get my head around this thing				false

		1180						LN		46		15		false		          15      yet.  But I think the impacts are huge.  And there's				false

		1181						LN		46		16		false		          16      no question an EIS is required in this thing.  It's				false

		1182						LN		46		17		false		          17      just -- that's all.  Thank you.				false

		1183						LN		46		18		false		          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		1184						LN		46		19		false		          19          Ms. Grantham.				false

		1185						LN		46		20		false		          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker I				false

		1186						LN		46		21		false		          21      have is Mary Repar.				false

		1187						LN		46		22		false		          22                        MS. REPAR:  Thank you very much for				false

		1188						LN		46		23		false		          23      this opportunity.  It's been a long time since				false

		1189						LN		46		24		false		          24      Whistling Ridge.  So I'm looking forward to this.				false

		1190						LN		46		25		false		          25          You're in the National -- Columbia River Gorge				false

		1191						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1192						LN		47		1		false		           1      National Scenic Area.  You've entered the twilight				false

		1193						LN		47		2		false		           2      zone for permitting process.  So welcome.  It's going				false

		1194						LN		47		3		false		           3      to be a long, long haul.				false

		1195						LN		47		4		false		           4          I'm assuming that the gorge commission also has				false

		1196						LN		47		5		false		           5      something to say about this, will have something to				false

		1197						LN		47		6		false		           6      say.  I brought it up to them at the last meeting.				false

		1198						LN		47		7		false		           7          I made comments on the Columbia River Treaty.				false

		1199						LN		47		8		false		           8      I'm sure many of you did.  And it was a very				false

		1200						LN		47		9		false		           9      interesting process.  And one of the things that the				false

		1201						LN		47		10		false		          10      Columbia River Treaty says is very important, is				false

		1202						LN		47		11		false		          11      improving the ecosystem is going to be the main aim				false

		1203						LN		47		12		false		          12      of modernization.  I don't see this project as				false

		1204						LN		47		13		false		          13      improving the ecosystems that we have here.				false

		1205						LN		47		14		false		          14          NEPA is a very good process.  It does have				false

		1206						LN		47		15		false		          15      cumulative impacts and effects, and those will have				false

		1207						LN		47		16		false		          16      to be analyzed thoroughly and with analysis.				false

		1208						LN		47		17		false		          17          This little river is being asked to do a lot.  We				false

		1209						LN		47		18		false		          18      have the Goldendale pump project that wants water				false

		1210						LN		47		19		false		          19      from the Columbia.  We have the EPA Superfund cleanup				false

		1211						LN		47		20		false		          20      at Bradford Island.  We have this, and we have that.				false

		1212						LN		47		21		false		          21      And, you know, this is asking too much of our				false

		1213						LN		47		22		false		          22      environment.  The rights of nature needs to be				false

		1214						LN		47		23		false		          23      included in the analysis of this, and I'm a very huge				false

		1215						LN		47		24		false		          24      proponent of the rights of nature.				false

		1216						LN		47		25		false		          25          Also tribal consultation and alternatives.  I				false

		1217						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1218						LN		48		1		false		           1      would like to see a lot more alternatives.  You know,				false

		1219						LN		48		2		false		           2      we're always being asked to vote for all these				false

		1220						LN		48		3		false		           3      projects that are going to make our lives better and				false

		1221						LN		48		4		false		           4      lower our utility costs.  Well, I'm not seeing it.				false

		1222						LN		48		5		false		           5      I'm sorry.  We have had solar projects that have				false

		1223						LN		48		6		false		           6      promised to lower our costs.  We have some of the				false

		1224						LN		48		7		false		           7      highest cost per kilowatt-hour here in this				false

		1225						LN		48		8		false		           8      community.  If you can't do something for our				false

		1226						LN		48		9		false		           9      community, don't bother.				false

		1227						LN		48		10		false		          10          We -- you know, there's -- there's other				false

		1228						LN		48		11		false		          11      alternatives that are much cleaner and much less				false

		1229						LN		48		12		false		          12      intrusive on our environment.				false

		1230						LN		48		13		false		          13          Also, the gentleman before me spoke about the				false

		1231						LN		48		14		false		          14      health effects.  There are health effects from				false

		1232						LN		48		15		false		          15      transmission lines.  There are health effects on				false

		1233						LN		48		16		false		          16      the -- on humans, and there are health effects on				false

		1234						LN		48		17		false		          17      wildlife.				false

		1235						LN		48		18		false		          18          So these are my notes, which you'll be getting in				false

		1236						LN		48		19		false		          19      a different format, and I'm going to submit something				false

		1237						LN		48		20		false		          20      tonight.  But I look forward to the NEPA EIS, and I				false

		1238						LN		48		21		false		          21      think you will find that this project is not for us.				false

		1239						LN		48		22		false		          22          Thank you very much.				false

		1240						LN		48		23		false		          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your				false

		1241						LN		48		24		false		          24      comment.				false

		1242						LN		48		25		false		          25          I believe that's the last of our sign-ups ahead				false

		1243						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1244						LN		49		1		false		           1      of time?				false

		1245						LN		49		2		false		           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Correct.  That's all				false

		1246						LN		49		3		false		           3      I was able to get.				false

		1247						LN		49		4		false		           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Would anyone				false

		1248						LN		49		5		false		           5      else who's in the room care to make a comment?  And				false

		1249						LN		49		6		false		           6      also for those online, if you raise your hand, we				false

		1250						LN		49		7		false		           7      will recognize you.  But let me please first turn				false

		1251						LN		49		8		false		           8      this to our guests in the room.				false

		1252						LN		49		9		false		           9          Yes, ma'am.  If you'd please step up to the mike.				false

		1253						LN		49		10		false		          10      State your name for the record, please.				false

		1254						LN		49		11		false		          11          And then I saw one other hand, but we'll catch				false

		1255						LN		49		12		false		          12      you next.				false

		1256						LN		49		13		false		          13          Thank you again.				false

		1257						LN		49		14		false		          14                        MS. ALLINGER:  My name is Debbie				false

		1258						LN		49		15		false		          15      Allinger.  And I am a survivor of cancer and your				false

		1259						LN		49		16		false		          16      wonderful overhead power lines, which I lived				false

		1260						LN		49		17		false		          17      underneath or close enough that it's actually				false

		1261						LN		49		18		false		          18      disfigured my body.  And, therefore, you want to put				false

		1262						LN		49		19		false		          19      some more stuff in this area that's going to kill				false

		1263						LN		49		20		false		          20      people.  I've lost (unintelligible) and many family				false

		1264						LN		49		21		false		          21      members to do with cancer and power lines.  And				false

		1265						LN		49		22		false		          22      there's no studies right now on what you're planning				false

		1266						LN		49		23		false		          23      on doing.  You keep mentioning tribal.  And there's				false

		1267						LN		49		24		false		          24      more effect on more than just tribal.				false

		1268						LN		49		25		false		          25          I believe you need to do more research on your				false

		1269						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1270						LN		50		1		false		           1      land-use to actually find out who owns the land.  And				false

		1271						LN		50		2		false		           2      I'll bet you find out the government does not own it.				false

		1272						LN		50		3		false		           3          So, therefore, I'm asking for more studies and				false

		1273						LN		50		4		false		           4      looking into how the government acquired the land if				false

		1274						LN		50		5		false		           5      they think it's theirs.  Thank you.				false

		1275						LN		50		6		false		           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your				false

		1276						LN		50		7		false		           7      comment.				false

		1277						LN		50		8		false		           8          Next up.  Welcome.				false

		1278						LN		50		9		false		           9                        MS. YAZDANI:  Thank you.				false

		1279						LN		50		10		false		          10          Hi.  Teryn Yazdani with Columbia Riverkeeper.				false

		1280						LN		50		11		false		          11      Thanks for being here.  I'll keep this super brief.				false

		1281						LN		50		12		false		          12      I'm going to be speaking at the land-use hearing as				false

		1282						LN		50		13		false		          13      well.				false

		1283						LN		50		14		false		          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.				false

		1284						LN		50		15		false		          15                        MS. YAZDANI:  But I just wanted to				false

		1285						LN		50		16		false		          16      ask specifically if you-all would be willing to				false

		1286						LN		50		17		false		          17      respond either tonight or in the near future to				false

		1287						LN		50		18		false		          18      something raised in a recent article from the				false

		1288						LN		50		19		false		          19      Columbian.  Quoting Julie Carter, staff from the				false

		1289						LN		50		20		false		          20      Columbia Inter-Tribal Fish Commission, specifically a				false

		1290						LN		50		21		false		          21      response to the statement that the applicant is				false

		1291						LN		50		22		false		          22      asserting the project meets the recommendations and				false

		1292						LN		50		23		false		          23      goals for CRITFC's energy vision and that CRITFC				false

		1293						LN		50		24		false		          24      openly stated that this is untrue.				false

		1294						LN		50		25		false		          25          I think it's extremely important to address that				false

		1295						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1296						LN		51		1		false		           1      openly, honestly.  And claiming that a project is in				false

		1297						LN		51		2		false		           2      line with an energy vision when CRITFC is saying the				false

		1298						LN		51		3		false		           3      opposite is quite concerning in how you're addressing				false

		1299						LN		51		4		false		           4      this to the public and seems like greenwashing.  So				false

		1300						LN		51		5		false		           5      just wanted to put that out there.  Thank you.				false

		1301						LN		51		6		false		           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		1302						LN		51		7		false		           7      input and comment.				false

		1303						LN		51		8		false		           8          Others in the room who'd like to step forward and				false

		1304						LN		51		9		false		           9      add comment?				false

		1305						LN		51		10		false		          10          Let me turn to our online audience just to make				false

		1306						LN		51		11		false		          11      sure if I'm missing a hand that's raised and buy				false

		1307						LN		51		12		false		          12      another couple seconds here for our in-room				false

		1308						LN		51		13		false		          13      participants.				false

		1309						LN		51		14		false		          14          Anything else --				false

		1310						LN		51		15		false		          15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have --				false

		1311						LN		51		16		false		          16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Ms. Grantham?				false

		1312						LN		51		17		false		          17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have three hands				false

		1313						LN		51		18		false		          18      raised online.  The first one I'm seeing is Nathan				false

		1314						LN		51		19		false		          19      Baker.				false

		1315						LN		51		20		false		          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Nathan Baker, go				false

		1316						LN		51		21		false		          21      ahead.				false

		1317						LN		51		22		false		          22                        MR. BAKER:  Can you hear me?				false

		1318						LN		51		23		false		          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  We can.  Thank you.				false

		1319						LN		51		24		false		          24      Please proceed.				false

		1320						LN		51		25		false		          25                        MR. BAKER:  Thank you.				false

		1321						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1322						LN		52		1		false		           1          Good evening, Chair Beckett and members of the				false

		1323						LN		52		2		false		           2      Council.  My name is Nathan Baker.  I'm a senior				false

		1324						LN		52		3		false		           3      staff attorney with Friends of the Columbia Gorge.				false

		1325						LN		52		4		false		           4      And for this hearing, I'd like to speak about two				false

		1326						LN		52		5		false		           5      procedural issues.				false

		1327						LN		52		6		false		           6          The process is important.  We want to make sure				false

		1328						LN		52		7		false		           7      that the required procedures are properly followed				false

		1329						LN		52		8		false		           8      for this hearing and for EFSEC's process.				false

		1330						LN		52		9		false		           9          The first procedural issue is that this hearing				false

		1331						LN		52		10		false		          10      tonight is premature.  The duty to conduct an				false

		1332						LN		52		11		false		          11      informational public hearing is triggered by, quote,				false

		1333						LN		52		12		false		          12      the receipt of an application for site certification,				false

		1334						LN		52		13		false		          13      end quote.  That's RCW 80.50.090.				false

		1335						LN		52		14		false		          14          So that's triggered by an application.  Draft				false

		1336						LN		52		15		false		          15      applications don't count.  And this is clearly a				false

		1337						LN		52		16		false		          16      draft application.  "Draft" is the first word on the				false

		1338						LN		52		17		false		          17      cover page.  All of the PDF file names of a draft				false

		1339						LN		52		18		false		          18      application are labeled with the word "draft."  The				false

		1340						LN		52		19		false		          19      word "draft" is used more than 200 times in the				false

		1341						LN		52		20		false		          20      document, mostly in the footers.				false

		1342						LN		52		21		false		          21          The document contains metadata with internal				false

		1343						LN		52		22		false		          22      comments between the applicant's consultants and				false

		1344						LN		52		23		false		          23      lawyers.  The EFSEC website links to all the draft				false

		1345						LN		52		24		false		          24      application materials and describes them as drafts.				false

		1346						LN		52		25		false		          25          This is a draft application that is not ready for				false

		1347						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1348						LN		53		1		false		           1      prime time.  EFSEC should not have scheduled the				false

		1349						LN		53		2		false		           2      hearings until after it receives an application, not				false

		1350						LN		53		3		false		           3      a draft application.  This hearing is premature, and				false

		1351						LN		53		4		false		           4      it is error to be holding this hearing on a draft				false

		1352						LN		53		5		false		           5      application.				false

		1353						LN		53		6		false		           6          Regardless, if and when the applicant submits an				false

		1354						LN		53		7		false		           7      actual non-draft application or converts the draft				false

		1355						LN		53		8		false		           8      application to a final application, that will be,				false

		1356						LN		53		9		false		           9      under the plain language of the statute, the, quote,				false

		1357						LN		53		10		false		          10      receipt of an application for site certification, end				false

		1358						LN		53		11		false		          11      quote, which will obligate EFSEC to hold a new series				false

		1359						LN		53		12		false		          12      of hearings.				false

		1360						LN		53		13		false		          13          The other procedural issue involves the members				false

		1361						LN		53		14		false		          14      of the Council.  Last night, the appointee by Clark				false

		1362						LN		53		15		false		          15      County to the Council was never mentioned and did not				false

		1363						LN		53		16		false		          16      participate.  We're pleased to see Commissioner				false

		1364						LN		53		17		false		          17      Leckie from Skamania County here tonight.  But				false

		1365						LN		53		18		false		          18      tonight there was no mention of the city of				false

		1366						LN		53		19		false		          19      Stevenson.  Under RCW 80.50.030, Subsection 5, the				false

		1367						LN		53		20		false		          20      City of Stevenson is supposed to appoint a member of				false

		1368						LN		53		21		false		          21      the Council who, quote, shall sit with the Council,				false

		1369						LN		53		22		false		          22      end quote, for hearings involving the site involving				false

		1370						LN		53		23		false		          23      that city.				false

		1371						LN		53		24		false		          24          And according to Section 2.1.3.2 of the draft				false

		1372						LN		53		25		false		          25      application, the project is proposed inside the city				false

		1373						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1374						LN		54		1		false		           1      of Stevenson.  That may also be the case for the city				false

		1375						LN		54		2		false		           2      of North Bonneville.  The project certainly goes				false

		1376						LN		54		3		false		           3      within a big section of the North Bonneville urban				false

		1377						LN		54		4		false		           4      area.  We're not quite sure about the city limits.				false

		1378						LN		54		5		false		           5      But the statute requires city appointees to, quote,				false

		1379						LN		54		6		false		           6      sit with the Council, end quote, for this hearing.				false

		1380						LN		54		7		false		           7      Holding this hearing without their participation				false

		1381						LN		54		8		false		           8      violates the statute.				false

		1382						LN		54		9		false		           9          In conclusion, if and when the applicant submits				false

		1383						LN		54		10		false		          10      a non-draft final application, EFSEC will then need				false

		1384						LN		54		11		false		          11      to schedule informational public hearings in each of				false

		1385						LN		54		12		false		          12      the three counties.  The relevant county and city				false

		1386						LN		54		13		false		          13      appointees to the Council will need to sit with the				false

		1387						LN		54		14		false		          14      Council for these hearings.  Thank you very much.				false

		1388						LN		54		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,				false

		1389						LN		54		16		false		          16      Mr. Baker.				false

		1390						LN		54		17		false		          17          Ms. Grantham, who's up next?				false

		1391						LN		54		18		false		          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker is				false

		1392						LN		54		19		false		          19      Kate Murphy.				false

		1393						LN		54		20		false		          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		1394						LN		54		21		false		          21                        MS. MURPHY:  Good day.  This is				false

		1395						LN		54		22		false		          22      Kate Murphy.  I'm with Columbia Riverkeeper.				false

		1396						LN		54		23		false		          23          Can I ask for a point of clarification, Chair,				false

		1397						LN		54		24		false		          24      before I start?				false

		1398						LN		54		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Sure.				false

		1399						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1400						LN		55		1		false		           1                        MS. MURPHY:  I just -- I just --				false

		1401						LN		55		2		false		           2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, you may.				false

		1402						LN		55		3		false		           3                        MS. MURPHY:  -- wanted to clarify.				false

		1403						LN		55		4		false		           4      In yesterday's meeting, we were able to ask				false

		1404						LN		55		5		false		           5      project-specific questions, and I think I heard Chris				false

		1405						LN		55		6		false		           6      mention that that would be okay.  So can I ask -- can				false

		1406						LN		55		7		false		           7      I get an answer -- a response to a question?				false

		1407						LN		55		8		false		           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  If you go ahead and				false

		1408						LN		55		9		false		           9      state your question for the record, and then we'll				false

		1409						LN		55		10		false		          10      see where we're at on time.				false

		1410						LN		55		11		false		          11                        MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  Great.				false

		1411						LN		55		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ultimately any				false

		1412						LN		55		13		false		          13      iterative answers that I believe, you know, are				false

		1413						LN		55		14		false		          14      helpful in the moment, at the same time ultimately,				false

		1414						LN		55		15		false		          15      that's at the latitude of the chair.  And out of				false

		1415						LN		55		16		false		          16      respect to the group, certainly want to continue				false

		1416						LN		55		17		false		          17      to --				false

		1417						LN		55		18		false		          18                        MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Good.				false

		1418						LN		55		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- proceed here,				false

		1419						LN		55		20		false		          20      so -- but please note your question for the record				false

		1420						LN		55		21		false		          21      and your other comments, and we'll start this now.				false

		1421						LN		55		22		false		          22                        MS. MURPHY:  Thank you.				false

		1422						LN		55		23		false		          23          I'd start by lifting up Teryn's concern about				false

		1423						LN		55		24		false		          24      potential misrepresentation for CRITFC.  And my				false

		1424						LN		55		25		false		          25      question directly is about what type of modeling and				false

		1425						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1426						LN		56		1		false		           1      research and testing has been done specific to the				false

		1427						LN		56		2		false		           2      Georgia-Pacific pulp and paper mill in Camas,				false

		1428						LN		56		3		false		           3      Washington, which is a known contaminated site that				false

		1429						LN		56		4		false		           4      contains total petroleum hydrocarbons, it contains				false

		1430						LN		56		5		false		           5      polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, polychlorinated				false

		1431						LN		56		6		false		           6      biphenyls, metals, dioxins, and things like that, and				false

		1432						LN		56		7		false		           7      it's got an order for cleanup.				false

		1433						LN		56		8		false		           8          So I'm just curious if you could speak to that a				false

		1434						LN		56		9		false		           9      little bit about how that's been addressed in the				false

		1435						LN		56		10		false		          10      project plan.  Thank you.				false

		1436						LN		56		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		1437						LN		56		12		false		          12      question.  I am actually going to ask that we not				false

		1438						LN		56		13		false		          13      answer that question in the moment, given -- I can				false

		1439						LN		56		14		false		          14      appreciate the complexity of it and including from				false

		1440						LN		56		15		false		          15      other past experience on certain cleanups.  So I				false

		1441						LN		56		16		false		          16      think we'd all be probably best served if we handled				false

		1442						LN		56		17		false		          17      that more formally.  So thank you.				false

		1443						LN		56		18		false		          18                        MS. MURPHY:  Could I just ask				false

		1444						LN		56		19		false		          19      specifically:  Has that site been considered based on				false

		1445						LN		56		20		false		          20      the contamination there?  That would be helpful.				false

		1446						LN		56		21		false		          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Your questions are				false

		1447						LN		56		22		false		          22      being noted for the record, so that's ultimately				false

		1448						LN		56		23		false		          23      really the core function.				false

		1449						LN		56		24		false		          24                        MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  So we're				false

		1450						LN		56		25		false		          25      not doing the same kind of Q & A tonight.				false

		1451						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1452						LN		57		1		false		           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.				false

		1453						LN		57		2		false		           2                        MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Then I will				false

		1454						LN		57		3		false		           3      also ask for the record to have some more specific				false

		1455						LN		57		4		false		           4      explanation about, when it says that it's buried				false

		1456						LN		57		5		false		           5      within the sediment of the riverbed, there's a lot of				false

		1457						LN		57		6		false		           6      bedrock.  And it seems that that wouldn't be possible				false

		1458						LN		57		7		false		           7      for the entire hundred miles.  So how -- how is it				false

		1459						LN		57		8		false		           8      being negotiated through some of those areas where				false

		1460						LN		57		9		false		           9      there might not be the deeper sediment?				false

		1461						LN		57		10		false		          10          That's it.  Thank you.				false

		1462						LN		57		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And I'm sorry.  Can				false

		1463						LN		57		12		false		          12      you clarify.  Was there a specific section of the				false

		1464						LN		57		13		false		          13      river that you were noting was the area that was more				false

		1465						LN		57		14		false		          14      predominant in bedrock or just in general?				false

		1466						LN		57		15		false		          15                        MS. MURPHY:  Well, I mean, they				false

		1467						LN		57		16		false		          16      did -- Chris mentioned they've done a whole scan of				false

		1468						LN		57		17		false		          17      the river, so they -- that would probably be more				false

		1469						LN		57		18		false		          18      informative than my input.  But I think throughout				false

		1470						LN		57		19		false		          19      the entire hundred miles, I would be interested in				false

		1471						LN		57		20		false		          20      that.  Thank you.				false

		1472						LN		57		21		false		          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Understood.  Thank				false

		1473						LN		57		22		false		          22      you.				false

		1474						LN		57		23		false		          23          I think we may be close.  Seeing one more.				false

		1475						LN		57		24		false		          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have one more.				false

		1476						LN		57		25		false		          25      Excuse me if I pronounce it incorrectly.  Juan Monje.				false

		1477						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1478						LN		58		1		false		           1                        MR. MONJE:  You did connect me.				false

		1479						LN		58		2		false		           2      I'm Juan Monje.  I have only -- I have some concern,				false

		1480						LN		58		3		false		           3      but I can -- for the record, I can do two question.				false

		1481						LN		58		4		false		           4          One:  If this project is meant to serve				false

		1482						LN		58		5		false		           5      residential -- residential and regional clean-energy				false

		1483						LN		58		6		false		           6      goals, why is the main converter station located in				false

		1484						LN		58		7		false		           7      the Rivergate industrial area, where multiple large				false

		1485						LN		58		8		false		           8      data center are being planned?				false

		1486						LN		58		9		false		           9          Another one question is:  PowerBridge says that				false

		1487						LN		58		10		false		          10      you will respect tribal concerns.  Can you list which				false

		1488						LN		58		11		false		          11      tribal nations have formally consented and provide				false

		1489						LN		58		12		false		          12      copies of those letters, please?				false

		1490						LN		58		13		false		          13          That's it for now.  Thank you.				false

		1491						LN		58		14		false		          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.  Thank				false

		1492						LN		58		15		false		          15      you, Mr. Monje.				false

		1493						LN		58		16		false		          16          And I see that you had posted a question in the				false

		1494						LN		58		17		false		          17      chat, and that's been responded to.  I think, if we				false

		1495						LN		58		18		false		          18      can make sure that we have the contact information if				false

		1496						LN		58		19		false		          19      you wish to be contacted in case we need to follow up				false

		1497						LN		58		20		false		          20      just to clarify anything here in the record, that				false

		1498						LN		58		21		false		          21      would be helpful.  And you can paste that in chat in				false

		1499						LN		58		22		false		          22      this instance.  Thank you again for your				false

		1500						LN		58		23		false		          23      participation.				false

		1501						LN		58		24		false		          24          I don't see any other hands raised.  Are there				false

		1502						LN		58		25		false		          25      others in our audience this evening who wish to				false

		1503						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1504						LN		59		1		false		           1      speak?  Please come forward.				false

		1505						LN		59		2		false		           2                        MR. HECHT:  Hello.  My name is				false

		1506						LN		59		3		false		           3      Martin Hecht, and I'm a 35-year resident of				false

		1507						LN		59		4		false		           4      Stevenson, Washington.				false

		1508						LN		59		5		false		           5          And I -- my concern is primarily that this, I				false

		1509						LN		59		6		false		           6      guess, was billed as a public information meeting,				false

		1510						LN		59		7		false		           7      but I don't think it was very well publicized.  I				false

		1511						LN		59		8		false		           8      mean, I'm glad that there's other neighbors and other				false
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,



           2      November 18, 2025, at 710 Southwest Rock Creek Drive,



           3      Stevenson, Washington, at 5:33 p.m., the following



           4      public informational meeting of the Washington State



           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to



           6      wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good evening,



          11      everybody.  Again, my name's Kurt Beckett.  I'm chair



          12      of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council here



          13      for Washington State and want to welcome you-all this



          14      evening, especially those of you who have taken your



          15      time to join us here this evening.  Certainly want to



          16      thank those who are online as well.



          17          Other members of our Council who will be



          18      introduced here shortly are also online in addition



          19      to members of the public.



          20          So, again, welcome.  And this is the first of two



          21      meetings tonight.  We're beginning this evening with



          22      the public informational meeting as required by state



          23      law.  The purpose of the first meeting is to provide



          24      an overview of the EFSEC review process and, in



          25      particular, the overview of the project, itself, the
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           1      Cascade Renewable Transmission Project.



           2          We will then take public comment from our both



           3      in-room and online attendees.  And we'll talk a



           4      little bit more about that when we get there on



           5      timing and process.  It is about three minutes per



           6      person.  Just a heads-up.  And, again, we'll take



           7      online comments as well.



           8          Please know that the purpose of tonight's meeting



           9      is really to both, again, begin socializing the



          10      details of the project with the public, but also as



          11      you digest that, this evening if you have comments of



          12      what EFSEC Council as well as staff should consider



          13      in the review of the application, whether that's a



          14      question you think that needs to be answered or a



          15      perspective that you want to share, that's the



          16      purpose of tonight's public comment, is to capture



          17      those things.



          18          Please know, as we start this process, ultimately



          19      there are many different comment periods along the



          20      way that we won't spend a lot of time on tonight, but



          21      by no means is this kind of the only time that you'll



          22      have a chance to understand the project and provide



          23      your input.  But it is an important part so that we



          24      capture any initial thoughts you may have as we then



          25      go further into the official process.
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           1          The second meeting, which will begin immediately



           2      after our public comment concludes -- and that is



           3      specifically about the land-use consistency of the



           4      project and, in this case, how that project compares



           5      to land-use code in Skamania County.  And so there



           6      will be a brief presentation on that, and then



           7      comments will be taken on the land-use issue only



           8      during the land-use consistency hearing.



           9          So, with that, let me thank you-all again for



          10      participating.



          11          And if Ms. Grantham would please call the roll.



          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.



          13          Department of commerce.



          14                        MS. OSBORNE:  Hi.  Elizabeth



          15      Osborne, present.



          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          17      Ecology.



          18                        MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.



          19                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          20      and Wildlife.



          21                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin, present



          22      virtually.



          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          24      Natural Resources.



          25                        MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present
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           1      virtually.



           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



           3      Transportation Commission.



           4                        MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,



           5      present virtually from the UTC/EFSEC offices in



           6      Lacey, Washington.



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



           8          Moving on to our local government.  For this



           9      project and Skamania County, Asa Leckie.



          10                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah.  Asa Leckie,



          11      online.



          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  "Asa."  Thank you.



          13          Moving on to Assistant Attorney General Jon



          14      Thompson.



          15                        MR. THOMPSON:  I am present online.



          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law



          17      Judge Russell Mikow.



          18                        JUDGE MIKOW:  Present online.



          19                        MS. GRANTHAM:  For Council staff



          20      here, I am going to call those who are anticipated to



          21      possibly speak tonight.



          22          Sonia Bumpus.



          23                        MS. BUMPUS:  Here.



          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.



          25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.
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           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.



           2                        MS. BELKINA:  Present.



           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.



           4                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.



           5                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.



           6                        MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.



           8                        MS. McLEAN:  Present online.



           9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          10          And is there anyone here for the counsel for the



          11      environment?



          12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah



          13      Reyneveld is here.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          15          Chair, there is a quorum.



          16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very



          17      much.



          18          I'm going to ask our applicant team to introduce



          19      themselves briefly.  And as a heads-up to our counsel



          20      member, I was going to next call on you just to



          21      provide a brief word of the role of the counsel of



          22      the environment, and then I would turn this soon to



          23      Sonia Bumpus, our director of EFSEC, that will begin



          24      our staff presentation for the EFSEC process.



          25          So heads-up on that, counsel for the environment
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           1      and first over to our applicant for brief



           2      introductions.



           3                        MR. HOCKER:  My name is Chris



           4      Hocker with Cascade Renewable Transmission.  With me



           5      at the desk here is Susan Brown, a colleague.  And we



           6      have other folks in the audience are representing our



           7      development partners and our consultant, HDR.  So



           8      there's probably five or six who will be happy to



           9      answer questions, I guess, beforehand obviously and



          10      afterwards if there are any.



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          12          Counsel Reyneveld.



          13                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Hello,



          14      everyone.  My name is Sarah Reyneveld, and I'm here



          15      tonight on behalf of counsel for the environment,



          16      Yuriy Korol, who has been assigned to this project



          17      but had a conflict this evening.



          18          Pursuant to RCW 80.50.080, when the counsel



          19      receives site application, the attorney general, Nick



          20      Brown, appoints an assistant attorney general to



          21      serve as counsel for the environment.  And the



          22      purpose of counsel for the environment, per the



          23      statute, is to represent the public and its interests



          24      in protecting the quality of the environment



          25      throughout the siting process so that the -- our
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           1      counsel for the environment fully participates



           2      throughout that process.



           3          So thank you for the opportunity for a brief



           4      introduction.  Again, Yuriy Korol has been assigned



           5      to this project, and should be present tomorrow



           6      evening.  Thank you.



           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much



           8      for the overview.



           9          And, with that, let me pass this to Director



          10      Bumpus to kick us off on the EFSEC overview process.



          11      Thank you.



          12                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



          13      Beckett.



          14          As Chair Beckett said, my name is Sonia Bumpus.



          15      I am the executive director of the Energy Facility



          16      Site Evaluation Council, or EFSEC, as we say.



          17          Wanted to first say thank you for being here



          18      tonight.  We really welcome your attendance and



          19      participation.  It means a lot to us.  I know



          20      everybody's busy.  And so you taking the time to come



          21      out and meet us, we really appreciate that.



          22          A couple of remarks before we get started with



          23      the PowerPoint presentation that EFSEC staff will



          24      provide about our process.  And Chair Beckett talked



          25      about this a little bit already.  The reason that
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           1      we're here tonight is to hear from you about this



           2      application that was filed with EFSEC.  It's also to



           3      hold the land-use consistency hearing that's going to



           4      follow this public informational hearing.



           5          When EFSEC receives an application for site



           6      certification, when someone wants to build an energy



           7      facility that falls under EFSEC jurisdiction, EFSEC's



           8      required to hold a public informational hearing and



           9      take comment on the application.  And then we also



          10      have to do a land-use consistency hearing.  But



          11      that's not all there is to the process.  There's



          12      other steps that follow that you'll hear about in the



          13      PowerPoint presentation.



          14          They include the environmental review under the



          15      State Environmental Policy Act.  And if the project



          16      doesn't qualify for what we call expedited



          17      processing, then EFSEC is required to also hold an



          18      adjudicative hearing.  So there's a lot of steps.



          19          The reason I'm telling you all this right now,



          20      even though you're going to get a nutshell



          21      presentation of it shortly, is because there are a



          22      lot of steps ahead of us in terms of engaging with



          23      EFSEC and providing input into the process, and they



          24      all have -- these different parts of the process all



          25      serve a different role.
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           1          Tonight when you come up and you talk with us



           2      about this application, what it's going to do is it's



           3      going to help inform our review of the application



           4      that was just filed.  And so as the SEPA responsible



           5      official of EFSEC, I'm going to be looking at those



           6      comments to help inform what I'm looking at when I'm



           7      interpreting the information in the application.  And



           8      what we hope to do is get to a point where we



           9      consider the application to be complete enough to be



          10      able to move towards the next part of the process.



          11          So with that being said, I encourage you to also



          12      sign up with us, if you haven't already, for



          13      notifications about the project and EFSEC activities.



          14      Because moving forward from here, EFSEC will be



          15      talking with the Council at our monthly Council



          16      meetings.  They're held on the third Wednesday of



          17      each month.  And there'll be a project update about



          18      this specific application at each one of those



          19      meetings.



          20          So it's a good way to stay apprised as to what's



          21      developing with the application review, public



          22      meetings that we're planning for the future parts of



          23      the process.



          24          So thank you for coming out, and I am now going



          25      to pass this over to our siting specialist so that
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           1      they can introduce themselves and start the



           2      presentation.



           3                        MS. BELKINA:  Welcome, everybody.



           4      And thank you, all, for coming to participate this



           5      evening.  My name is Maria Belkina.  I'm the lead



           6      site specialist for EFSEC for this project.  And I



           7      would like to introduce my colleague Lance Caputo.



           8      He will be giving a short presentation on the EFSEC



           9      process for those who are unfamiliar with our agency.



          10                        MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Maria.



          11          As Maria mentioned, my name is Lance Caputo.



          12      I've been assigned to assist Maria.  She is the lead



          13      siting specialist on this project.  And I am going to



          14      go through a very hopefully brief overview of the



          15      agency and our process.



          16          A little bit about the history of the EFSEC



          17      agency.  EFSEC was created in 1970 for the siting of



          18      thermal power plants.  The intent was to create a



          19      one-stop permitting agency for large energy



          20      facilities.  EFSEC is comprised of state and local



          21      government members who review each application before



          22      voting to make a council recommendation to the



          23      governor.



          24          If recommending approval, the package to the



          25      governor includes a draft site certification
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           1      agreement, or what we call a SCA, which defines all



           2      preconstruction, construction, and operation plans.



           3      If approved by the governor's office, the decision



           4      preempts all other state or local regulations.



           5          EFSEC is comprised of members from several



           6      different state-level agencies.  The chairperson is



           7      appointed by the governor, and there are standing



           8      members from five other agencies appointed by those



           9      agencies to sit on the Council.



          10          The current Council is made up of Chairman Kurt



          11      Beckett, Blake Nelson from the Department of Ecology,



          12      Nate Pamplin from the Department of Fish and



          13      Wildlife, Elizabeth Osborne from the Department of



          14      Commerce, Maverick Ryan from the Department of



          15      Natural Resources, and Brian Rybarik from the



          16      Utilities and Transportation Commission.



          17          There are additional agencies that may elect to



          18      appoint a Council member during the review of a new



          19      application.  These agencies are the Department of



          20      Agriculture, the Department of Transportation, the



          21      Department of Health, and the Military Department.



          22          The local county shall also appoint a Council



          23      member for the review of a new application.  For



          24      Skamania County, Asa Leckie -- if I said your name



          25      correctly, sir -- is the county representative.  If a
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           1      proposal -- if a proposal project is located at a



           2      port, the port may also appoint a nonvoting member.



           3          Multiple energy generations -- generation



           4      facilities fall under EFSEC's jurisdiction.  Some



           5      projects, such as thermal power plants with less than



           6      350 megawatts and nuclear generation for the purpose



           7      of generating electricity, are required to be sited



           8      through EFSEC, while others -- such as wind, solar,



           9      green hydrogen, storage, or clean energy



          10      manufacturing -- can opt in our process at any size.



          11          Transmission lines greater than 115 kilovolts can



          12      also opt in, while lines greater than 500 kilovolts



          13      alternating current or 300 kilovolts direct current



          14      are required.  Thresholds for pipelines and



          15      refineries that may be sited through EFSEC are found



          16      in the Revised Codes of Washington, or RCW,



          17      80.50.060.



          18          Multiple energy generation -- thank you.  My



          19      first mistake.  Somebody keep track for me.  I



          20      appreciate how many mistakes I make.



          21          Here is a map of the facilities that are



          22      certified or have applied for certification under



          23      EFSEC's jurisdiction.  You can see marked in green,



          24      there are seven operating facilities, including two



          25      natural gas facilities, one nuclear facility, two





                                                                      16

�







           1      solar facilities and two wind facilities.



           2          The blue marks indicate the four additional



           3      facilities that are approved but are not yet



           4      constructed.



           5          The clear circle is the one facility in the



           6      process of being decommissioned.  EFSEC is currently



           7      reviewing seven projects marked by yellow, including



           8      this Cascade Renewable Transmission project.



           9          Here is a flowchart showing the general process



          10      an applicant will go through when they submit an



          11      application to EFSEC.  I know it looks daunting, but



          12      please bear with us.



          13          There are yellow boxes on the chart that indicate



          14      specific milestones in the process where the Council



          15      and staff seek public input.  You can see that there



          16      are multiple processes that happen concurrently when



          17      EFSEC is reviewing an application.  The permitting



          18      process, outlined across the top row, involves



          19      identifying and preparing applicable environmental



          20      permits.  The land-use and adjudicative process runs



          21      through the middle.  And the State Environmental



          22      Policy Act, or what we call SEPA, process is shown



          23      along the bottom.  All these processes ultimately



          24      feed into the Council's recommendation made to the



          25      governor.
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           1          Where an adjudication is required following the



           2      land-use consistency hearing, an order is issued to



           3      commence proceedings and initiate intervention.



           4      Here, members of the public wishing to participate in



           5      the adjudication must identify themselves and their



           6      issues in writing.  There are prehearing conferences



           7      through which parties are granted intervention status



           8      and issues are identified.  Exhibits and testimony



           9      are provided, and cross-examination is conducted.



          10          After this, the Council looks at all the



          11      information in the adjudication record and



          12      deliberates.  Finally, the Council develops an order



          13      establishing their findings of fact and conclusions



          14      of law from the information provided throughout these



          15      proceedings.



          16          For every proposed project, a SEPA review is



          17      performed.  When a determination of significance and



          18      a decision to prepare an environmental impact



          19      statement -- or what we call an EIS -- is made,



          20      public comments are taken on the scope of the EIS.



          21          After public comment for scoping, the SEPA



          22      responsible official -- here, our agency director



          23      Sonia Bumpus -- determines the scope of the EIS.  A



          24      draft EIS is prepared and issued with a minimum



          25      30-day public comment period, after which the final
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           1      EIS is prepared and released.



           2          In some instances, a determination of



           3      nonsignificance, or a DNS, or a mitigated



           4      determination of nonsignificance, an MDNS, is issued.



           5      If the SEPA responsible official determines that a



           6      project meets the criteria of a DNS or MDNS, an EIS



           7      is not required.



           8          This is an alphabet we have here going.



           9          In this process, determination is noticed to the



          10      public, and there is a minimum 15-day public comment



          11      period on a mitigated determination of



          12      nonsignificance while a determination of significance



          13      requires no comment period.



          14          Following the conclusion of these separate



          15      avenues of application review, the Council develops



          16      its recommendation to the governor, tying together



          17      the information brought forth throughout the entire



          18      application review process.  If a project is issued a



          19      mitigated determination of nonsignificance and



          20      received a determination of land-use consistency, it



          21      may qualify for an expedited review process.



          22          To be considered for expedited processing, an



          23      applicant must make the request in writing.  If the



          24      project meets the two aforementioned criteria for



          25      land-use consistency and a MDNS, the Council can
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           1      grant expedited process review.



           2          In this expedited process, the adjudication step



           3      is not required, and an environmental impact



           4      statement is not prepared.  Applications granted



           5      expedited processing do hold an additional public



           6      hearing prior to the Council's recommendation to hear



           7      any conditions that may be considered to impose on



           8      the project, similar to a conditional use process



           9      hearing.  The Council prepares their recommendation



          10      to the governor in an expedited time frame under this



          11      process.



          12          Now, EFSEC is also the issuing agency for any



          13      applicable state and local governmental permits a



          14      facility may require, including water quality and air



          15      quality permits as they may apply.  The permits are



          16      identified in the final package with the Council's



          17      recommendation to the governor.



          18          If an application is approved by the governor,



          19      EFSEC then has oversight of the environmental



          20      compliance for the life of the facility through



          21      decommissioning.  EFSEC has standing contracts with



          22      applicable state agencies that assist in monitoring



          23      and enforcement of conditions either in the site



          24      certification agreement, identified permits, or the



          25      environmental impact statement or the mitigated
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           1      determination of nonsignificance.  EFSEC's



           2      enforcement authority extends to the issuance of any



           3      penalties that may apply.



           4          At the conclusion of the Council's review of an



           5      application, a recommendation is made to the governor



           6      to either approve or reject the application.  This



           7      initiates a 60-day window within which the governor



           8      will then either approve the application, reject the



           9      application, or remand the application back to the



          10      Council for reconsideration.  Any application that is



          11      rejected by the governor is a final decision on that



          12      application.



          13          As previously mentioned, EFSEC oversees



          14      facilities under its jurisdiction through



          15      decommissioning.  Prior to the start of construction



          16      of approved projects, an initial site restoration



          17      plan is required.  Then at the end of the life



          18      expectancy of the facility, prior to the start of



          19      decommissioning, a detailed site restoration plan is



          20      required.



          21          These plans must be reviewed and approved by the



          22      Council.  The project must also provide financial



          23      assurance for the decommissioning in the event that



          24      the project is no longer able to complete the



          25      process.  Assuming the project decommissions while
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           1      still on the full control of the developer, these



           2      costs would be paid by the certificate holder



           3      directly.



           4          And before I conclude the presentation, I'd like



           5      to mention that our partners in the project are



           6      representing the State of Oregon, the senior siting



           7      analyst with the Oregon Department of Energy and the



           8      Energy Facility Siting Council, is Christopher Clark.



           9      He's here tonight.  So if you have questions about



          10      the Oregon half of the project, the gentleman over



          11      there with the beard.  He's available for you.



          12          So thank you for joining us this evening.  We



          13      appreciate your time and interest in the Cascade



          14      Renewable Transmission Project.  Our work is closely



          15      coordinated with the Oregon Department of Energy and



          16      the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, ensuring that both



          17      states and federal agencies have aligned in the



          18      environmental permitting process.



          19          This wraps up my presentation for the evening.



          20      But before I end, I'd like to remind everyone how



          21      they may submit comments for this project.



          22          You may send in written comments by e-mail to



          23      comments@efsec.wa.gov; by postal mail to our office



          24      at 621 Woodland Square Loop, PO Box 43172, Olympia,



          25      Washington; or by phone at (360) 664-1345.





                                                                      22

�







           1          When EFSEC is in an active comment period



           2      associated with a specific milestone, comments may



           3      also be submitted to our online comment database at



           4      comments.efsec.wa.gov.  All comments received,



           5      regardless of timing or method of delivery, will be



           6      saved with the project record and available to the



           7      Council and staff for review.



           8          Thank you for bearing with me.  And I'll turn it



           9      back over to Maria?  Sonia Bumpus, our director.



          10                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Lance.



          11      Really appreciate it.



          12          Just a couple of things.  And Lance went over



          13      the -- how to submit comments, so I won't go back



          14      over that, other than just to say, so using an



          15      example from the presentation, Lance talked about, if



          16      we were to prepare an EIS, we would make a



          17      determination of significance.



          18          And he also mentioned that there's no comment, no



          19      public comment period required when I issue a



          20      determination of significance.  However, there's this



          21      part of SEPA, called scoping, that we're required to



          22      do.



          23          So if we were going to make a determination of



          24      significance, we would need to go through a scoping



          25      period.  And there's a comment period that we're
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           1      required to do.  And what that comment period does is



           2      it gives us a chance to hear from you as far as what



           3      you think needs to be analyzed or considered in that



           4      environmental impact statement.



           5          And so that is exactly what EFSEC would call a



           6      comment period.  So if you're on that mailing list



           7      that I talked about earlier, you would get noticed,



           8      Hey, EFSEC is going to be starting scoping.  We've



           9      issued a determination of significance, and we're



          10      inviting you to provide comments to us about the



          11      scope of the environmental impact statement.



          12          So just to give you a real-world example of one



          13      of those milestones that Lance highlighted in his



          14      presentation.  Thank you.



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, all.



          16          As we move to the PowerPoint, let me make a brief



          17      word.  A PowerPoint from the applicants.  I think we



          18      can cue that up.  We will move to the project



          19      overview, which is one of the most critical parts



          20      tonight in addition to your input.



          21          I did want to also highlight again Commissioner



          22      Leckie, Asa Leckie, who is serving on this project



          23      council for the Cascade Renewable Transmission



          24      Project -- always appreciate busy officials that are



          25      also now dual -- dual-hatting and providing their
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           1      presence on behalf of Skamania County on the project



           2      council.



           3          So, Commissioner, we welcome you to this process



           4      and appreciate your making time for it and those who



           5      you represent.



           6          Also wanted to echo Lance's comments of



           7      highlighting our partner from the Department of



           8      Energy in Oregon.  That's EFSC with one "E," and



           9      we're EFSEC with two Es, is one way to keep that



          10      clear, so to speak.



          11          So, with that, over to you, sir.



          12                        MR. HOCKER:  All right.



          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          14                        MR. HOCKER:  Thank you.  And thank



          15      you to EFSEC and particularly to the folks who turned



          16      out tonight.  We appreciate the interest.



          17          My name is Chris Hocker.  The company I work for



          18      is called PowerBridge.  My colleague Susan Brown is



          19      next to me.  And like I said before, we had some



          20      project representatives throughout the audience here



          21      who'd be happy to answer informal questions.



          22          The project that we're going to describe is



          23      innovative in the sense that it's a technology that



          24      has not been used widely in the Pacific Northwest,



          25      but it is a technology that has been used on several
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           1      occasions throughout the world.  And the company I



           2      work for, PowerBridge, has actually developed and



           3      built and currently operates two such projects



           4      involving underwater electric transmission.



           5          Before I go any further, I do want to acknowledge



           6      that we're well aware of the long-standing thousands



           7      of years of occupancy by indigenous peoples of the



           8      region, and we are working very diligently to engage



           9      with tribes and understand their concerns.  So, you



          10      know, I wanted to make sure that you knew that we're



          11      very much appreciative of that and it's an ongoing



          12      effort that's been going on for several years.



          13          So I hopefully won't take too much time.  But I



          14      do want to give you a pretty thorough overview.



          15          The project begins in The Dalles, Oregon, and



          16      ends in the Rivergate section of Portland.



          17          What's next?



          18          It is about a hundred miles in length, of which



          19      about 80 is underwater.  When we say underwater, we



          20      mean buried 10 to 15 feet below the sediment of the



          21      river.  It's not lying on the bottom of the river.



          22          It avoids negative impacts associated with



          23      overhead transmission lines.  It will probably take



          24      about three and a half years to build.  The



          25      installation of the cable underwater would only occur
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           1      during winter months to avoid sensitive periods for



           2      migration and spawning of fish.



           3          And like I said before, this is a technology that



           4      has been in use for quite some time and continues to



           5      be in use around the world.



           6          Next.



           7          Just as sort of a backdrop:  A few years ago,



           8      both states, Washington and Oregon, passed



           9      legislation that mandated a sort of a stair-step



          10      process of achieving 100 percent clean energy in



          11      their states.  And the first milestone under those



          12      mandates actually occurs in 2030, and then it



          13      ratchets up from there.



          14          So it is a state mandate to move to clean energy.



          15      The issue, however, is that most of the clean energy



          16      resources exist east of the Cascades.  And most of



          17      the load, the people who actually use the power, is



          18      west of the Cascades.  So the dilemma is how do you



          19      get enough transmission to move the energy from east



          20      to the west.



          21          Next.



          22          Right now, in the region, Washington and Oregon,



          23      the existing transmission system is very much



          24      constrained.  It's at its limit.  Not every single



          25      hour of every day.  But at peak periods, the
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           1      transmission system is under great constraint.  And



           2      this isn't just us saying this.  It's something that



           3      has been more and more widely acknowledged throughout



           4      the region, as you can see by, you know, some of the



           5      headlines shown here.



           6          So there's very little available east-to-west



           7      transmission capacity.  There's a transmission grid



           8      that was built in the '60s and '70s primarily by BPA.



           9      Putting in new overhead high-capacity transmission



          10      lines is very challenging.  There have been a couple



          11      of efforts to do that that have failed.



          12          And so we have this, as I said, highly



          13      constrained transmission system that needs to be



          14      addressed one way or the other.



          15          Next.



          16          Now, I realize this is not the most intuitive



          17      slide, but I'm showing it because it illustrates how



          18      energy flows and how the project, even though it



          19      begins in Oregon and it terminates in Oregon, really



          20      doesn't -- it's irrespective of geography.  And the



          21      benefits to Washington are every bit as evident as



          22      the benefits to Oregon.



          23          The blue kind of semicircles illustrate the



          24      current main energy flows from east of the Cascades



          25      to the west.  The little circles are planned and very
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           1      early-stage planning that BPA and others are thinking



           2      of building.  And the reason they need to build those



           3      improvements in the red and the black circles and the



           4      blue circles is because the system works as a whole.



           5          So if you're bringing energy from sources in the



           6      east, you don't just string a line and from Point A



           7      to Point B.  Everything you do has an impact on the



           8      existing system, so that if you bring it over to a



           9      point, then that's going to affect how the other



          10      parts of the system need to be upgraded to make it



          11      all work.  Otherwise, all you're doing is moving



          12      constraints.



          13          Our project, which is the green line, bypasses



          14      those constraints by going directly from the Big Eddy



          15      substation in The Dalles to the load center in



          16      greater Portland.  From there, it then escapes the



          17      constraints and is able to flow north and south.  So



          18      by eliminating, or I should say reducing -- because



          19      it's not the only solution -- by reducing those



          20      constraints, you benefit the whole system in both



          21      states.



          22          So as we said, we've, you know, managed to draw a



          23      certain amount of attention as we've been filing



          24      permits and dealing with folks on both sides of the



          25      river.  We are part of the needed solution, which is
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           1      really probably three/four, at least, thousand



           2      megawatts' worth of transmission capacity.  What we



           3      propose is 1100 megawatts.  So it's a significant



           4      portion of meeting the constraints.  It's not the



           5      only solution, but it's one that we know can be



           6      implemented.



           7          So it's hard to depict a hundred-mile



           8      transmission line, but this is essentially the



           9      overview of the project that, like I said, begins in



          10      The Dalles.  And, by the way, that complex, if you're



          11      familiar with it -- it's called the Starr Complex --



          12      is a very large BPA set of facilities, including a



          13      large substation called Big Eddy.



          14          And the transmission that moves east from --



          15      further east into The Dalles, into Starr, is not



          16      constrained.  The constrained area is basically the



          17      hundred miles between Big Eddy and here.



          18          So the green is the underwater portion.  The



          19      yellow is the on-land portion.  As you can see, the



          20      only on-land portion affecting this specific local



          21      area is the bypass of the Bonneville Dam, which we're



          22      going to show there.  There we go.



          23          So the idea would be to take the cable out of the



          24      river and land it in Stevenson.  The landing is



          25      affected by a technology called horizontal
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           1      directional drill.  So there is no trenching involved



           2      in bringing it from -- from water to land.  It's done



           3      with a drill.  Conduits are pulled through.  The



           4      depth of the drill can be 40, 50 feet below the



           5      ground surface.  It comes back up onto land.  And



           6      then the cable is trenched.  And it's conventional



           7      trenching about four feet deep, as I'm sure we're all



           8      familiar with for cables and pipelines and things



           9      like that.  Water lines, that kind of thing.



          10          It primarily follows State Route 14.  That little



          11      jog on Ashes Lake Road is at the suggestion of the



          12      Washington DOT, Department of Transportation.  It



          13      proceeds around the dam, primarily on Route 14, till



          14      you get onto federal government property over by the



          15      dam, over to where you see the kind of the purple



          16      slash there, which is the other horizontal



          17      directional drill that gets it back into the water



          18      and on down toward -- toward the Portland area.



          19          Just for context, these are the Oregon land



          20      routes.  Each is about five miles.  It -- because



          21      this is a direct current -- or DC -- line, it



          22      requires conversion from the alternating current,



          23      which is what the system -- we are primarily familiar



          24      with.  It's converted to DC because it's -- that



          25      makes it controllable and doesn't require a lot of
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           1      mechanical systems along the way.  It can be



           2      transported long distance underwater.



           3          So it's converted from AC to DC at Big Eddy.  It



           4      continues as a DC line to, if you look at the left



           5      figure, to a converter station in the Rivergate



           6      industrial area in Portland.  It then is converted to



           7      AC -- back into AC power.  Proceeds underground for



           8      two, three miles to the Willamette.  Once again,



           9      there's a horizontal directional drill that goes



          10      under the Willamette and comes up on the existing



          11      Harborton substation, which is owned by Portland



          12      General.



          13          So why are we doing this underwater?  Well, we've



          14      already talked about the difficulties of siting



          15      overhead transmission lines.  But in developing this



          16      project, we considered a number of alternatives to



          17      see if there was any possible alternative path or



          18      combination of paths that might be preferable to



          19      using the river.



          20          There is no available path through the gorge or



          21      densely populated areas without unacceptable impacts.



          22      If you can imagine running an overhead power line



          23      through the gorge, it seems rather unlikely.



          24          We are asked occasionally, Well, why don't you



          25      just bury it in I-84?  Because it's not permitted, is
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           1      the answer.  The State DOT and the Federal Highway



           2      Administration does not allow for that kind of burial



           3      for that kind of length.  They make occasional



           4      exceptions for very short lengths.  But for a



           5      hundred-mile route, never mind that it probably isn't



           6      constructible.  Even if it were, they wouldn't permit



           7      it.



           8          Same with State Route 14 with a few exceptions.



           9      If you were to try to use State Route 14 for the



          10      entire length, it would be unconstructible because of



          11      various natural and manmade features, bridges,



          12      tunnels, rock slides.  We counted over 300 potential



          13      obstacles, which, if you had a thousand years, you



          14      might be able to figure them all out, but there's no



          15      contractor in the world who would do that.



          16          So we will say that for the small stretch of



          17      State Route 14 that bypasses the dam, that is a



          18      constructible route.  And as I said, we've been



          19      consulting with the DOT to understand, you know, what



          20      we need to do in order to do that.



          21          Same is true for railroad rights-of-way on either



          22      side of the river where in many cases they're so



          23      constrained that you basically can't do it.  And I



          24      doubt if the railroads would be happy about shutting



          25      down their operation while we figured out how to put
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           1      the trench in the line.



           2          So now we get to describing the project, itself.



           3      This is an illustration -- it's not an illustration.



           4      It's the real deal.  But it's to show you what the



           5      cable looks like.



           6          If you look at the bottom left figure, the cable



           7      is installed in a bundle that is about 12 inches in



           8      diameter.  So this is a slice of an actual cable, not



           9      a replica or a facsimile or to scale or anything like



          10      that.  It's also quite heavy, so...  And as you can



          11      see, it's about the size of an iPhone.



          12          The two cables are bundled together with one or



          13      two fiber-optic cables.  The point of the fiber-optic



          14      is not a commercial enterprise.  It's to effect



          15      communication between the two converter stations.



          16      And it's used, for instance, to detect if there's a



          17      problem at either converter station.  It's all



          18      internal to the -- to the project.



          19          The construction, itself -- and if you look at



          20      the right-hand figure, this is a depiction of a



          21      process that uses a machine called a hydroplow or a



          22      jet plow that is pulled by a barge or a ship very,



          23      very slowly.  In a really good day, you can make



          24      about a mile and a half.



          25          Can we go back for a second.
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           1                        MS. BROWN:  Red button?



           2                        MR. HOCKER:  There we go.  The



           3      left-hand shows the cable bundle being paid off the



           4      back of the vessel.  This is actually from our



           5      Neptune project that we -- that we built.



           6          And so going back to the other figure.  It is



           7      slowly lowered in a bundle into the machinery called



           8      a hydroplow.  A hydroplow has an adjustable blade.



           9      And most importantly, the blade includes a number of



          10      high-pressure water jets.  So you're not digging a



          11      trench.  You're basically jetting a trench that



          12      emulsifies the sediment.



          13          The cable then sort of simultaneously lays into



          14      the trench.  And about 75 percent of the sediment



          15      that rises up within the trench then settles back



          16      down over the cable.  So it's like one slow,



          17      continuous process.  There's no mechanical dredging.



          18      There's no massive scar on the riverbed.  The trench,



          19      itself, is perhaps two feet wide to accommodate a



          20      12-inch-diameter cable bundle.



          21          As we said before, the in-water portion of the



          22      project is only allowed during what's called work



          23      windows by the environmental agencies, which is



          24      typically in the winter months -- November through



          25      February, March -- and specified to avoid, as I said,
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           1      spawning and migration of fish species.



           2          We talked about converter stations.  This is



           3      part -- this is really the only aboveground



           4      facilities involved in the project.  This particular



           5      photo is of a converter station in San Francisco.



           6      About 15 years ago, a project very similar to this



           7      was built with a converter station in San Francisco,



           8      a converter station in Pittsburgh, California, which



           9      is in the East Bay, if you're familiar with it, and



          10      then the cable runs under the San Francisco Bay to



          11      the converter station here in -- in San Francisco.



          12          A converter station property requirement is about



          13      five acres.  And it is quite similar to the type of



          14      substation that you may see pretty much anywhere,



          15      including, for instance, the Starr Complex or the



          16      Harborton substation that we referred to.



          17          Permits, approvals, studies.  We're under the



          18      jurisdiction of really three major entities.  One of



          19      them is EFSEC here in Washington.  One of them is



          20      EFSC, without the second "E," in Oregon.  And the



          21      other is the Army Corps of Engineers.



          22          So we need to get approvals of all three of those



          23      entities.  That is a complex process.  Although, we



          24      have been through that before with our projects on



          25      the East Coast between New York and New Jersey, where
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           1      we also had two state jurisdictions and the Army



           2      Corps overseeing.



           3          So it is complex to get a coordinated review.



           4      It's something that I know that both EFSECs and the



           5      corps are focusing on in order to have a review



           6      that -- that can be as coordinated as possible, but



           7      again, still observing the interests of the various



           8      states and of the federal waterway.



           9          We also need interconnection agreements with the



          10      Bonneville Power Administration and Portland General



          11      Electric.  That's part of the process.  We have



          12      virtually no private property involved where the



          13      cable is.  It's primarily on public land.  And there



          14      have been already a large number of very significant



          15      studies that we have conducted -- biological



          16      assessments, sediment analysis, sediment transport --



          17      in other words to say, Well, okay, if you're plowing



          18      the sediment, where does it go?  Does it travel down



          19      the river?  Does it stir up anything you don't want



          20      to travel?  That kind of thing.



          21          We've conducted a geophysical survey of the river



          22      bottom and done a lot of modeling for things like



          23      magnetic fields and temperature.



          24          The point being that we're -- even though we



          25      showed you earlier on what looked like just a line on
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           1      a piece of paper, in fact it's been sited very



           2      carefully; for instance, to get as close to the



           3      middle of the river as possible, but to avoid the



           4      navigation channel where possible.  We want to get



           5      away from the shoreline because of the cultural



           6      resources aspect near the historic shoreline.



           7          We have mapped the river bottom to know where



           8      there are areas of let's say solid rock or steep side



           9      slopes where you can't run a jet plow.  So really the



          10      siting has been anything but random.  It's been



          11      pretty careful in terms -- and to avoid habitat



          12      areas, foraging areas for fish, that kind of thing.



          13          So the permitting update.  I don't need to go



          14      through this in detail, but we have obviously



          15      submitted our application to Washington EFSEC.  We



          16      are in the process of completing our siting



          17      application for Oregon EFSC.  There are actually a



          18      couple of Army Corps of Engineers permits that are



          19      required:  Section 408, Section 404.  We have filed



          20      those.  Those are under review.  And a very, very



          21      important part of the process for the corps as well



          22      as for the states is consultation with the various



          23      Native tribes.



          24          And so that consultation process, which is called



          25      Section 106, has been underway.  And as I said





                                                                      38

�







           1      before, we are trying as best we can and have been



           2      able to engage with a number of the tribes.  It's



           3      really the federal government's responsibility to



           4      lead that consultation process.  But we are



           5      supporting that, and it's perfectly permissible for



           6      us to engage ourselves as long as it's done in



           7      coordination with the 106 process.



           8          We also hold what are called agency coordination



           9      meetings periodically when we have something to say,



          10      when we have performed a study that we think might be



          11      interesting to the agencies or the tribes.  So every



          12      so often -- we've got one coming up next month --



          13      we -- and these are voluntary.  They're not part of



          14      the process.  They're outside the process.  But we've



          15      had very good response from the agencies and the



          16      tribes who sit in and learn about where we are in our



          17      studies and what we have -- what we have found.



          18          We do expect that the project, during



          19      construction, will and can result in a variety of



          20      benefits, including quite a few construction jobs



          21      during the three-and-a-half-year process.  We have



          22      done this before, as I keep saying.  And we



          23      understand that we can't just come in, run a line, go



          24      away, without partnering with the communities that



          25      are affected, even if the effect isn't all that
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           1      great.



           2          So we're open to any sort of discussions with the



           3      localities where there may be an impact or an effect,



           4      to look for ways to partner or benefits that we can



           5      help provide.



           6          So, with that, just to mention some of our



           7      development team.  PowerBridge has done this before



           8      within the last 20 years or so on the East Coast.



           9      Sun2o Partners is primarily a solar developer that



          10      was out here, oh, about six, seven years ago trying



          11      to see if there were opportunities to site a solar



          12      farm east of the Cascades and discovered very quickly



          13      that the opportunity is only as good as the



          14      transmission that will get it to the people who will



          15      actually use the energy.  And so they came to us,



          16      knowing that, you know, we were in this kind of



          17      business, and asked us if we would take a look and



          18      see if this was something that we think is feasible.



          19          NextEra Transmission -- and we have a couple of



          20      NextEra partners here tonight -- is the leading



          21      publicly traded utility and renewables developer.



          22      And they are the ones that now own and operate the



          23      Trans Bay Cable project, which is the one I talked



          24      about in San Francisco.



          25          Next slide -- and I won't belabor this -- is just
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           1      an illustration of the similar marine transmission



           2      that has happened throughout the world.  And there's



           3      more being built that -- even beyond this particular



           4      listing.



           5          Our projects include, they're called Neptune and



           6      Hudson.  Neptune has been running successfully for 20



           7      years, or almost 20 years.  18 years.  And it's



           8      similar to this.  It runs primarily underwater for



           9      about 50 miles, down part of a river, and into the



          10      Atlantic Ocean.  It runs almost exactly 24/7 -- 24



          11      hours a day, seven days a week -- and supplies about



          12      25 percent of the -- all the energy use, electric



          13      power use, on Long Island.



          14          The Hudson project similarly connects two power



          15      grids:  One in New Jersey, one in New York.  And it



          16      serves -- it goes down the Hudson River, buried



          17      beneath the Hudson River, and serves the government



          18      agencies in New York City.



          19          So just to conclude, as I keep saying, we are



          20      experienced at this.  We understand the need to be



          21      respectful, to be open, to be transparent, and to try



          22      to partner with the communities that we may affect.



          23      And that's what we're trying to do.



          24          And always happy to answer any questions, not



          25      just here.  We do have a website, of course.
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           1      Cascade -- no.  What's it called?



           2      CascadeTransmission.com.  There's a mechanism where



           3      you can send us questions, which we're happy to



           4      answer.  And we welcome that.



           5          So, with that, I'll turn it over to Chair



           6      Beckett.  Thank you.



           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



           8      thorough review.  And, with that, we will move into



           9      our public comment portion of this meeting.  And



          10      Ms. Grantham will help me know who has signed up.



          11          If you haven't signed up, you're welcome to, I



          12      think, over here at this table.  And ultimately I'll



          13      certainly call on you if you raise your hand and



          14      would just ask that you state your name for the



          15      record if you haven't already signed up.



          16          So, with that, let me turn this, I believe, to



          17      Ms. Grantham to let us know our first speaker.



          18          Again, we are trying to limit comments tonight to



          19      three minutes and welcome your comments.  If you do



          20      have questions that you would like to note that be



          21      included for the record, we will, you know, capture



          22      those questions to the degree that we can answer some



          23      tonight without, you know, cutting off other people



          24      who want to speak.  I will consider that, but



          25      ultimately we follow the rule of three minutes per
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           1      person here.



           2          So, with that, Ms. Grantham.



           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.



           4          The first speaker that I have signed up is a Fred



           5      Greef.



           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Welcome, sir.



           7                        MR. GREEF:  Thank you for this



           8      opportunity.



           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And if you would,



          10      sir, if you might stand just a little closer to the



          11      mike.  I don't know if we can quite capture you for



          12      our online audience as well as the other Council



          13      members who are here to hear your testimony, so...



          14                        MR. GREEF:  All right.  Thank you



          15      for this opportunity.



          16          For me, one of the most important things with



          17      this environmental impact statement, which I strongly



          18      believe is needed and will be required, is the



          19      no-action alternative.



          20          I think there's many reasons why this project



          21      should not go forward.  And I'm not going -- I've



          22      just found out about it.  I -- I will be submitting a



          23      lot more comments besides this tonight.  But you



          24      mentioned there's magnetic field and temperature



          25      studies.  And there's an awful lot of recreation in
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           1      this river:  Fishing, windsurfing, swimming.  There's



           2      not a lot of lakes near the river.  This is where the



           3      people here live and recreate.



           4          And there's such a thing as EMFs.  I think we



           5      need to do a full study of what are the impacts of



           6      people right in the proximity of that cable for long



           7      periods of time or -- anyway, so let's just say



           8      elec- -- magnetic, electric EMFs, all that type of



           9      thing really does need to be closely looked at.



          10          Another thing would be -- so anyway, there's



          11      going to be all kinds of recreation impacts.  People



          12      might not want to be near those cables.  We might



          13      lose our windsurfing on the river.



          14          There may be other pathways besides the gorge.



          15      The gorge is the shoreline of the greatest



          16      significance in this whole Northwest region.  I know



          17      Ecology's shoreline program will really be interested



          18      in before they permit this.  And I believe you should



          19      talk to the scientists there as to what they think



          20      the impacts on the fish and all the different water



          21      quality impacts associated with such disruption to



          22      the most important shoreline of statewide



          23      significance.



          24          There's -- there may be other ways to go from



          25      east-west besides the gorge.  There may be other
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           1      pathways through the mountains, through railroads,



           2      through other highways.  You say they may not want



           3      it.  So, anyway, I'm not sure that you can't put it



           4      where there's railroads or other highways.  This is



           5      the worst place for it.



           6          I really don't have -- and I would like to know



           7      who the power serves, is going -- so you mentioned



           8      something like 800,000 households.  We want to be



           9      sure it doesn't go to serve any data centers --



          10      absolute zero -- if for some reason this project does



          11      have to go through, and that there's no nuclear power



          12      traveling through it that was created by any type of



          13      nuclear.



          14          Whether it's Bill Gates or Amazon or Meta or



          15      Google, they're all pronuclear now, and that is a



          16      horrible thing.  We in this state, Washington State,



          17      know how horrible nuclear power is.  We had the



          18      Washington Public Power Supply System, which was such



          19      a disaster.  We know the impacts of -- we still have



          20      not cleaned up with the river from that.



          21          And then the other thing would be Bradford



          22      Island.  There's been huge impacts to this river.



          23      The tribal nations, their whole way of life and



          24      culture was destroyed by BPA and all the dams on this



          25      river.  Every -- there's things in EISs called
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           1      cumulative impacts.  The cumulative impacts are so



           2      big already that doing this one more thing that



           3      trashes the sacred tribal land and their fish use and



           4      various -- it's just -- the impact on fish.



           5          Then dams can be removed to help the fish.  If



           6      those dams have -- if we get permission to move those



           7      dams and fix the river for the fish and the recre- --



           8      and what happens to your line then?  Does this mean



           9      we can't remove those dams for the next 50 years?  So



          10      anyway, that's just a (unintelligible) --



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate your



          12      comment.



          13                        MR. GREEF:  I -- I'm really -- I



          14      haven't even begun to get my head around this thing



          15      yet.  But I think the impacts are huge.  And there's



          16      no question an EIS is required in this thing.  It's



          17      just -- that's all.  Thank you.



          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          19          Ms. Grantham.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker I



          21      have is Mary Repar.



          22                        MS. REPAR:  Thank you very much for



          23      this opportunity.  It's been a long time since



          24      Whistling Ridge.  So I'm looking forward to this.



          25          You're in the National -- Columbia River Gorge
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           1      National Scenic Area.  You've entered the twilight



           2      zone for permitting process.  So welcome.  It's going



           3      to be a long, long haul.



           4          I'm assuming that the gorge commission also has



           5      something to say about this, will have something to



           6      say.  I brought it up to them at the last meeting.



           7          I made comments on the Columbia River Treaty.



           8      I'm sure many of you did.  And it was a very



           9      interesting process.  And one of the things that the



          10      Columbia River Treaty says is very important, is



          11      improving the ecosystem is going to be the main aim



          12      of modernization.  I don't see this project as



          13      improving the ecosystems that we have here.



          14          NEPA is a very good process.  It does have



          15      cumulative impacts and effects, and those will have



          16      to be analyzed thoroughly and with analysis.



          17          This little river is being asked to do a lot.  We



          18      have the Goldendale pump project that wants water



          19      from the Columbia.  We have the EPA Superfund cleanup



          20      at Bradford Island.  We have this, and we have that.



          21      And, you know, this is asking too much of our



          22      environment.  The rights of nature needs to be



          23      included in the analysis of this, and I'm a very huge



          24      proponent of the rights of nature.



          25          Also tribal consultation and alternatives.  I
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           1      would like to see a lot more alternatives.  You know,



           2      we're always being asked to vote for all these



           3      projects that are going to make our lives better and



           4      lower our utility costs.  Well, I'm not seeing it.



           5      I'm sorry.  We have had solar projects that have



           6      promised to lower our costs.  We have some of the



           7      highest cost per kilowatt-hour here in this



           8      community.  If you can't do something for our



           9      community, don't bother.



          10          We -- you know, there's -- there's other



          11      alternatives that are much cleaner and much less



          12      intrusive on our environment.



          13          Also, the gentleman before me spoke about the



          14      health effects.  There are health effects from



          15      transmission lines.  There are health effects on



          16      the -- on humans, and there are health effects on



          17      wildlife.



          18          So these are my notes, which you'll be getting in



          19      a different format, and I'm going to submit something



          20      tonight.  But I look forward to the NEPA EIS, and I



          21      think you will find that this project is not for us.



          22          Thank you very much.



          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your



          24      comment.



          25          I believe that's the last of our sign-ups ahead
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           1      of time?



           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Correct.  That's all



           3      I was able to get.



           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Would anyone



           5      else who's in the room care to make a comment?  And



           6      also for those online, if you raise your hand, we



           7      will recognize you.  But let me please first turn



           8      this to our guests in the room.



           9          Yes, ma'am.  If you'd please step up to the mike.



          10      State your name for the record, please.



          11          And then I saw one other hand, but we'll catch



          12      you next.



          13          Thank you again.



          14                        MS. ALLINGER:  My name is Debbie



          15      Allinger.  And I am a survivor of cancer and your



          16      wonderful overhead power lines, which I lived



          17      underneath or close enough that it's actually



          18      disfigured my body.  And, therefore, you want to put



          19      some more stuff in this area that's going to kill



          20      people.  I've lost (unintelligible) and many family



          21      members to do with cancer and power lines.  And



          22      there's no studies right now on what you're planning



          23      on doing.  You keep mentioning tribal.  And there's



          24      more effect on more than just tribal.



          25          I believe you need to do more research on your
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           1      land-use to actually find out who owns the land.  And



           2      I'll bet you find out the government does not own it.



           3          So, therefore, I'm asking for more studies and



           4      looking into how the government acquired the land if



           5      they think it's theirs.  Thank you.



           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for your



           7      comment.



           8          Next up.  Welcome.



           9                        MS. YAZDANI:  Thank you.



          10          Hi.  Teryn Yazdani with Columbia Riverkeeper.



          11      Thanks for being here.  I'll keep this super brief.



          12      I'm going to be speaking at the land-use hearing as



          13      well.



          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.



          15                        MS. YAZDANI:  But I just wanted to



          16      ask specifically if you-all would be willing to



          17      respond either tonight or in the near future to



          18      something raised in a recent article from the



          19      Columbian.  Quoting Julie Carter, staff from the



          20      Columbia Inter-Tribal Fish Commission, specifically a



          21      response to the statement that the applicant is



          22      asserting the project meets the recommendations and



          23      goals for CRITFC's energy vision and that CRITFC



          24      openly stated that this is untrue.



          25          I think it's extremely important to address that
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           1      openly, honestly.  And claiming that a project is in



           2      line with an energy vision when CRITFC is saying the



           3      opposite is quite concerning in how you're addressing



           4      this to the public and seems like greenwashing.  So



           5      just wanted to put that out there.  Thank you.



           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



           7      input and comment.



           8          Others in the room who'd like to step forward and



           9      add comment?



          10          Let me turn to our online audience just to make



          11      sure if I'm missing a hand that's raised and buy



          12      another couple seconds here for our in-room



          13      participants.



          14          Anything else --



          15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have --



          16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Ms. Grantham?



          17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have three hands



          18      raised online.  The first one I'm seeing is Nathan



          19      Baker.



          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Nathan Baker, go



          21      ahead.



          22                        MR. BAKER:  Can you hear me?



          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  We can.  Thank you.



          24      Please proceed.



          25                        MR. BAKER:  Thank you.
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           1          Good evening, Chair Beckett and members of the



           2      Council.  My name is Nathan Baker.  I'm a senior



           3      staff attorney with Friends of the Columbia Gorge.



           4      And for this hearing, I'd like to speak about two



           5      procedural issues.



           6          The process is important.  We want to make sure



           7      that the required procedures are properly followed



           8      for this hearing and for EFSEC's process.



           9          The first procedural issue is that this hearing



          10      tonight is premature.  The duty to conduct an



          11      informational public hearing is triggered by, quote,



          12      the receipt of an application for site certification,



          13      end quote.  That's RCW 80.50.090.



          14          So that's triggered by an application.  Draft



          15      applications don't count.  And this is clearly a



          16      draft application.  "Draft" is the first word on the



          17      cover page.  All of the PDF file names of a draft



          18      application are labeled with the word "draft."  The



          19      word "draft" is used more than 200 times in the



          20      document, mostly in the footers.



          21          The document contains metadata with internal



          22      comments between the applicant's consultants and



          23      lawyers.  The EFSEC website links to all the draft



          24      application materials and describes them as drafts.



          25          This is a draft application that is not ready for
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           1      prime time.  EFSEC should not have scheduled the



           2      hearings until after it receives an application, not



           3      a draft application.  This hearing is premature, and



           4      it is error to be holding this hearing on a draft



           5      application.



           6          Regardless, if and when the applicant submits an



           7      actual non-draft application or converts the draft



           8      application to a final application, that will be,



           9      under the plain language of the statute, the, quote,



          10      receipt of an application for site certification, end



          11      quote, which will obligate EFSEC to hold a new series



          12      of hearings.



          13          The other procedural issue involves the members



          14      of the Council.  Last night, the appointee by Clark



          15      County to the Council was never mentioned and did not



          16      participate.  We're pleased to see Commissioner



          17      Leckie from Skamania County here tonight.  But



          18      tonight there was no mention of the city of



          19      Stevenson.  Under RCW 80.50.030, Subsection 5, the



          20      City of Stevenson is supposed to appoint a member of



          21      the Council who, quote, shall sit with the Council,



          22      end quote, for hearings involving the site involving



          23      that city.



          24          And according to Section 2.1.3.2 of the draft



          25      application, the project is proposed inside the city
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           1      of Stevenson.  That may also be the case for the city



           2      of North Bonneville.  The project certainly goes



           3      within a big section of the North Bonneville urban



           4      area.  We're not quite sure about the city limits.



           5      But the statute requires city appointees to, quote,



           6      sit with the Council, end quote, for this hearing.



           7      Holding this hearing without their participation



           8      violates the statute.



           9          In conclusion, if and when the applicant submits



          10      a non-draft final application, EFSEC will then need



          11      to schedule informational public hearings in each of



          12      the three counties.  The relevant county and city



          13      appointees to the Council will need to sit with the



          14      Council for these hearings.  Thank you very much.



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,



          16      Mr. Baker.



          17          Ms. Grantham, who's up next?



          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The next speaker is



          19      Kate Murphy.



          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          21                        MS. MURPHY:  Good day.  This is



          22      Kate Murphy.  I'm with Columbia Riverkeeper.



          23          Can I ask for a point of clarification, Chair,



          24      before I start?



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Sure.
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           1                        MS. MURPHY:  I just -- I just --



           2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, you may.



           3                        MS. MURPHY:  -- wanted to clarify.



           4      In yesterday's meeting, we were able to ask



           5      project-specific questions, and I think I heard Chris



           6      mention that that would be okay.  So can I ask -- can



           7      I get an answer -- a response to a question?



           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  If you go ahead and



           9      state your question for the record, and then we'll



          10      see where we're at on time.



          11                        MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  Great.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ultimately any



          13      iterative answers that I believe, you know, are



          14      helpful in the moment, at the same time ultimately,



          15      that's at the latitude of the chair.  And out of



          16      respect to the group, certainly want to continue



          17      to --



          18                        MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Good.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- proceed here,



          20      so -- but please note your question for the record



          21      and your other comments, and we'll start this now.



          22                        MS. MURPHY:  Thank you.



          23          I'd start by lifting up Teryn's concern about



          24      potential misrepresentation for CRITFC.  And my



          25      question directly is about what type of modeling and
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           1      research and testing has been done specific to the



           2      Georgia-Pacific pulp and paper mill in Camas,



           3      Washington, which is a known contaminated site that



           4      contains total petroleum hydrocarbons, it contains



           5      polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, polychlorinated



           6      biphenyls, metals, dioxins, and things like that, and



           7      it's got an order for cleanup.



           8          So I'm just curious if you could speak to that a



           9      little bit about how that's been addressed in the



          10      project plan.  Thank you.



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



          12      question.  I am actually going to ask that we not



          13      answer that question in the moment, given -- I can



          14      appreciate the complexity of it and including from



          15      other past experience on certain cleanups.  So I



          16      think we'd all be probably best served if we handled



          17      that more formally.  So thank you.



          18                        MS. MURPHY:  Could I just ask



          19      specifically:  Has that site been considered based on



          20      the contamination there?  That would be helpful.



          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Your questions are



          22      being noted for the record, so that's ultimately



          23      really the core function.



          24                        MS. MURPHY:  Oh.  Okay.  So we're



          25      not doing the same kind of Q & A tonight.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.



           2                        MS. MURPHY:  Okay.  Then I will



           3      also ask for the record to have some more specific



           4      explanation about, when it says that it's buried



           5      within the sediment of the riverbed, there's a lot of



           6      bedrock.  And it seems that that wouldn't be possible



           7      for the entire hundred miles.  So how -- how is it



           8      being negotiated through some of those areas where



           9      there might not be the deeper sediment?



          10          That's it.  Thank you.



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And I'm sorry.  Can



          12      you clarify.  Was there a specific section of the



          13      river that you were noting was the area that was more



          14      predominant in bedrock or just in general?



          15                        MS. MURPHY:  Well, I mean, they



          16      did -- Chris mentioned they've done a whole scan of



          17      the river, so they -- that would probably be more



          18      informative than my input.  But I think throughout



          19      the entire hundred miles, I would be interested in



          20      that.  Thank you.



          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Understood.  Thank



          22      you.



          23          I think we may be close.  Seeing one more.



          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We have one more.



          25      Excuse me if I pronounce it incorrectly.  Juan Monje.





                                                                      57

�







           1                        MR. MONJE:  You did connect me.



           2      I'm Juan Monje.  I have only -- I have some concern,



           3      but I can -- for the record, I can do two question.



           4          One:  If this project is meant to serve



           5      residential -- residential and regional clean-energy



           6      goals, why is the main converter station located in



           7      the Rivergate industrial area, where multiple large



           8      data center are being planned?



           9          Another one question is:  PowerBridge says that



          10      you will respect tribal concerns.  Can you list which



          11      tribal nations have formally consented and provide



          12      copies of those letters, please?



          13          That's it for now.  Thank you.



          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.  Thank



          15      you, Mr. Monje.



          16          And I see that you had posted a question in the



          17      chat, and that's been responded to.  I think, if we



          18      can make sure that we have the contact information if



          19      you wish to be contacted in case we need to follow up



          20      just to clarify anything here in the record, that



          21      would be helpful.  And you can paste that in chat in



          22      this instance.  Thank you again for your



          23      participation.



          24          I don't see any other hands raised.  Are there



          25      others in our audience this evening who wish to
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           1      speak?  Please come forward.



           2                        MR. HECHT:  Hello.  My name is



           3      Martin Hecht, and I'm a 35-year resident of



           4      Stevenson, Washington.



           5          And I -- my concern is primarily that this, I



           6      guess, was billed as a public information meeting,



           7      but I don't think it was very well publicized.  I



           8      mean, I'm glad that there's other neighbors and other



           9      interested parties here.  But I really found out



          10      about it randomly, like, last night and tried to get



          11      some word out today that, you know, that this meeting



          12      was happening.



          13          I find it very interesting and intriguing, this



          14      project.  I'd love to learn more.  But if you're



          15      going to have a public information meeting, I think



          16      you need to try a little harder to, you know, engage



          17      the public.



          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



          19      input.  And I certainly appreciate that.  I think we



          20      all share, you know, the interest in achieving what



          21      you've stated.  And obviously, you know,



          22      communicating out and finding everyone that wants to



          23      be found is sometimes a challenge, but ultimately



          24      it's one we need to stick with.  And I can just



          25      assure you that we will continue to do so.  And
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           1      wherever we can improve, we will, will be our pledge,



           2      so -- but thank you for stepping forward and calling



           3      that out.



           4          Other hands or anyone else in the audience?



           5          Okay.  Then I am going to conclude our public



           6      informational hearing and meeting at 6:54 p.m.



           7                               (Meeting concluded at



           8                                6:54 p.m.)
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